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May 13, 2002

To the Citizens of the City of Columbus, Ohio

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Columbus, Ohio (the City) for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2001 is hereby presented to its citizens by their City Auditor, statutorily described as the City's chief accounting officer.

INTRODUCTION

The City's Charter states, "The auditor shall be an elector of the City, and be elected for aterm of four years. . ." The Charter also
sets forth the auditor's powers and duties and states, in part:

The auditor shall be the city's chief accounting officer. He shdl keep, in accurate, systematized detail a record of the
receipts, disbursements, assets, and liabilities of the city, and the recorded facts shall be presented periodicaly to officias
and to the public in such summaries and analytical schedules as shall be necessary to show the full effect of such transactions
for each fiscal year upon the finances of the city and in relation to each department of the city government, including distinct
summaries and schedules for each public utility owned or operated.

This report fulfills these duties and is distributed to approximately 500 recipients, which include civic associations, banks, brokers,
rating agencies, schools, libraries, university students and city, state and federal officials. This report is also available on the City's

website. The Internet addressis http:/mnww.cityofcolumbus.org.

The City's management, defined and described in the following paragraph, is responsible for the accuracy of the data contained in
this report. The responsibility for completeness, fairness of presentation, and full disclosure of the data also rests with the City's
management.

The management:

The City's management consists of a Mayor, seven-member Council, City Auditor, and City Attorney. These officials are elected
for four-year terms on an at-large basis. The Mayor and four Council members are elected in an odd numbered year. Three Council
members, the City Auditor, and the City Attorney are elected in the following odd numbered year. The City's Charter also provides
for appointments and elections of successors to these officias if they should, for any reason, vacate their office. All are chosen
through a non-partisan election process.

In addition to the elected officials, certain others are major participants in the City's management. The Director of the Department
of Recreation and Parks, the Health Commissioner, the Civil Service Executive Secretary, and the Secretary of the Sinking Fund are
appointed by, and report to, independent Commissions. All of these Commission members are appointed by the Mayor and are
subject to confirmation by the Council. The financia activities of these Commissions (budgets, expenditures, etc.) are subject to
approval by the Council and are, therefore, included in thisreport. The City's Treasurer and Clerk to the Council are appointed by,
and serve at, the pleasure of the Council.

The Mayor's cabinet, appointed by him and serving at his pleasure, is not subject to confirmation by the Council. In 2001 the
cabinet consisted of the directors of the departments of Public Safety, Public Service, Finance, Public Utilities, Development,
Technology, Equa Business Opportunity, Human Resources, and Community Relations.



The City Auditor believes that, to the best of his knowledge, the data contained in this report present fairly the financia position
and results of operations of the various funds of the City. All necessary disclosures are included in this report to enable the citizens
and other readers to understand the City's financial activities.

Thereport:

This transmittal letter is designed to provide historical information about the City, as well as compliment the required
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (discussed below). Unless noted otherwise, the financial data in this transmittal letter is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financia statements in the form of Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). The City’'s MD&A, which focuses on the government-wide statements, can be found on page
49 of thisreport.

This Comprehensive Annua Financial Report (CAFR) is designed in a manner to assist and guide the reader in understanding its
contents. The report consists of four sections:

*  Thelntroductory Section, which includes this letter of transmittal, contains information pertinent to the City's management
and organization. Referencesin this section to Note A, Note B, etc., are to Notes to the Financial Statements contained in
the Financial Section of this report.

The Financia Section contains the Independent Auditor's Report, Management’s Discussion and Anaysis, Basic
Financial Statements, Required Supplementary Information and various other Statements and Schedules pertaining to the
City’ sfunds and activities.

*  The Statigtical Section contains numerous tables of financial and demographic information. Much of this information is
shown with comparative data for the ten-year period from 1992 through 2001. Also in this section are data necessary to
meet the disclosure requirements of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)(i)(C) and (D) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

»  TheSingle Audit Section, in accordance with the federal Single Audit Act of 1996, includes the following:

* Independent Auditors Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on the Audit
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Sandards

* Independent Auditors Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Maor Program, Interna
Control Over Compliance and Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures of Federal, State, and County Awards

 Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures of Federal, State, and County Awards
Notesto Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures of Federal, State, and County Awards

« Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Thereporting entity:

Columbus was first organized as a borough in 1816 and subsequently became a city on March 3, 1834. The City is a home-rule
municipa corporation operating under the laws of Ohio. The City's Charter, its constitution, can only be amended by a majority of
the City's voters. It has been amended many times since its original adoption in 1914, most recently on November 2, 1999. The
laws of the State of Ohio prevail when conflicts exist between the Charter and the state congtitution and in matters where the
Charter issilent.

Columbus, Ohio's capital city, islocated in the central part of the state, approximately 150 miles south of Cleveland and 110 miles
northeast of Cincinnati. The City's elevation is approximately 777 feet above sealevel. Inter and intra state highways I-70, 1-71, -
270, and 1-670 serve as some of the City's magjor transportation arteries. The Ohio State University, with approximately 48,000
students on its Columbus campus, is located near the center of the City. Columbus was ranked as the nation's 16th largest city asa
result of the 1990 census, and 15th as aresult of the 2000 Census.



Some comparative data for Ohio's six largest cities follow. Population estimates are from the U.S. Bureau of Census. The
respective cities management as of December 31, 2001 provided area data.

Population

City Area 2000 1990 1980
Columbus 218.6 sq. mi. 711,470 632,910 565,021
Cleveland 77.9 sg. mi. 478,403 505,616 573,822
Cincinnati 78.8 sg. mi. 331,285 364,040 385,410
Toledo 84.2 5q. mi. 313,619 332,943 354,635
Akron 53.6 q. mi. 217,074 223,019 237,177
Dayton 56.3 . mi. 166,179 182,044 193,536

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, in that the financial statements include al the organizations, activities,
functions and the component unit, the Columbus Municipal Airport Authority (CMAA), for which the City, the reporting entity,
is financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's
board, and either (1) the City's ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) the possibility that the component unit
will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City. On this basis, the reporting entity of the City
includes the following services to its citizens as authorized by its charter: public service (refuse collection, street engineering
and construction, traffic engineering and parking, etc.), public safety (fire, police, etc.), development, health, recreation and
parks, and public utilities. In addition, the City owns and operates three enterprise activities: aWater system, a Sanitary sewer
system and an Electricity distribution system, financial activities for which are contained in this report. Water and sewer
services are metropolitan in nature and reach far beyond the City's corporate boundaries. The City does not operate schools or
hospitals, nor isit responsible for public assistance programs.

In August 1990, the City's Council created the Columbus Municipal Airport Authority (CMAA) to manage the City's two airports.
CMAA became operational in November 1991. All of the CMAA board members are appointed by the Mayor subject to the
approval of Council. Although CMAA is a separate lega entity, the City includes the financia statements of CMAA as a part of
the City's reporting entity. Beginning with calendar year 1992, CMAA's financial statements have been discretely presented in the
City's report as a component unit of the City. Prior to 1992, the airport's financial statements appeared as an enterprise fund in the
City'sreport. Complete financial statements of CMAA may be obtained from CMAA's administration offices at 4600 I nternational
Gateway, Columbus, Ohio 43219. See Note A.

The Franklin Park Conservatory Joint Recreation District (the Conservatory Digtrict), created by the City and Franklin County in
1990, became operational in 1992. The City and the County amended the agreement in 1996. The Board of the Conservatory
District consists of 17 members; 8 appointed by the City, 6 by the County and 3 by the State. Two of the state appointees are
nonvoting members if they are aso members of the Ohio General Assembly. None, however, is such a member. The City
contributed certain fixed assets to the Conservatory District at its inception and has agreed to an annua operating subsidy, subject
to the annua appropriation of Council. The financial activity of the Conservatory District had been reported discretely as a
component unit in the City's financia statements for calendar years 1993 through 1995. However, primarily because the Mayor
does not appoint a majority of board members, the Conservatory District is now considered a joint venture of the City and County
and has been reported as such beginning with the City's 1996 financial statements.

The Columbus/Franklin County Affordable Housing Trust Corporation (AHT) was initially formed in August 2000 and became
functional in 2001. Its purposes and powers are to create affordable housing opportunities, both ownership and rental's, throughout
Franklin County. All members of its Board of Trustees are jointly appointed by the Mayor of Columbus and the Franklin County
Commissioners. No single government appoints a majority of the board’s member. Both the City and the County combined,
however, provided nearly 100% of AHT revenue and support in 2001. AHT is considered a joint venture of the City and County
and isreported as such in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Thereporting sandards:

The City's accounts are organized as funds. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with its own self-balancing set of accounts,
assets, liahilities, and fund equity. Following are the titles of these funds with a brief description.



Governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund isthe general operating fund of the City. It isused to account for all financial resources
traditionally associated with government which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Foecial Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived from specific taxes, grants, or
other restricted revenue sources. City ordinances or Federal or State statutes specify the uses and limitations of each
Special Revenue Fund. During 2001 the City had 39 Special Revenue Funds.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. During 2001 the City had 9 Debt Service Funds.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or
construction of magjor capita facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. During 2001 the City had 37
Capitd Projects Funds.

Permanent Funds — Permanent funds are for the purpose of accounting for resources that are legally restricted to the
extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting governments.  The City does
not have any permanent funds.

Proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises; where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to
the genera public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The City has three
separate enterprise funds for its Water, Sanitary Sewer, and Electricity distribution services. A fourth enterprise, airport
services which are provided by CMAA, is discretely presented in this report as a component unit of the City.

Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
division or agency to other divisions or agencies of the government, generally on a cost reimbursement basis. The City
has 6 internal service funds.

Fiduciary funds:

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds. The City had 17 Agency Funds during 2001. The City does not have
any trust funds.

Bases of accounting:

Except for budgetary purposes, the bases of accounting used by the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units and are consistent with GASB Cod. Sec. 1600, Basis of
Accounting. All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources-current assets and current liabilities-
measurement focus. The modified accrual basis of accounting is utilized for governmental and agency funds. Revenues are
recognized when they are susceptible to accrual (both measurable and available). Expenditures are recognized when the related
liability isincurred, except for interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

The measurement focus on the City’s proprietary funds is on the flow of total economic resources (all assets and liaghilities). The
accrua basis of accounting (revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when incurred) is utilized by the City in its
proprietary funds.

The City’s basis of accounting for budgetary purposes differs from GAAP in that revenues are recognized when received, rather
than when susceptible to accrual (measurable and available), and encumbrances are included as expenditures rather than as
reservations of fund balances.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the City has changed its financial reporting to comply with GASB Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements and Management’ s Discussion and Analysis for Sate and Local Governments. The government-
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wide financial statements, including governmental activities, in order to comply with GASB Statement No. 34, are presented on
the full accrual basis of accounting. As part of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the City has opted for early
implementation of infrastructure reporting. In doing so, the historical cost of infrastructure assets (retroactive to 1979) is
included as part of the governmental capital assets reported in the government-wide statement. Thus, the depreciated value of
congtruction costs for road, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems is reported. In conjunction with the
implementation of GASB 34, the City has opted for early implementation of GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial
Satement Note Disclosures, which rescinds some and modifies other financial statement disclosure requirements.

Accounting policies are further explained in Note A.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONSAND EMPLOYMENT
The traditional stability of the City’s economy was severely tested in 2001. While employment continued to grow, unemployment
rose to early 1997 levels. Data from the Ohio Department of Jobs and Family Services indicate that manufacturing type jobs and
certain non-manufacturing type jobs were experiencing layoffs, while total non-manufacturing type jobsincreased. That data shows
thefollowing (Table 20 in the Statistical Section of this report).

(in thousands)

No. of Jobs % of total
Increase 2001
Industry 2000 2001 (decrease) employment
Manufacturing 95.0 91.2 (3.8) 10.3
Non-manufacturing 7931 7987 5.6 897
Total 888.1 889.9 18 100.0%

Average annual unemployment rates (2.8%) for 2001 continued to be well below the State of Ohio (4.3%) and the United States
(4.3%) rates. Unemployment rates for the Columbus Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) increased, however, in the latter half of
2001 to early 1997 levels. The following table provides a five-year history of unemployment rates for the Columbus MSA (by
month) and the Annual Average Rates for Franklin County, the State of Ohio and the United States.

Unemployment Rates
(%, except for Columbus MSA employment base)

Franklin County: 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
January 2.6 25 26 27 32
February 24 2.7 26 26 32
March 22 26 25 26 238
April 21 22 23 22 26
May 23 23 24 25 2.6
June 3.0 2.8 28 28 2.7
July 27 24 25 23 2.3
August 29 25 26 24 23
September 32 2.7 28 27. 2.7
October 3.0 24 26 25 2.6
November 33 23 24 24 2.6
December 31 21 21 21 24

Annua Average Rates.

Franklin County 2.8 24 25 25 2.7

State of Ohio 4.3 4.1 43 43 4.6

United States 438 4.0 42 45 49
Average Columbus M SA employment 850,900 847,100 808,000 805,400 783,100

The City's General Fund balance (budget basis) reached an al time historic high at calendar year 1999 of $70.880 million. It
declined in 2000 to $65.838 million, but rebounded in 2001 to $67.216 million.
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Income tax collections (budget basis of accounting where revenues are cash collected less refunds) increased 3.47% in 2001 over
the comparable amount in 2000. The growth rate, in nominal dollars not adjusted for inflation, therefore, continued in a positive
manner. This growth rate of 3.47% represented, however, the lowest growth rate in such collections since 1961. Income tax
revenues on the modified accrual basis of accounting for 2001 increased 3.37% over 2000, representing the second lowest growth
rate reported on this basis in the past 23 years; 2000 showed the lowest at 2.40% growth over 1999.

The City continues to maintain assets within the General Fund designated for future year's expenditures. The City increased these
amountsin 2001. This portion of the General Fund consists of unencumbered cash and accrued interest receivable in two subfunds
contained in the General Fund. These subfunds, available for General Fund purposes at the discretion of Council, are the Economic
Stahilization Fund (the "rainy day" fund) and the Anticipated Expenditure Fund. Council determined in 1994 that the Economic
Stabilization Fund is entitled to a proportionate share of interest earnings from the City's investment pool described in this letter
under Cash Management and in Note C. The amountsin these subfunds over the last ten yearsfollow:

Economic Anticipated

Y ear Stabilization Expenditure
Ended Eund Fund Tota

1992 $ 7,500,000 - $ 7,500,000
1993 7,500,000 - 7,500,000
1994 8,593,936 $ 300,000 8,893,936
1995 10,169,809 1,050,000 11,219,809
1996 11,886,543 1,800,000 13,686,543
1997 13,659,256 2,550,000 16,209,256
1998 22,891,219 8,919,754 31,810,973
1999 24,021,070 9,639,070 33,660,140
2000 25,718,910 9,802,237 35,521,147
2001 27,331,828 10,552,237 37,884,065

No expenditures have ever been made from the Economic Stabilization Fund. At December 31, 2001 these two subfunds
represented 6.95% of 2001 General Fund expenditures and transfers out.

The City’ s budgets continue to be in balance.

Employment in the Greater Columbus Area continues to be service oriented. Nine of the top fourteen (14) largest employersin the
Columbus area are government or government-oriented (the State of Ohio, The Ohio State University, Ohio State University
Hospitals, United States Postal Service, Defense Supply Center — Columbus, Defense Finance and Accounting Service —
Columbus, Columbus Public Schools, City of Columbus and Franklin County). The fifty largest employers in the Greater
Columbus area are shown in the Statistical Section of this report. These magjor employers, representing government, insurance,
public utilities, manufacturing, retail, banking, research, medical and services, provide a broad and diverse employment base.

Employeeréations:
The City’s employee relations are established largely in association with the following labor organizations:

« American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), Locals 1632 and 2191.
(www.afscme.org)

AFSCME has approximately 2,460 members among the City’s 5,634 civilian employees. AFSCME has, however,
bargaining rights for approximately 3,006 of these employees. The current labor agreement between the City and
AFSCME was effective April 1, 1999 and continues through March 31, 2002 or until a new contract, presently being
negotiated, is settled.

o Fraternal Order of Police (FOP) (www.fop9.org)
FOP has bargaining rights for all of the City’s police officers except for the chief and his five deputy chiefs. Of the
City’s 1,810 police officers, 1,736 are members of the FOP. The contract between the City and FOP expires
December 8, 2002.

« International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) (www.iaff.org)
12



IAFF has bargaining rights for al the City's firefighters except for the chief and one of his five assistant chiefs.
Membership in the |AFF includes 1,501 of atotal 1,518 firefighters.  On April 10, 2000, an arbitrator issued a final
decision on certain outstanding issues of the proposed contract between the City and IAFF. The contract continues
through on May 31, 2004.

o Columbus Municipal Association of Government Employees (CMAGE)

CMAGE has approximately 693 members and has bargaining rights for approximately 1,309 of the 5,634 civilian
employees. The current contract between the City and CMAGE became effective August 24, 1999 and continues
through August 23, 2002.

Under Ohio’s Collective Bargaining Act, if members of the police or fire division cannot reach agreement with the City they
“shall submit the matter to a final offer settlement procedure.” This requirement of Ohio law is referred to as a “no-strike” or
“binding arbitration” provision. Other employees are permitted to strike under Ohio law after giving proper notification.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

CURRENT PROJECTSAND SERVICE EFFORTSAND ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

« Retainingfinancial strength of the City

The Mayor, keenly aware of national and local economic conditions, has devoted much attention and action to maintaining the
City’s financial strength. Following are extracted from his Economic Advisory Committee Report which has aready resulted in
certain legidation being enacted by the Council. Other legidation (ordinances) implementing revenue enhancement
recommendations are in formative stages.

The Committee was comprised of:
Anthony Chan, Ph.D., Senior Managing Director and Chief Economist for BankOne Investment Advisors
Robert Greenbaum, Ph.D., Assistant Professor, School of Public Policy and Management, The Ohio State University
Allen Proctor, Ph.D., Consultant in Public Sector Budgeting and Finance
Hugh J. Dorrian, City Auditor, City of Columbus
Joel Taylor, Finance Director, City of Columbus
Mary Austin, Council Budget Officer, City of Columbus

The Committee issued its final report to Mayor Michael B. Coleman and City Council President Matthew D. Habash on October

15, 2001.

Recommended revenue enhancements were:

Increase in parking ticket fines. This recommendation has been implemented via Council legidation and takes effect
April 1, 2002.

Increase in Municipal Court costs and fines. The Court has implemented certain increases effective January 2002.
Review license fees, permit fees and other possible charges. All fees regarding building permits, plans, inspections,
etc. are now established on abasisto support al operating costs of providing such service. Other feesand permitsare
also being reviewed for increased rates.

Short-term car rental tax. Legidation is now in draft form, but intended for initia implementation in 2002, for a
short-term call rental tax. Columbus presently is one of very few large cities not having such atax.

Third party reimbursement for emergency medical transport. Again, Columbus is one of very few large cities not
charging for this service. The City is presently preparing requests for proposals to assist in this billing process.
Implementation is planned for late 2002.

The above enhancements, when implemented, are intended to be permanent additional sources of revenue for the City. The
Committee’ s report, in its entirety, may be requested by mail at City Auditor, 90 West Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio, 43215, or via

e-mall at
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« Affordable Housing Opportunities

At the pergistence of the Mayor, the Columbus/Franklin County Affordable Housing Trust Corporation (AHT) became functional
and operationa in 2001. The City provided $3.1 million in support and the County provided $1.0 million in support in 2001.
Additionally, the City will provide a portion of its hotel-motel excise tax annually, presently approximating $1.0 million, to AHT
for future funding. This action represents thefirst direct funding with locally generated (non-federal) funds toward providing
affordable housing to citizens throughout the County.

« Leadership in Education

In 2000, the Mayor created an Office of Education with a cabinet-level director to focus city efforts on education and after-school
programs. Its mission is to enhance the quality of life for al citizens by expanding access, opportunity and awareness for learning,
education, training and devel opment within our community.

The Office of Education has created the education advisory commission, a panel of 12 members whose purpose will be to serve as
advisor and consultant to the Mayor and City Council on matters of public education, after-school and life-long learning
opportunities, and partnerships on educational matters. This represents the first formalized actions by the City to directly fund
school related efforts.

« Police Cruiser Technology

In keeping with the Mayor’s intention to use technological advances in the area of Public Safety, the Division of Police has
continued to install video camerasin their fleet of 447 Police cruisers. Presently there are 100 units operational. In addition, 235
mobile data terminals have been placed in cruisers to enhance overall communicationsin the field.

» TheFranklin County Convention Facilities Authority (CFA) (www.columbusconventions.com)

The CFA, owner and operator of the Greater Columbus Convention Center, in February 2001, completed a $73 million expansion
and renovation. Its total size was increased from 1.4 to 1.7 million square feet. Information provided by the CFA dtates the
expansion and renovation adds:

« 120,000 square feet of exhibit space, increasing the space to nearly 450,000 square fest.

« A 15,000 sguare feet ballroom, totaling 40,000 square feet of ballroom space.

« 11 new meeting rooms for atotal of 61 meeting rooms.

» Additiona parking, including an 1,100 space parking facility with first floor retail shops and a 200 space surface lot.
« Anupgrade of 100,000 plus square feet of retail space.

The City’s relationship with CFA began in 1990 via a lease / sublease arrangement between the CFA and the City and Franklin
County under which the City and County lease the facility as tenants in common from the CFA and subsequently sublease the
facility back to the CFA. The lease requires the City and County to each pay rent equa to one half of the debt service due on all
revenue bonds issued by the CFA to build the facility to the CFA. The sublease requires the CFA to pay rent to the County and
City in an amount equal to such debt service. The CFA's source of rental payment is the hotel/motel excise tax it levies. If the
excise tax is insufficient, the earnings on and the principal of reserve funds created at the time of issuance of the revenue bonds are
to be used. If the reserve funds prove to be insufficient, the City is to divert that portion of the hotel/motel excise tax it levies and
pays to aloca convention and visitors bureau to the rent payment. In the event al previousy mentioned sources of payment are
insufficient, the County and City will pay any shortfal in equal shares from their genera resources provided their respective
legidative bodies have appropriated the funds. Since the inception of the lease/sublease, County and City general resources have
not been required and are not anticipated to be required.

o Thelnternet
Since 1998, the City Auditor has made the entire Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) available to the public via the

Internet. Portions of the CAFR's for 1994 through 1997 were also on the City’s website. The website will be updated after the
publication of this report to include the 2001 CAFR.
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Other major aress of interest available viathe City’ s website (hﬂQlAMAMLQLDLQE&IMmbu&QLQj are:

«  The complete City Code including, but not limited to; Income Tax Code, Building Code, Zoning Code, and more.

»  City Council’sweekly legidative agendas.

» Information on the divisions of Fire and Police; how to access accident reports, recyclables, trash collection schedules and
many, many points of information.

» Center of Scienceand Industry (COSI) (www.cosi.org)

COSl continued to sparkle in 2001 with 706,000 visitorsin its fiscal year ending June 30, 2001. In 1988 the City purchased land,
approximately 17 acres, in the heart of downtown. Formerly Centra High School, the City purchased the property from the
Columbus City School District for $15 million and, in subsequent years leased the property to the State of Ohio to be used as a
science and learning center for the community.

COSl, the operator of the Center, is one of nation’s premier exhibitions of modern science and technology. The new COSI, opened
in November 1999, contains 320,000 square feet of space. At its previous location the building contained approximately 150,000
square feet.

COSI’s “Fun Facts’ sheet indicates the following featured in its construction:
22,825 cubic yards of concrete
« 200 miles of electrical wiring
17 miles of piping
» 960-foot curved wall, longer than three football fields, containing 158 precast panels weighing 48,000 pounds each.

Construction took 28 months, June 1997 to November 1999. The site also includes over four acres for parking 720 autos.
o ColumbusZoo and Aquarium (www.colsz00.0rg)

The City leases certain red estate, together with certain buildings and improvements located thereon, to the Columbus Zoological
Park Association (the Zoo). The City does not own the animals but, in partnership with Franklin County, continues to acquire
additional land for the Zoo; 178.3 acres in 2001; 48.9 acres in 2000. Prior to 1970, the Zoo operated as a division of the City.
Since 1970 the Zoo isits own separate political subdivision of Ohio with its own funding sources.

In 2001, the Zoo had over 1.3 million visitors. Membership at the Zoo exceeds 47,000 households. At the zoo, visitors can see
Manatee Coast; one of only three exhibits outside of Florida where people can view the West |ndian manatees.

« ColumbusBlue Jacketsand the Arena District

Development continued in the Arena Digtrict in 2001. 1n October 2000, The Columbus Blue Jackets, a privately owned franchise,
began play in the National Hockey League. Games were played in the Nationwide Arena, also privately owned, an 18,500-seat
arena capable of accommodating numerous sports events, entertainment and convention facilities.

Located in the Arena Didtrict, nearly 100 acres, the Arena s neighbors include parking facilities and the Arena Park with its 870 feet
long and 280 feet at its widest green space. Numerous restaurants and commercia office space are aready functioning. The Blue
Jackets and the Arena District met with great successin their inaugural year.

PROSPECTSFOR THE FUTURE
While the recent economy has brought its challenges, the City’ s future continues to be bright.

» The economic strength of Columbus lies in the imagination and inventiveness of its people. The presence in Columbus
of ingtitutions of education such as The Ohio State University, Columbus State Community College, Ohio Dominican
College, Capitd University, Franklin University, Otterbein College, DeVry Indtitute, Columbus College of Art and
Design and others, assure Columbus of atalented work force for continued economic development.

»  Unemployment continues to be low when compared to state and national levels. Stability of the City's work force, dueto
its high government, education and other service-oriented employment, would indicate a continuance of this comparison.
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» The City continues to enjoy major developments, both residential and commercial, in the downtown and throughout the
City, indicative of continued economic activity and a quality living experience.

« Population continues to grow. The U.S. Bureau of the Census indicated 711,470 inhabitants in Columbus in 2000
compared to 632,910 in 1990, an increase of 12.4% in the decade.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Accounting system and budgetary control:

The City's Charter states that the Mayor and the Auditor, officials separately elected and independent of each other, shall supervise
all departmental expenditures and shall keep such expenditures within appropriations. The Auditor performs a pre-audit of the
City's expenditures. Pogt-audits are performed by independent certified public accountants, not only of the City's financial
activities, but also of grant monies expended by private and quasi-public agencies acting as subgrantees of the City.

The Charter mandates other checks and balances. The most important of these, as it relates to the City's financia stability and
credit worthiness, states that no contract, agreement, or other obligation involving the expenditure of money shall be entered into,
nor shall any legidation be passed by the Council, unless the Auditor first certifies that money required for the obligation is in the
Treasury to the credit of the fund from which the expenditure isto be paid, or isin the process of collection.

The City's fiscal accounting system also provides for checks and balances between the Auditor and the Treasurer. A reconciliation
between the two offices records as of December 31, 2001 is shown later in thisletter under Cash management.

Budgetary control is maintained at Object Level One for each division within each fund via legidation approved by the Council.
The various objects are:

01 Persona services 05 Other

02 Materidsand supplies 06 Capitd outlay
03 Contractua services 07 Interest on debt
04 Debt principal payments 10 Transfers

Lower object levels two and three are accounted for and reported internally. Estimated amounts must be encumbered prior to
release of purchase orders or other contractsto vendors. Encumbrances in excess of the available object level one appropriation are
not approved unless additional appropriations are authorized. Except for Capital Projects Funds (initial appropriations continue
until expended or modified by Council), unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal (calendar) year.

The City's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the
assets of the government are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.

The Council authorizes appropriations, both original and supplemental. Supplemental appropriations are common. Appropriations
are further explained in Note A.

Internal controls:

Internal controls begin with separation of powers,; separately eected officias such as Mayor, Council, City Attorney, and City
Auditor. A structure of departments and divisions where duties are separated to the extent practicable also provides controls. An
independent Civil Service Commission establishes hiring (and firing) policies. Disbursements by the Treasurer can only be
pursuant to a warrant of the City Auditor. Warrants can only be issued pursuant to written authorization of a department director.
These and other control features are prescribed by the City's Charter.
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General Fund:

The growth in both population and land area that the City experiences continue to exert demands for its services. The City has
maintained growth and financial stability, as exhibited in itsfinancial statements. The General Fund balance at December 31, 2001
equates to 17.5% of expenditures and transfers out for 2001. A five-year comparison of its General Fund activity follows. Five-
year comparisons, as compared to a shorter period, will assist the reader in more meaningful analyses. The revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balance shown in these comparisons are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting as applicable to
government.

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Baance
1997-2001
(in thousands)
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Revenues:
Income taxes $ 326,259 315,610 308,223 286,034 262,072
Property taxes 40,881 39,049 34,403 33,495 31,856
Investment earnings 27,060 32,745 17,821 19,777 17,013
Licenses and permits 11,538 10,700 11,972 9,692 7,805
Shared revenues 61,932 61,982 56,661 57,317 48,414
Chargesfor services 26,758 27,099 24,420 24,764 23,819
Fines and forfeits 12,924 12,501 12,468 12,766 13,294
Miscellaneous 5,651 11234 4,339 16,636 8,556
Total revenues 513,003 511,010 470,307 460,481 412,829
Expenditures:
General government 65,781 58,116 53,327 58,933 48,000
Public service 54,860 49,003 46,971 43,114 39,736
Public safety 339,129 319,831 287,800 261,675 254,323
Development 29,800 27,165 25,567 20,809 18,696
Capital outlay 3,181 7,552 8,486 10,721 7,869
Total expenditures 492,751 461,667 422,151 395,252 368,624
Excess of revenues over expenditures 20,252 49,343 48,156 65,229 44,205
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfersin (out):
Tipping fees 15,701 11,343 10,878 10,328 11,064
Helicopters - 1,270 1,002 2,325 1,895
Health (19,499) (20,560) (29,027) (17,230) (15,846)
Recreation and parks (29,760) (29,586) (27,739) (27,151) (24,699)
Other (3,242 (4,109) (4,967) (4,788) (3.764)
Total other financing sources (uses) (36.800) (41,642) (39.853) (36.516) (31.350)
Excess (deficit) of revenues and
other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses (16,548) 7,701 8,303 28,713 12,855
Fund balance at beginning of year 111,913 104,212 95,909 67,196 54,341
Fund balance at end of vear $ 95.365 111,913 104.212 95.909 67.196
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Revenue narrative;
Brief descriptions of the City's major revenue components follow.
Income taxes:

The City'sincome tax continues to be its primary source of revenue. The tax appliesto al wages, sdaries, commissions, and other
compensation paid by employers and/or the net proceeds from the operation of a business, profession, or other enterprise activity.
The initial tax rate of .5%, collected in 1948, was increased to 1% in 1956, 1.5% in 1971, and to the current 2% in 1983. Income
tax rates of cities and villages within the State of Ohio are limited to a maximum of 1%, unless specifically approved by a majority
of the resident voters of the respective city or village. There are 555 cities and villages within the State of Ohio that now levy a
local incometax. Ratesrange from .225% to 2.5%.

Loca school digtricts in the State of Ohio are also permitted to levy an income tax, but only with the approva of a mgjority of
voterswithin the digtrict. Ohio has 611 school districts; 121 have an income tax. Rates range from 0.5% to 2.0%.

Approximately 83.6% of the City's income tax collected in 2001 were via employers withholding the tax from employees' earnings
and remitting the tax to the City on a statutorily prescribed schedule. Approximately 11.8% of collections originated from business
accounts and 4.6% from independently employed individua taxpayers. Depending on the amount withheld, employers must remit
to the City on a semi-monthly, monthly, or quarterly frequency, with the largest amounts being remitted semi-monthly.

One quarter of the revenue from this tax is accounted for in a Debt Service Fund and is primarily used for servicing debt pertaining
to non-enterprise type capital improvements. Tipping fees for disposal of garbage collected by the City are also paid from thisfund
on the City's budget basis of accounting. On the modified accrual basis of accounting, such tipping fee amounts are transferred to
the General Fund and expended as public service expenditures. Three-quarters of income tax revenues are used for General Fund
purposes. Income tax revenues on the budget basis represent 2001 collections of $453.4 million less refunds of $14.4 million for a
net amount of $439.0 million. Income tax revenues on the modified accrua basis of accounting, net of refunds, were $435.0
million and are reported in the following funds:
(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
General $ 326,259 315,610 308,223 286,034 262,072
Debt Service 108,727 105,202 102,741 95,343 87,357
Tota $ 434986 420,812 410,964 381,377 349,429
% increase over prior year 3.37 2.40 7.76 914 747

Debt service fundsin 2001 represent General Bond Retirement ($94,439) and Specia Income Tax ($14,288). A ten-year history of
the income tax revenue and cash collections, net of refunds, appearsin the Statistical Section of this report.

The City acts as collection agent for 9 other cities and villages in the central Ohio area. Fees collected by the City for these services
totaled $572,558 in 2001, and are accounted for in the General Fund as charges for services.

Property taxes.

Property taxes in Ohio are levied and collected by its 88 counties. The City lies partialy within three of these counties: Franklin,
Fairfield, and Delaware. After collection, the counties distribute portions of these taxes to the politica subdivisions (cities, villages,
townships, etc.) located within their geographic borders. Property taxes for the City represent a tax rate of 3.14 mills ($3.14 per
$1,000 of taxable valuation) applied to the assessed value of property located in the City. Assessed values represent approximately
35% of appraised values. Thisrate, 3.14 mills, has remained unchanged since 1956.

Increases in this rate can only occur with approval of the City's voters. Revenues from property taxes are used for General Fund
operations, including a partial provision, 0.60 mills, for current police and fire pension costs.
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Revenues produced by this millage for the General Fund were:

(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
General Fund $ 40,881 39,049 34,403 33,496 31.856
% increase (decrease) from prior year 4.69 13.50 271 5.15 572 %

Assessed values of taxable property at December 31, 2001 within the City, in the counties in which the City is located, are as
follows:
(in thousands)

Franklin $ 12,850,828
Fairfield 119,604
Delaware 137,422
Total $ 13,107,854

Tota assessed values in the City over the past ten years are shown below. Values of Franklin, Fairfield, and Delaware counties are
included in years where applicable.

For Tax Assessed % Increase
Fiscal CollectionIn Vaue From
1992 1993 $ 8,586,025 2.58
1993 1994 9,178,539 6.90
1994 1995 9,266,927 0.96
1995 1996 9,483,390 2.34
1996 1997 10,130,785 6.83
1997 1998 10,483,853 3.49
1998 1999 10,972,327 4.66
1999 2000 12,397,530 12.99
2000 2001 12,939,074 437
2001 2002 13,107,854 1.30

Property tax collections have steadily increased over the period 1992 to 2001, with larger increases evident every three years. These
three-year increases result from comprehensive reappraisals of property that take place every six years, and less formal triennial
updates that occur the third year in between the six year reappraisals. Six-year reappraisals took place in 1993 and 1999, with the
resulting increases in property tax collections occurring in 1994 and 2000. In 1990 and 1996 triennial updates occurred. Property
taxes levied in 2001 but not collectible until 2002 are accounted for in the General Fund as accounts receivable and deferred
revenue at an estimated amount of $40.8 million. Additional data on property values and taxes appear in the Statistical Section of
this report.
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Investment ear nings:

The City's investment policies are discussed later in this letter under Cash management and in Note C. This source of revenue is
not conducive to year-to-year comparisons. Investment earnings are only deposited to the General Fund after all statutorily directed
earnings are deposited to the appropriate funds: enterprise funds, grant funds, etc. Earnings for the past five years have been:

(in thousands)

Funds 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Genera $ 27,060 32,745 17,821 19,776 17,013
General Bond Retirement 125 244 136 165 202
Specia Income Tax 108 - - - -
Other governmental 2,086 3,253 2,658 1,560 1,407
Total governmenta funds 29,379 36,242 20,615 21,501 18,622
Fiduciary - - - 15 60
Enterprise 8,024 7,544 7,700 9,993 9,857
Total $__ 37,403 43,786 28,315 31,509 28,539

Licensesand permits:

Licenses and permits are issued by the City to regulate activities related to building, health, and other business enterprises.
Increased collectionsin 1998 and 1999 are indicative of several major building projectsin Columbus in addition to increasesin the
rate of feesin May 1998. Over the past five years, revenuesin the General Fund resulting from licenses and permits amounted to:

(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Amount $ 11,538 10,700 11,972 9,692 7,805
% increase (decrease) from prior year 7.83 (10.62) 23.52 24.18 1950 %

Shared revenues:

Shared revenues in the General Fund include the taxes listed below which are levied and collected by the state or counties and
partialy redistributed to the City and other political subdivisions. Provided below is afive-year history of the City's share of these
revenues as reported in the governmental fund financial statement on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
State income, sales, corporate
franchise, and public utility taxes:
Loca government fund $ 46,881 44,867 41,750 40,247 36,657
Loca government revenue assi stance fund 4,080 3,984 3,822 3,609 3,299
Estate tax 9,972 12,125 10,152 12,493 7,544
State liquor fees 964 968 901 931 877
Cigarette tax and other 35 38 36 37 37
Tota $ 61932 61,982 56,661 57,317 48414
% increase (decrease) from prior year (.08) 9.39 (1.149) 18.39 6.38 %

Chargesfor services:

The City performs certain services for its citizens and other municipalities for which it charges various amounts. These services
include impounding, storing and selling abandoned autos; fire and police protection provided to certain suburbs; parking meter
fees; and various other services. Additionally the City's General Fund allocates certain citywide costs initially borne by the Genera
Fund to certain other funds (an interna cost alocation plan). These costs, $15.4 million in 2001, are alocated by charging certain
other funds a statutorily approved rate of 4 1/2% of their gross revenue.
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These revenues in the General Fund over the past five years have produced:

(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Amount $ 26,758 27,099 24,420 24,764 23,819
% increase (decrease) from prior year (1.26) 10.97 (1.39) 397 10.46 %

Finesand forfeits:

These revenues consist of fines and forfeits imposed by the Franklin County Municipal Court, and parking tickets issued by the
City's parking violation's bureau. Increased "prices' for parking tickets and various finesin 1997 resulted in the significant increase
in this revenue source during 1997.

(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Fines and forfeits $ 8,804 8,382 8,326 8,724 9,094
Parking ticket revenue 4,120 4,209 4,142 4,042 4,199
Tota $ 12,924 12,591 12,468 12,766 13,293
% increase (decrease) from prior year 264 0.98 (2.33) (3.97) 1625 %

Miscellaneous;

Miscellaneous revenues in the General Fund on the modified accrua basis of accounting consist of the following:

(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Hotel/motel taxes $ 2,735 3,764 3,571 3,385 3,153
Refunds and reimbursements 2,266 7,146 636 12,905 5112
Other 650 324 132 346 291
Total $ 5,651 11,234 4,339 16,636 8,556

Refunds and reimbursements in 2000 and 1998 include extraordinary refunds from the Ohio Bureau of Workers Compensation.
Total refunds for those years were $8.8 million and $18.7 million respectively. Proportionate shares of the refund were returned to
the respective funds from which the premium had been paid.

Expressed as percentages of total revenues, the major General Fund revenue components over the past five years are:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Income taxes 63.6 61.8 65.5 62.1 635 %
Property taxes 8.0 7.6 7.3 7.3 1.7
Investment earnings 5.3 6.4 38 4.3 4.1
Licenses and permits 2.2 21 2.6 21 19
Shared revenues 121 12.1 12.0 124 11.7
Chargesfor services 52 53 52 54 5.8
Fines and forfeits 25 25 2.7 28 32
Miscellaneous 11 2.2 0.9 3.6 21
Total revenue 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 1000 %
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Transfersin narrative:

The total amount of transfersin, $15.7 million, includes $15.1 million transferred from the Debt Service Fund to the General Fund
for the purpose of paying tipping fees. On the City's budget basis of accounting, these fees are paid directly from the Debt Service
Fund. Tipping fee costs appear as public service expenditures. On the City's budget basis of accounting, these costs were paid
directly from the Debt Service Fund. Note P provides details of transfers.

Expenditure narrative:

The practice of transferring monies from the General Fund to the Health Department Fund and the Recreation and Parks Fund, both
Special Revenue Funds, is a method used annually by the City to provide resources to these funds. It is appropriate, therefore, to
consider transfers out in the following analysis of the General Fund. After combining transfers out with expenditures, the major
Genera Fund components over the past five years are:

(in thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
General government $ 65,781 58,116 53,327 58,933 48,000
Public service 54,860 49,003 46,971 43,114 39,736
Public safety 339,129 319,831 287,800 261,675 254,323
Development 29,800 27,165 25,567 20,809 18,696
Capital outlay 3,181 7,552 8,486 10,721 7,869
Health (transfers out) 19,499 20,560 19,027 17,230 15,846
Recreation (transfers out) 29,760 29,586 27,739 27,151 24,699
Other (transfers out) 3,242 4,028 4,967 4,971 4,380
Total $__ 545252 515,841 473,884 444,604 413,549

Transfersout narrative:

The City's General Fund provides financial support to its Health department ($19.5 million) and to its Recreation and Parks
operations ($29.8 million). Financia activity of these two services is accounted for in Special Revenue Funds. Total expenditures
reported in the fund financial statements for these services were $37.5 million for the Health Department and $68.7 million for the
Recreation and Parks Department.

Other (transfers out) in the total amount of $3,242,000 includes $880,000 principal and $1,121,588 interest transferred to the Debt
Service Fund for payment of debt service due on the General Obligation Police and Fire Accrued Liability Pension Refunding
bond.

Expressed as percentages, the General Fund expenditures and transfers out over the past five years are:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
General government 12.0 11.3 11.3 13.2 11.6 %
Public service 10.0 95 9.9 9.7 9.6
Public safety 62.2 62.0 60.7 58.9 61.5
Devel opment 55 53 54 4.7 45
Capital outlay .6 14 18 2.4 1.9
Health (transfers out) 36 4.0 4.0 39 38
Recreation and parks (transfers out) 55 5.7 59 6.1 6.0
Other (transfers out) 0.6 0.8 1.0 11 11
Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 %

Public safety, primarily police and fire services, continues to be the dominant expenditure function of the General Fund.
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General government:

* Mayor

» City Council

« City Treasurer

» City Attorney

* Real Estate

» City Auditor

* [ncome Tax

* Municipa Court Judges

* Municipal Court Clerk

* Civil Service Commission

» Community Relations Commission
* Equal Business Opportunity Director
» Office of Education

« Finance Director

* Purchasing

* Human Resources

* Technology Director

* Information Services

* Telecommunications

Public service:

* Service Director

» Congtruction Inspection

* Engineering and Construction

* Facilities Management

* Fleet Management

* Refuse Collection

» Traffic Engineering and Parking

Public safety:
* Safety Director
» Communications

* Fire
* Police
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While not necessarily represented in each of the City's funds, expenditures by function used in this report represent the
following City divisions:

Development:
« Building and Development Services
 Department Administration
« Economic Devel opment and Planning Services
* Housing and Community Services

Capital Outlay:

 Expenditures for capital assetswith estimated
useful lives of five years or more.

Health
* General Fund monies of $19,499,000 were
transferred to the Health Department in 2001.
Recreation and parks:
* General Fund monies of $29,760,000 were
transferred to the Recreation and Parks Department
in 2001.
Public utilities:

« Public Utilities Director
* Storm Sewers

Other:

« Includes $880,000 principa and $1,121,588 interest
Transferred to the Debt Service Fund.



General Fund balances:

The City is required to maintain accounting records on a budget bass, as explained earlier in this letter. The Budgetary
Comparison Schedule — General Fund presented as Required Supplementary Information immediately following the notes to the
financia statements show the actual results of the budgeted general fund for 2001. A contrast in the two accounting methods and
their impact on General Fund balances is shown below. A reconciliation between the General fund changes in fund baance on the
budget basis versus the modified accrual basisis aso presented on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for 2001.

Genera Fund balances at December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Budget Basis.
Designated for future years expenditures $ 29,793 35,027 33,323 31,503 16,065
Undesignated 37,423 30,811 37,557 37,949 26,000
Total fund balance $ 67,216 65,838 70,880 69,452 42,065

Modified Accrua - GAAP Basis;

Reserved for encumbrances $ 17,347 27,317 21,148 17,606 14,154
Unreserved
Designated for future years expenditures 37,884 35,521 33,660 31,811 16,209
Undesignated 40,134 49,075 49,404 46,492 36,833
Tota unreserved 78,018 84,596 83,064 78,303 53,042
Tota fund balance $ 95,365 111,913 104,212 95,909 67,196

The following is a synopsis of General Fund revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance, in order to further demonstrate
the differing results of both the modified accrua - GAAP basis of accounting and the City's budget basis. Both bases are explained
earlier inthisletter and in Note A.

(in thousands, except %)

Revenues (2) (5) Expenditures (2) (5) Fund Baance
Year GAAP % Budget % GAAP % Budget % GAAP Budget
1979 (1) $ 115,930 - $ 117,021 - $ 118,419 - $ 118,371 - $ 4,595 3,053
1980 132,857 14.6 136,726 16.8 130,283 10.0 132,508 11.9 7,169 7,271
1981 138,209 4.0 143,646 51 143,557 10.2 147,505 11.3 1,821 3,412
1982 144,643 47 149,880 43 146,173 18 149,760 15 291 3,632
1983 160,615 11.0 164,481 9.7 156,673 7.2 164,861 10.1 4,233 3,152
1984 175,662 9.4 181,140 101 170,025 85 177,679 7.8 9,870 6,613
1985 (3) 201,253 10.1 195,213 7.8 193,299 13.7 193,989 9.2 17,824 7,837
1986 208,874 8.0 208,127 6.6 204,527 5.8 206,409 6.4 22,171 9,555
1987 226,704 85 231,140 111 217,881 6.5 222,790 79 30,994 17,905
1988 250,435 105 248,222 7.4 248,791 14.2 249,926 12.2 32,638 16,201
1989 261,017 4.2 261,238 5.2 263,445 5.9 264,799 6.0 30,210 12,640
1990 275,483 55 278,456 6.6 279,415 6.1 278,812 53 26,278 12,284
1991 286,867 41 288,615 3.6 287,923 3.0 287,026 29 25,222 13,873
1992 306,171 6.7 303,628 5.2 305,956 6.3 302,909 55 25,437 14,592
1993 336,320 9.8 319,006 51 329,245 7.6 316,937 4.6 32,512 16,661
1994 363,437 8.1 346,327 8.6 346,550 53 342,651 8.1 49,399 20,337
1995 378,620 4.2 371,842 7.4 366,322 57 355,862 39 61,697 36,317
1996 (4) 391,706 35 382,756 29 390,862 6.7 387,484 89 54,341 31,589
1997 424,654 8.4 407,210 6.4 411,799 54 396,734 24 67,196 42,065
1998 473,317 11.5 467,518 14.8 444,604 8.0 440,131 10.9 95,909 69,452
1999 482,187 19 467,761 0.1 473,884 6.6 466,333 6.0 104,212 70,880
2000 523,542 8.6 501,531 7.2 515,841 89 506,573 8.6 111,913 65,838
2001 528,704 1.0 532,823 6.2 545,252 57 531,444 49 95,365 67,216
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Notes: (1) Caendar year 1979 was the City's first Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial statements audited

by independent certified public accountants.

(2) Revenues and expenditures include transfers in and transfers out, respectively, except for transfers within the General
Fund (transfers to the Economic Stabilization Fund, the Anticipated Expenditure Fund and, beginning in 2001, $1.796
million of kilowatt hour tax transferred to the Electricity Enterprise Fund). Budget basis revenues also include lapsed
encumbrances of prior years, an extraordinarily high amount of $6.175 million in 2001 whereas amounts ranged from
$1.2 million to $2.7 million annually over the previous five years (1996-2000).

(3) GAAP revenuesfor 1985 include aresidua equity transfer of $7.9 million which is excluded in % growth calculation.

(4) GAAP fund balance for 1996 reflects a reduction of $8.2 million due to arestatement of prior year's fund balance.

(5) % columns represent % increase from prior year.

Grantsand subsidies;

Grants and subsidies received by the City are accounted for in the Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds. The five-year
history of the City's grants and subsidies reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting follow.

(in thousands)

Funds 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Special Revenue $ 69,923 52,134 49,246 52,778 45,500

Capital Projects 7,157 4,233 4,340 11,001 13,295

Total governmental funds 77,080 56,367 53,586 63,779 58,795

Proprietary—Contributed capital - - - 27 23
Tota $ 77,080 56,367 53,586 63,806 58,818

% increase (decrease) from prior year 36.7 5.19 (16.00) 8.48 27.60 %

Grants received by the City, the primary government, in excess of $2 million in 2001 follow. All were accounted for in governmental
type specia revenue funds.

« Medica Assistance Program viathe (in thousands)
Ohio Department of Aging (CFDA 93.778) $ 21,025

o Community Development Block Grant
Program via U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (CFDA 14.218) 11,585

«  Women, Infants and Children programs
ViaU.S. Department of Agriculture (CFDA 10.557) 3,767

«  Enpowerment Zone ProgramsviaU.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (CFDA 14.244) 3,120

e  Specid Programsfor the Aging via
The Ohio Department of Health (CFDA 93.045) 2,497

e Home Investment Partnership viaU.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development
(CFDA 14.239) 2,195
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Capital assets:

Capitd assets are defined by the City as assets with an individua cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of
five years. Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure (e.g. road, curbs, and gutters, streets and
sidewalks, and drainage systems) are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost (for certain assets acquired prior to
1960). Pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the historical cost of infrastructure assets (retroactive to January
1, 1979) are included as part of the governmental capital assets reported in the government-wide statements. Contributed capital
assets are recorded at their market value at the time of contribution. Capital assets are further described in Note F.

Enterprisefunds:

The City operates three enterprise activities: a Water system, a Sanitary Sewer system, and an Electricity distribution system, which
are accounted for in separate enterprise funds. As stated earlier in this letter, a fourth enterprise, airport services, is discretely
presented in this report as a component unit of the City. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises—where the City intends that the costs of providing goods or servicesto
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The City accounts for its
enterprise funds on the full accrual basis of accounting.

Following are the annual charges and rate increases (decreases) for the average Columbus resident/user of water and sewers over the
last ten years. An average Columbus resident/user is defined as a customer using 12,000 cubic feet of water annually. Water and
sanitary sewer charges are designed to provide resources for both capital and operating costs. Storm sewer charges are designed to
provide resources for storm sewer operating costs (maintenance) and certain, but not all, capital costs. Water and sanitary sewer
charges are accounted for in their respective enterprise funds. Storm sewer charges are accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund.

Water __ Sanitary Sewers —Storm Sewers Total
Moving
ten year
Annua %increase  Annual % increase Annua % increase Annual % %

Year charge (decreass)  charge (decrease) charge  (decrease) charge increase increase
1992 $ 22825 85 $ 173.80 99 $37.92 47.7 $339.97 12.6 74.8
1993 139.92 9.0 192.62 10.8 37.92 0.0 370.46 8.9 77.9
1994 153.72 9.9 207.44 7.7 37.92 0.0 399.08 7.7 89.8
1995 162.12 55 217.81 5.0 29.27 (22.8) 409.20 25 92.0
1996 168.12 37 224.35 3.0 19.68 (32.8) 412.15 0.7 83.6
1997 173.16 3.0 231.10 3.0 19.68 0.0 423.94 29 84.2
1998 179.64 37 228.70 (1.0 19.68 0.0 428.02 1.0 85.9
1999 183.36 21 228.60 0.0 19.68 0.0 431.64 0.8 79.4
2000 183.36 0.0 228.60 0.0 26.52 34.8 438.48 16 68.9
2001 183.36 0.0 228.60 0.0 29.88 12.7 441.84 0.8 46.3

The City's enterprises are not subject to rate review or determination by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio or any similar
regulatory body. The City's Council has the necessary authority to establish appropriate user rates when needed. The rates are
reviewed and established by the Council annually. The frequency and amounts of rate setting authority lies solely with the City's
Council.

26



Water:

The City’s Water enterprise serves the residents of the City and the vast majority of suburban communities in the Columbus vicinity.
The population of the service areaiis estimated at 1,000,000. The Water enterprise serves 249,258 customers.

The City obtains its raw water supply from rivers, reservoirs and wells. The enterprise has completed a regional water resource
project titled Water Beyond 2000 which is used as a guide to develop additional water supply, treatment facilities, and distribution
components as dictated by increasing demand. Future supply requirements will be addressed through a combination of demand
management efforts, expansion of the existing South Wellfield and construction of upground reservoirs aong the Scioto River north
of the City. All necessary land for the South Wellfield Expansion and the upground reservoirs has been purchased.

The Water enterprise operates three treatment plants. A summary of the historical pumpage over the last five years follows:

(in millions of gallons)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Minimum day 109 119 110 109 110
Maximum day 203 184 209 193 180
Average day 143 139 145 136 133
Total year's pumpage 52,038 51,037 53,009 49,656 48,530

The enterprise operates one of the most sophisticated water laboratories in the nation. The lab has maintained its EPA certification
continually since the certification process began in 1976 pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974. On a semiannua basis,
the lab must conduct various water study sample tests. The certification covers both equipment and personnel and represents a
measure of quality performance. Test results are designed to be defensiblein court as accurate data. The staff is fully supported with

state of the art equipment. Their primary responsibility isto assure that the Water enterpriseis, and will remain, in compliance with
all federal, state and local requirements.

A five-year comparison of certain Water enterprise data is shown below:

(in thousands, except for number of employees)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Assets $ 447,038 433,298 447,912 454,536 430,838
Net assets 156,901 147,990 139,156 126,146 111,692
Operating revenues 96,488 93,803 97,295 97,110 91,006
Operating expenses (78,679) (72,781) (73,420) (69,821) (67,182)
Operating income 17,809 21,022 23,875 27,289 23,824
Nonoperating
Interest income 4,018 2,106 2,818 3,073 3,684
Interest expense (12,451) (24,363) (15,987) (15,846) (16,1112)
Other, net (465) 69 2,304 (75) -
Change in net assets/net income 8,911 8,834 13,010 14,441 11,396
Number of employees 544 547 576 593 588

All bonds of the Water enterprise are paid from Water enterprise revenues.
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Sewer:

The City's Sewer enterprise also serves the metropolitan area with approximately 239,264 customers, both residential and
commercial. Included in the total sewer system are 2,288 miles of sanitary sewers, 1,632 miles of storm sewers, and 202 miles of

combined sanitary/storm sewers. The costs and related financial activities of sanitary and combined sewers are accounted for in the
Sewer Enterprise Fund.

Revenues and expenditures relating to the maintenance of the storm sewers are accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund.
Expenditures related to storm sewers capita outlay are accounted for in Capital Projects Funds.

The Sewer enterprise operates two treatment plants. During 2001 treatment data was as follows.

(millions of gallons per day)

Southerly Jackson
Plant Pike Plant Total
Minimum day 59.4 545 1139
M aximum day 149.0 109.9 258.9
Average day 90.2 70.0 160.2
M aximum capacity 180.0 110.0 290.0

When the Jackson Pike plant reaches capacity the excess automatically flows through connectors to the Southerly plant.

A five-year comparison of certain Sewer enterprise datais shown below:

(in thousands, except for number of employees)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Assets $ 999,402 931,126 925,368 926,938 880,253
Net assets 444,199 431,509 412,821 397,490 370,511
Operating revenues 115,652 116,570 117,041 123,268 116,899
Operating expenses (85,328) (79,224) (80,590) (76,780) (71,713)
Operating income 30,324 37,346 36,451 46,488 45,186
Nonoperating
Interest income 3,585 4,488 4,069 5,832 4,796
Interest expense (20,757) (23,145) (25,110) (25,501) (23,564)
Other, net (462) - (79) (26) -
Change in net assets/net income 12,690 18,689 15,331 26,803 26,418
Number of employees 544 571 589 588 585

All bonds and notes of the Sewer enterprise are paid from Sewer enterprise revenues.
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Electricity:

The City owns and operates an Electricity distribution system and accounts for it in the Electricity Enterprise Fund. The system had
itsorigin in the 1890's and generated el ectricity from burning coal. The initial sole purpose for its existence wasto light the streets of
the City. In response to environmental concerns, the City ceased burning coal in 1977 and ceased generating electricity. The City
continued distributing electric power by purchasing al of its needed power from privately owned utilities.

After alengthy construction period, the City's solid waste resource recovery facility, a refuse derived fuel power plant, with capital
costs of approximately $200 million, began operations in the fourth quarter 1983. On April 1, 1993, the City leased the trash
burning power plant and related transfer stations (the Plant) to the Solid Waste Authority of Central Ohio (SWACO), a separate and
distinct political sub-division of the State of Ohio. The annual lease payments to the City were to be in the amount of the related
debt service requirements on bonds that were issued for the construction of the Plant. This lease resulted in the removal of certain
real and personal property assets from the Electricity Enterprise Fund with origina costs totaling $205.5 million of which $3.4
million was transferred to the then General Fixed Asset Account Group. The lease was accounted for in the Electricity Enterprise
Fund as a capital lease in accordance with Statement No. 13 of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting for Leases.
Due to a series of federa court decisions and U.S. EPA decisions the Plant ceased operations at the end of 1994. The City then
began, in 1995, to buy al of its power from sources other than SWACO. The City's Electricity distribution system has 13,277
residential and commercia customers.

As indicated above the Plant ceased operationsin December 1994. The Plant no longer burns garbage nor generates electricity and
therefore does not receive any income. It provides no service and produces no product. SWACO continues, however, to operate a
landfill. The City is SWACO'slargest customer at the landfill and in 2001 paid SWACO $11.1 million for landfill tipping fees.

At the end of 1994, upon the closing of the Plant, its associated direct financing lease was no longer deemed to be an Electricity
Enterprise Fund asset nor were the general obligation bonds related thereto considered an Electricity Enterprise Fund liability. The
City, therefore, in December 1994 transferred the direct financing lease (the asset) and the general obligation bonds related thereto
(theliability) to the Debt Service Fund and the then General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, respectively.

As explained further in Note H the City and SWACO again amended the lease in 1998. The City agreed to continue to deliver its
garbage to the SWACO landfill and to reduce the liahility of SWACO to the City to 65%, as opposed to 100%, of the City's
remaining Plant related debt service at January 1, 1995. SWACO agreed to ensure landfill capacity until the year 2025 and to
ingtitute a new garbage fee, which would be paid to the City. In 2001 the City recognized $13.9 million of revenue from SWACO,;
accounted for as miscellaneous revenue (rent) in the Specia Income Tax Debt Service Fund.

A detailed computation of the City’slease receivable at December 31, 2001 is shown in Note H.
Rates charged to customers are determined solely by the City's Council after recommendation by the Electricity Enterprise

management. Council’s determination is final and is not subject to review or approva by any other regulatory body. Rates are,
however, subject to market driven competition provided by the private electric utility in the area.
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A five-year comparison of certain Electricity enterprise datais shown below:

(in thousands, except for number of employees)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Assets $ 86,818 99,943 99,639 97,497 97,059
Fund equity (deficit) 14,020 13,027 3,938 (985) (3,151)
Operating revenues 52,560 50,590 47,378 44,614 42,510
Operating expenses (50,758) (44,122) (49,860) (39,657)  (36,281)
Operating income (10ss) 1,802 6,468 (2,482) 4,957 6,229
Nonoperating
Interest income 421 950 812 1,088 1,376
Interest expense (3,138) (3,840) (3,460) (3,899) (3,561)
Other, net (92 - (48) (186) -
Operating transfersin 2,000 5511 10,100 - -
Change in net assets/net income 993 9,089 4,922 1,960 4,044
Number of employees 115 123 143 152 147

Component Unit: ColumbusMunicipal Airport Authority (CMAA) (www.port-columbus.com)

CMAA is an independent, special purpose political subdivision of the State of Ohio. CMAA was created in August 1990, pursuant
to the provisions of Chapter 4582, Ohio Revised Code (ORC), as a body corporate and politic. On November 10, 1991, the transfer
date, CMAA began operations under a use agreement with the City for the purpose of providing air transportation to the genera
public. On this date the City transferred the use of all assets and liabilities of the Airport Enterprise Fund to CMAA. This transfer
was recorded at the net book value. Asa palitical subdivision, CMAA isdistinct from, and is not, an agency of the State of Ohio or
any other local governmental unit.

CMAA is governed by a nine-member Board of Directors (the Board) appointed by the Mayor of the City subject to approval of the
City Council. Members of the Board are ligible for reappointment. The Board controls the employment of the Executive Director
of CMAA who is responsible for staffing the respective departments and overseeing the day-to-day operations. CMAA administers
an airport system comprised of Port Columbus International Airport and areliever airport, Bolton Field Airport. Therefore, CMAA
is a component unit of the City whose financial statements are discretely presented in the City's Basic Financia Statements.
Complete financia statements of CMAA may be obtained from CMAA's administration offices at 4600 International Gateway,
Columbus, Ohio 43219.

Outstanding bonds at December 31, 2001 for airport activities are comprised of $23,435,000 of general obligation bonds of the City
and $124,031,000 of CMAA revenue bonds. Airport revenue bonds are a liability solely of CMAA and not of the City. CMAA
pays the principal and interest on the general obligation bonds via rent payments to the City on the same dates and in the same
amounts as the general obligation bond debt service requirements.
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A five-year comparison of CMAA component unit data is shown below (fiscal years 2000 and 2001 reflect the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 34):

(in thousands, except for number of employees)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Assets $ 446,146 433,104 407,762 389,495 279,455
Net Assets/ Fund equity 279,078 265,211 235,308 212,795 187,149
Operating revenues 55,453 52,390 41,560 40,753 38,723
Operating expenses (53,628) (39,222) (28,764) (26,334) (25,038)
Operating income 1,825 13,168 12,796 14,419 13,685
Nonoperating revenue (expenses), net 3,709 9,083 (3,329) (2,360) (3,384)
Income before capital contributions/Net income 5,534 22,251 9,467 12,059 10,301
Capitd contributions 8,333 7,651 - - -
Increase in Net Assets 13,867 29,902 - - -
Number of employees 276 267 249 239 228

Additional data on the City's enterprise activities are shown in the Notes and in the Statistical Section of this report.
Debt administration:
Summary of outstanding notes and bonds payable:

The City's outstanding notes and bonds represent indebtedness for capital needs only, except for the Police and Firemen's Disability
and Pension Fund Employers Accrued Liability Refunding Bond (P& F Bond), an unvoted general obligation bond accounted for in
governmental type debt, and the FNMA Single Family Mortgage Revenue Note. Notes payable and long-term obligations are
explained further in Note G. Following are some pertinent data, both current and historical, regarding the City's outstanding notes
and bonds.

Ratings:
In 1995 both Standard & Poor's Corporation and Moody's Investors Service, Inc. raised their credit ratings of the City's general
obligation bonds to AAA and Aaa, respectively. The City's bond ratings are further described in MD&A in the financia section

and on Table 29 in the Statistical Section of this report. More information on the City’s outstanding bonds and notes appears in
Note G.
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Sour ces of Repayment:

Long-term Notes and Bonds and loans payable; exclusive of the abligation under capitalized lease (Note J) of $3,460,000; in the total
amount of $1.857 billion will be repaid from the following sources:

Source/Description Amount %
(in thousands)
Debt Service Fund:
General obligation: Voted-unlimited fixed interest rate $ 541,218 291 %
Voted-unlimited variable interest rate 33,920 18
Unvoted-limited 205,575 11.2
Unvoted-limited/assessment 352 0.0
Revenue: Fixed Interest Rate 30,050 16
Variable Interest Rate 4,000 0.2
Tota Debt Service Fund 815,115 43.9
Housing mortgage revenue payments:
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Note (FNMA) 88 0.0
Total housing mortgage revenue payments 88 0.0
Internal Service Funds:
Information services:
General obligation: Unvoted-limited 4,395 0.2
Fleet management:
General obligation: Unvoted-limited 540 0.0
Tota Internal Service Funds 4,935 0.2
Enterprise Funds:
Water revenues.
General obligation: Voted-unlimited fixed interest rate 115,920 6.2
Voted-unlimited variable interest rate 47,695 2.6
Unvoted-limited 64,977 35
Revenue: Fixed interest rate 53,185 29
Total Water 281,777 15.2
Sewer revenues:
General obligation: Voted-unlimited fixed interest rate 193,821 104
Unvoted-limited 32,754 18
Unvoted-limited/assessment 629 0.0
Revenue: Fixed interest rate 83,320 45
Variable interest rate 51,600 2.8
OWDA/EPA loans 182,172 9.8
Total Sewer 544,296 29.3
Electricity revenues:
General obligation: Voted-unlimited fixed interest rate 18,815 1.0
Voted-unlimited variable interest rate 7,290 0.4
Unvoted-limited 36,706 19
Unvoted-limited/assessment 947 0.1
Revenue: Variable interest rate - 0.0
Total Electricity 63,758 34
Total Enterprise Funds 889,831 47.9
Total Primary Government (City) 1,709,969 92.0
Airport revenues:
General obligation: Voted-unlimited fixed interest rate 3,750 0.2
Unvoted-limited fixed interest rate 19,685 11
Revenue: Fixed interest rate 124,031 6.7
Total Component Unit (CMAA) 147,466 8.0
Total Reporting Entity $ 1857435 100.0 %
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A recap of the bonds and notes follows:

Amount
(in thousands) % %
General obligation:
V oted-unlimited
Fixed interest rate $ 873,524 47.1% 65.7 %
Variable interest rate 88,905 4.8 6.7
Unvoted-limited
Fixed interest rate 366,560 19.7 27.6
Total general obligation 1,328,989 71.6 100.0 %
Revenue:
Fixed interest rate
(including OWDA/EPA) 472,758 25.4 895 %
Variablerate 55,600 3.0 10.5
Mortgage revenue note-fixed 88 0.0 0.0
Total revenue 528,446 28.4 100.0 %
Total $ 1,857,435 100.0%

The general obligation bonds include those reported in the component unit—CMAA because they are general obligations of the
City. Revenue bonds of CMAA, while not an obligation of the City (the Primary government), are included above for purposes of
full disclosure.

Voted-unlimited general obligation debt represents debt authorized by a vote of the City's electors. The voters grant the City
unlimited authority to levy property taxes to the extent necessary to pay this debt, both principal and interest. However, the City
actually repays the debt, if Governmental Type debt from its Debt Service Funds and, if accounted for in an enterprise fund or the
CMAA component unit, from the respective enterprise fund or CMAA revenues. Resources in the Debt Service Funds are
primarily income tax with lesser amounts of certain recreation fees and special assessments.

Voted debt, therefore, carries a "double barreled” protection for its bond holders and represents, as indicated in the above table,
73.6% of the City's genera obligation debt; 52.7% of its total bonds and long-term notes. It has long been the City's policy not to
rely on, or impose, property tax leviesto service its debt. The City intends to continue this policy.

Unvoted-limited general obligation debt represents debt authorized by the City's Council without a direct vote of the electors. As
explained later in the Debt Limitations section of this letter, the City is limited in its property tax levying authority regarding
unvoted debt. This debt is also repaid from the City's debt service funds and from enterprise fund and component unit revenuesin
the same manner and from the same resources as the Voted debt described in the previous paragraph. All of the City's specia
assessment supported bonds and notes are Unvoted-limited general obligation debt.

The City may, at its option, convert the variable interest rate bonds to afixed interest rate. Furthermore, these bonds may be called
at the discretion of the City under specified procedures on any interest payment date. Note G describes various fundamentals of the
variable rate bonds and the City's obligations thereunder. The City has complied with all requirements of the bond agreements.

The revenue bonds accounted for as Governmental Type represents the City’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) bonds. The City's
liability for these bonds is limited to resources, money, collected via the TIF. Such monies are accounted for in Debt Service
Funds.

In conjunction with the issuance of the Water, Sewer and Electricity revenue bonds, the City entered into various trust agreements
with commercial banks. These trust agreements require that the City establish various funds for the cost of construction and
replacement of property and equipment and repayment of debt. Restricted assets, consisting of cash, investments and accrued
interest receivable, relating to the revenue bonds and certain general obligation bonds were held by both the City and bond trustees.
These assets and related liabilities are identified as restricted in the City's financial statements contained in this report and further
identified in Note G.
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Bond and Note History:

Outstanding bonds and notes consistently represent over half of the City's combined balance sheet liahilities, fund equity and other
credits. It is meaningful therefore to show a longer history of this debt. At December 31 of each of the last ten years outstanding

bonds and notes, including those of CMAA, were:

Bondsand
Year long-term notes
1992 $ 1,309,961
1993 1,363,284
1994 1,421,080
1995 1,441,001
1996 1,472,950
1997 1,550,476
1998 1,727,458
1999 1,786,762
2000 1,819,875
2001 1,857,435

Per capita debt:

(in thousands)
Short-term

notes

3,335
2,671
1,919
327
313

1,126
81
176
1541
1,830

Tota

1,313,296
1,365,955
1,422,999
1,441,328
1,473,263

1,551,602
1,727,539
1,786,938
1,821,416
1,859,265

Data on the net general bonded debt of the City for the period 1992 through 2001 appears in the Statistical Section of this report.
Such data at December 31 for the last five years is shown below. Population used in the calculations represents estimates by the
Mid Ohio Regional Planning Commission for 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2001 and the U.S. Census Bureau for 2000. Bonded debt

includes long-term notes.

(dollar amounts in thousands, except per capita debt)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Gross bonded debt $ 1857435 1,819,875 1,786,762 1,727,458 1,550,476
Less Debt Service Fund (160,083) (148,677) (135,216) (118,942) (88,053)
Less TIF revenue bond (34,050) (30,050) (30,050) - -
Less FNMA revenue note (88) (117) (589) (600) -
L ess payable from enterprise revenues:
General obligation bonds
Water (228,592) (218,966) (237,718) (255,150) (242,823)
Sewer (227,204) (196,991) (216,984) (234,319) (226,807)
Electric (63,758) (35,921) (37,262) (39,656) (41,504)
Revenue bonds and OWDA/EPA loans
Water (53,185) (57,205) (60,950) (62,765) (65,535)
Sewer (317,092 (291,638) (284,402) (282,354) (269,688)
Electric - (44,600) (47,600) (50,300) (52,800)
Less payable by CMAA:
General obligation bonds (23,435) (28,430) (33,395) (37,960) (42,924)
Revenue bonds (124,031) (122,165) (122,835) (123,475) (36,685)
Net general bonded debt $ 625,917 645,115 579,761 521,937 483,657
Assessed property value $ 13,107,854 12,939,074 12,397,530 10,972,327 10,483,853
% of net general bonded debt
to assessed value 4.78% 4.99% 4.68% 4.76% 4.61%
Population 720,230 711,470 698,495 696,849 684,928
Net general bonded debt per capita $ 869.05 906.74 830.01 749.00 706.14
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Debt limitations:

The City is within al of its legal debt limitations, as described in Note G and in MD&A. More data regarding the City's notes
payable and long-term obligations appear in Note G. Table 29 in the Statistical Section of this report contains data necessary to
meet the disclosure requirements of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)(i)(C) and (D) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Cash management:
Depository Commission and Treasury Investment Boar d:

The City's Treasury Investment Board and Depository Commission are entities created by the Columbus City Codes, loca
legidation. Both entities consist of the City Treasurer, Chairman; City Auditor, Secretary; and Finance Director, member. The
entities, therefore, provide checks and balances in the investing and depositing process. The Treasurer is appointed by the City
Council, the Auditor is a separately elected position, and the Finance Director is appointed by the Mayor. Formal legidation,
Columbus City Codes Sections 321 and 325 and guidelines set forth the duties and limitations of the entities.

Investment policies:

The City pools its cash, except for that held by revenue bond trustees, fiscal and escrow agents and certain Debt Service and
Agency Funds, for maximum investing efficiency. Each fund type's portion of the pool is reported on the combined balance sheet
as Cash and investments with treasurer. Earnings on the pool are alocated at the discretion of City Council after meeting the
revenue bond indenture and other requirements.

The City does not purchase any form of derivatives. The City does not engage in reverse repurchase agreements, nor does it
leverage its investment portfolio in any manner. Only eligible investments with remaining terms not greater than 2 years until final
maturity are purchased. Average days to maturity of the City's investments, exclusive of those held by bond trustees, at December
31, 2001 was 291.1 days. The City purchases investments only through member banks of the Federal Reserve System or broker-
dedlers registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The City's investment code and practices have consistently
protected the portfolio from unnecessary credit risks (safety) and market risks (liquidity) while providing a competitive yield. The
City’ sinvestment policies are further explained in Note C.

Permissible investments:

Permissible investments for the City's portfolio are limited to:

» Bonds, notes or other obligations of the United States government or its agencies for which the faith of the United
Statesis pledged for the payment of principal and interest thereon.

» Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligationsissued by certain federal government sponsored enterprises.
» The Ohio State Treasurer's Asset Reserve Fund (STAR Ohio) pursuant to Ohio R.C. 135.45.
» Bondsor other obligations of the City of Columbus, Ohio.

» Obligations of the State of Ohio or any of its political subdivisions not in default of principal or interest and which
have been approved asto their vaidity by nationally recognized bond counsel.

» Repurchase agreements that are collateralized with legally authorized securities as defined in Section 325.010 of

Columbus City Code and held in third-party safekeeping designated by the City Treasurer and in the name of the City
of Columbus.
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Descriptions:

Brief descriptions of the investments held by the Treasury Investment Board and Depository Commission at December 31, 2001
follow:

(in thousands, except %'s)

Eair Value
Amount %

Obligations of the U.S. government:

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 30284 3.9 %
Obligations of federal government sponsored enterprises:

Federal Farm Credit Bank Coupon Notes 126,877 16.7

Federal Farm Credit Discount Notes 4,985 4

Federal Home L oan Bank Coupon Notes 187,312 24.6

Federal Home Loan Bank Discount Notes 5,460 v

Federal Home L oan Mortgage Corp. Coupon Notes 100,376 132

Federal Home L.oan Mortgage Corp. Discount Notes 6,936 9

Federal National Mortgage Association Coupon Notes 106,335 14.0

Federal National Mortgage Association Discount Notes 5,931 .8
Street Light Assessment Note 1,830 2
STAR Ohio Investment Pool 20,576 2.7
Certificate of Deposit 30,000 39
Demand Savings 134,762 17.7

Tota $_ 761,664 100.0 %

A reconciliation of these assets between the financial statements in this report and those of the Treasury Investment Board and the
Columbus Depository Commission follows.

(in thousands)
Investments with treasurer at fair value $ 761,664
Agency funds cash and investment with treasurer (38,523)
Auditor warrants not yet presented for payment (32,706)
Cash and cash collection items with treasurer, net 4,283
Tota primary government cash and investments with treasurer
per financial statements $ 694,718
Cash and investments with treasurer per Balance Shest:
Governmental Funds $ 483,594
Cash and investments with treasurer per Statement of Net Assets
Enterprise funds-unrestricted 111,316
-restricted 66,902
Internal Service funds 32,906
Tota primary government cash and investments with treasurer
per financial statements $ 694,718

Safeguarding activities:

During 2001, al of the City's investments, except for investments with STAR Ohio, certificates of deposit and demand savings,
were held in book entry form at Federal Reserve banks for the accounts of certain member banks—agents of the City who held the
investments in the City's name. Based on criteria described in GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with Financial Ingtitutions,
Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, the City's investments are categorized as
"Category 1," the most secured custodial relationship.

The City deposits its funds only with local commercial banks as approved by the City's Depository Commission. All deposits,
except for deposits held by fiscal and escrow agents or trustees, are collateralized with eligible securities, as required by City
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ordinances, in amounts equd to at least 105% of the carrying value of the deposits. Such collateral, as permitted by State statutes
and City ordinances, is held in single financia ingtitution collateral pools at Federal Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the
Federal Reserve System, in the name of the respective depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral againgt al of the public
depositsit holds. One approved letter of credit also serves as collateral.

The revenue bond agreements of the Water and Sewer enterprises require certain cash and investments to be maintained and
managed by trustees. The respective trustees, bank trust departments, invest these monies at the direction of the City Auditor
pursuant to the revenue bond agreements.

All of the City's deposits and investments comply with city and state statutes and applicable bond indentures. Cash, investments
and the City's collateralizing process are further explained in Note C and are categorized therein in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 3.

Risk management:
Property and liability coverage:

With the exception of CMAA and the Conservatory District, the City assumes the liability for most property damage and personal
injury risks. Judgments and claims, including those incurred but not reported as of year end, are recorded when it is probable that
an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. The City does
reduce its exposure to high risks, however, through various insurances and empl oyee safety programs.

The City’'s division of Police operates a fleet of seven jet-powered helicopters. Five of these helicopters (models M/D 500E),
valued at approximately $1,000,000 each, are insured for both hull insurance ($950,000 per helicopter with $100,000
deductible) and liability insurance ($10,000,000 per occurrence; $1,000,000 per passenger not including crew; no deductible).
The other two crafts (models Bell OH-58) are insured only for the liability insurance. One accident occurred in 1998 causing
the City to pay the $100,000 deductible portion of the hull damage claim of one M/D 500E helicopter. No liability claim
resulted from the accident. No losses have occurred since 1998.

The City has insured several of its buildings with a maximum amount of $5,000,000 and a per occurrence deductible of $100,000.
This policy expires August 1, 2002. One loss of $100,000 occurred in 2002.

Other boilers owned by the City are insured in the amount of $5,000,000 with a per occurrence deductible of $25,000. This policy
expires September 24, 2002.

Sur ety bond coverage:

Policy

City Treasurer Fiddlity Bond $ 5,000,000 -0- 12-31-04
Deputy Treasurer Fidelity Bond 5,000,000 -0- 12-31-04
Police through rank of sergeant Honesty Blanket Position Bond 25,000 -0- 12-31-04
All other employees and

elected or appointed

officialsincluding all

officially appointed members

of City Boards and/or Faithful Performance 500,000 20,000 12-31-01

Commissions Blanket Bond 250,000 20,000 12-31-04

The City of Columbus assumes all other risks of generd liability and property/casualty claims.

Litigation experience:

As dtated in Note B, the City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits pertaining to matters which are incidental to performing routine
governmental and other functions. At December 31, 2001, claims approximating $196 million were outstanding against the City.

Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings, it is the opinion of management that ultimate resolution of such will not
have amaterial effect on the City'sfinancial statements.
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The City Attorney represents the City in al legal matters. Following is a summary of experience of the City over the last ten years
of those claimsresulting in litigation.

Cases Cases Paid by
Period filed Seeking closed Seeking City
1992 78 $ 81,443,503 104 $ 141,257,182 $1,321,710
1993 75 23,015,716 83 62,871,248 473,262
1994 117 224,834,669 218 73,065,819 726,534
1995 527 200,515,923 274 308,133,105 1,449,802
1996 587 374,030,995 253 360,217,314 1,895,454
1997 436 362,432,071 215 25,307,846 1,144,248
1998 300 95,962,919 369 383,901,846 3,055,966
1999 231 79,002,119 343 76,583,495 3,337,192
2000 255 111,909,000 279 498,431,450 1,098,284
2001 246 56,255,348 401 106,040,956 669,670

Casesfiled and cases closed subsequent to 1994 include those cases not seeking monetary damages.

The City Code permits department heads to settle and pay small claims against the City in amounts not to exceed $2,500 per claim.
The City Attorney can settle claims not exceeding $20,000. Claims greater than $20,000 require approval of a majority of the full
Council. The above table represents only those claimsresulting in litigation.

The United States Department of Justice (DQJ), in 1999, filed suit against the City of Columbus. The DOJ claims that the City’s
division of Police has engaged in a pattern or practice of civil rights violations. If the DOJ position prevails there would be certain
increased costs to the City, an amount impossible to determine at present.

Other:

The City provides medical, dental and vision coverage for its employees on a sdf-insurance basis. Expenses for claims are
recorded on a current basis based on an actuarially determined charge per employee. Financia activity recording claims and the
payment thereof is accounted for in an Interna Service Fund.

Workers compensation claims are covered through the City's participation in the State of Ohio's program.
Deficit fund equities:

As indicated earlier in this letter under Accounting system and budgetary control, the City Charter provides that no contract,
agreement or other obligation involving the expenditure of money shall be entered into unless the Auditor first certifies to the
Council that the money required for such contract, agreement, obligation or expenditure isin the Treasury, to the credit of the fund
from which it isto be drawn, and not appropriated for any other purpose, or isin the process of collection.

Fund deficits may occur on the City's budget basis of accounting when encumbrances are allowed to be recorded against accounts
receivable, usualy grants. Revenues are only recorded from these accounts receivable when cash is received. The accounts
receivable may, however, be considered as funds in the process of collection as described in the City's Charter.

On the modified accrual basis of accounting, a deficit exists in one nonmgjor Debt Service Fund. This deficit will be eliminated by
future charges for services.

Fiduciary Operations-Employee Retirement Systems:

State and local government employees in Ohio, with few exceptions, are members of one of five retirement systems. These
retirement systems were created pursuant to Ohio statutes and are administered by state created boards of trustees. Boards are
comprised of a combination of elected members from the respective retirement system's membership and ex-officio members from
certain state and local offices.
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These five retirement systems are:

Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), created in 1935, represents state and local government employees not
included in one of the other four systems. Management of the fund indicates membership of approximately 411,000 actively
employed members. At December 31, 2001 assets of this pension fund approximated $55.1 billion. More data on this pension
fund are shown in Note K of this report.

State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS), created in 1920, represents teachers in Ohio's public schools from
kindergarten through university level. Management of the fund indicates membership of approximately 158,000 actively
employed members. At June 30, 2001 assets of this pension fund approximated $52.8 billion.

Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (P&F), created in 1966, represents sworn personnel, not civilians, employed in police and
fire divisons in Ohio's local governments. Management of the fund indicates membership of approximately 28,000 actively
employed members. At December 31, 2001 assets of this pension fund approximated $9.9 hillion. All of the City's police and
fire officers are members of this pension fund. More data on this pension fund are shown in Note K of this report.

School Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS), created in 1937, represents non-teaching employees in Ohio's public
schools. Management of the fund indicates membership of approximately 118,000 actively employed members. At June 30,
2001 assets of this pension fund approximated $8.0 hillion.

State Highway Patrol System of Ohio (SHP), created in 1941, represents the state's highway patrol troopers. Management of
the fund indicates membership of approximately 1,500 actively employed members and assets of approximately $573 million at
December 31, 2001.

The City's civilian personnel are members of PERS. All sworn police and fire persons are members of P& F. Both PERS and P& F
are multiple-employer public employee retirement systems. Following are the number of City employees covered under the
respective state retirement systems at December 31 of the past five years.

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Police (P&F) 1,810 1,795 1,793 1,760 1,769
Fire (P&F) 1,518 1,530 1,524 1,445 1,371
Civilians (PERS) 5,634 5,644 5,696 5,548 5378
Total employees 8,962 8,969 9,013 8,753 8,518

The relationship of the City's payrolls to the retirement systems is demonstrated in the table below. The City's total payrolls for the
last five years were as follows:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(inmillions)
Payroll subject to PERS $ 206.3 197.3 189.0 177.3 166.5
Payrolls subject to P& F 188.5 1754 1574 148.2 140.8
Payrolls not subject to pension
benefit calculation 7.1 7.5 5.6 5.9 4.9
Totd $ 401.9 380.2 352.0 3314 312.2
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Over the past five years the City and its employees have paid the following amounts to PERS and P& F.

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(in thousands)
Paid by City to:

PERS $ 45208 37,655 41,370 38,787 36,441
P&F 54,255 50,909 45,175 42,550 40,446
Total paid by City 99,463 88,564 86,545 81,337 76,887

Paid by employeesto:
PERS 286 314 304 292 282
P&F 4,989 4,510 4,200 3,955 3,737
Tota paid by employees 5,275 4,824 4,504 4,247 4,019
Totd $_ 104,738 93,388 91,049 85,584 80,906

The City is current in al of its required contributions to the respective pension funds. The pension plans and other post-
employment benefits for health care are explained in Note K.

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION
Audits:

Financia statements of the City have been audited by nationally recognized firms of certified public accountants since, and
including, 1979. KPMG LLP performed these audits for calendar years 1979 through 1985. Ernst & Young LLP performed the
audits for the years 1986 through 1990. The City follows a mandatory rotation policy as prescribed by the State Auditor of Ohio.
As aresult of this policy and competitive proposals, KPMG LLP was selected to perform the audits for 1991 through 2000 at which
time Deloitte & Touche LLP became the auditor for 2001-2005. All audits, 1979 through 2001, have been conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and, beginning in 1980, aso the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

In the notes to Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs contained in this report, Deloitte & Touche LLP reports the following:

» Anunqualified opinion on the City's Basic Financial Statements.

» No reportable conditions and no material weaknesses in interna control were disclosed as a result of the audit of the financial
Statements.

« No materia non-compliance to the basic financia statements.

» No reportable conditions or material weaknessesin internal control over major programs.

« Anunqualified opinion on compliance for major programs.

o Oneaudit finding was required to be reported under OMB Circular A-133, section .510(a).

« That the City qualified as alow-risk auditee under Circular A-133, section .530.

» Nofindingsrelating to the Basic Financial Statements.

» Onefinding relating to Federal Awards. Thisfinding had no questioned costs related to it.

Deloitte & Touche LLP concluded, therefore, that the City “qualified as alow-risk auditee under Section .530 of OMB Circular A-
133”

Deloitte & Touche LLP issued, separate from the CAFR, additional comments, commonly known as a management letter.

The numerous Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the statements. The reader is encouraged to review them
thoroughly.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellencein Financial Reporting:

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Columbus, Ohio for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2000. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local
government financial reporting. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
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readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annua financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such
comprehensive annua financia report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable lega
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Columbus has received a Certificate of Achievement for the
last twenty-two consecutive years, fiscal years ended 1979-2000. We believe our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and are submitting it to GFOA.

Use of thereport and acknowledgements:

This report represents the twenty-third (1979-2001) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Columbus containing
financial statements audited by a nationally recognized firm of certified public accountants. Approximately 500 copies of this
report will be distributed. In addition to citizens in the community, the recipients will include city, state, and federal officias,
university students, schools, libraries, newspapers, investment banking firms, banks, rating agencies, etc. This report is also
available on the City's website. The Internet address is mmluﬂbum The report will be made available to any
person or organization requesting it. This extensive effort of preparation and distribution of this report fulfills the City Auditor's
god of full disclosure of the City's finances.

This report is issued by Hugh J. Dorrian, CPA, City Auditor. Special thanks and recognition go to Ms. Darlene Short, Chief
Accountant and Ms. Vikki Amicon, Assistant Chief Accountant, for their exemplary efforts in the preparation of this report. All
members of the City Auditor's staff and many of the City's other employees a so contributed to this effort. They al have my thanks
and respect for their work.

Respectfully submitted,

Hugh J. Dorrian, CPA
Auditor
City of Columbus, Ohio

HJD/jm
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
155 East Broad Street
Columbus, OH 43215-3611

Tel: (614) 221-1000
Fax: (614) 229-4647
www.dttus.com

Deloitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Hugh J. Dorrian
City Auditor
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Columbus, Ohio, as of and for the year ended December 31,
2001, which callectively comprise the City’ s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financia statements are the responsibility of the City’ s management. Our responsibility isto
express an opinion on the respective financia statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether
the respective financia statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the respective financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financia statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the respective financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective statement of net assets or financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Columbus, Ohio, as of December 31, 2001, and the respective changesin
financial position (and respective cash flows, where applicable) thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Asdescribed in Note A to the basic financial statements, in fiscal year 2001, the City adopted
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“ GASB”) Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis-for Sate and Local Governments: Omnibus, and GASB
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Satement Note Disclosures.

Management’ s Discussion and Analysis on pages 49 - 60 and the Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Genera Fund on page 121 are not arequired part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the City’ s basic financid statements.
The supplementary information listed in the accompanying table of contents as Exhibits A-1 through E-3
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not arequired part of the basic financia
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of
the basic financial statementsand, in our opinion, isfairly stated in all material respectsin relation to the
basic financial statements taken as awhole.

The introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the accompanying table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not arequired part of the financial statements. Such information
has not been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the City’s basic financiad statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Sandards, we have also issued areport dated May 13, 2002, on
our consideration of the City’ sinternal control over financial reporting and our test of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, grants and contracts. That report isan integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with
this report in assessing the results of our audit.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

May 13, 2002
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, OHIO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Columbus (the City), we offer readers of the City’ s financia statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with our letter of transmittal at the front of this report and the City’ s financial statements, which follow
this section.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City exceeded itsliabilities at the close of 2001 by $1.57 billion. Of this amount,
$318 million is considered unrestricted. The unrestricted net assets of the City’s governmental
activities are $169 million and may be used to meet the government’ s ongoing obligations. The
unrestricted net assets of the City’ s business type activities are $148 million and may be used to
meet the on going obligations of the City’ s water, sewer and electricity business-type activities.

» The City’stotal net assetsincreased $80.4 million in 2001. Net assets of the governmental activities
increased $57.5, which represents a 6.4 percent increase from 2000. Net assets of the business-type
activitiesincreased $22.8 million or 3.8 percent from 2000.

» Thetotal cost of the City’s programs increased $68.6 million or 7.1 percent. The cost of
governmental activities increased $54.5 million or 7.5 percent, while the cost of business-type
activitiesincreased $14.1 million or 5.9 percent.

» Asof the close of the current fiscal year, the City’ s governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $441.2 million. The combined governmental funds fund balance decreased $84.1
million from the prior year’s ending fund balance. Approximately $210.5 million of the $441.2 fund
balance is considered unreserved at December 31, 2001.

» The genera fund reported afund balance of $95.4 million at the end of the current fiscal year. The
unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $78 million or 14.3 percent of total general fund
expenditures (including transfers out). There was a $16.5 million decrease in the total general fund
balance for the year ended December 31, 2001.

» The City’stotal debt increased by $47.3 million (2.8 percent) during the current fiscal year. The key
factorsin this increase were the issuance of genera obligation bonds in the water and sewer
enterprise funds and the issuance of Ohio Water Development Authority revenue obligationsin the
sewer enterprise fund.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’ s basic financial
statements. The City’ s basic financial statements comprise three components. 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to

provide readers with a broad overview of the City’ s finances, in amanner similar to private-sector
business.
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The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City isimproving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’ s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changesin net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses
reported in this statement for some items will only result in cash flowsin future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or asignificant portion of their costs through user fees or charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public service,
public safety, development, health, recreation and parks, and public utilities. The business-type
activities of the City include three enterprise activities. awater system, a sanitary sewer system, and an
electricity distribution system.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also the Columbus Municipal Airport Authority (CMAA). Financia information for
this component unit is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself. Complete financial statements of CMAA, which includeits MD&A, may be
obtained from CMAA’s administration offices at 4600 International Gateway, Columbus, Ohio 43219.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 63 — 65 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund isagrouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories. governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activitiesin the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’ s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental fundsis narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’ s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 86 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the general bond retirement debt service fund, and the
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special income tax debt service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
83 governmental funds are combined into asingle, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor governmental fundsis provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere
in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 66 — 69 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sanitary sewer and electricity
distribution operations. Internal service funds are an accounting devise used to accumulate and allocate
costsinternally among the City’ s various functions, including, employee benefits self-insurance, fleet
management, information services, purchasing/contracts, telecommunication, and land acquisition. The
services provided by these funds predominantly benefit the governmental rather than the business-type
functions. They have been included within gover nmental activitiesin the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provided separate information for the
water, sanitary sewer, and electricity distribution operations. The water and sewer enterprise funds are
considered to be mgjor funds of the City. Conversely, all internal service funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund datafor the
internal service fundsis provided in the form of combining statements el sewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 70 — 73 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary fundsis much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 74 of this report.

Notesto the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to afull
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notesto
the financial statements can be found on pages 76 — 117 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’ s general fund budget.
The City adopts an annual appropriation budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. Required
supplementary information can be found on page 119 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and

internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplemental information.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 123 — 198 of this report.
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City of Columbus
Net Assets
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Governmental activitites Business-type activities Total
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

Current and other assets $ 851,516 884,965 243,760 206,982 1,095,276 1,091,947
Capital assets 1,226,194 1,145,044 1,290,753 1,258,615 2,516,947 2,403,659
Total assets $ 2,077,710 2,030,009 1,534,513 1,465,597 3,612,223 3,495,606
Long-term liabilities outstanding 825,437 828,280 891,443 841,284 1,716,880 1,669,564
Other liabilities 301,568 308,570 25,206 29,260 326,774 337,830
Total liabilities $ 1,127,005 1,136,850 916,649 870,544 2,043,654 2,007,394
Net assets $ 950,705 893,159 617,864 595,053 1,568,569 1,488,212
Invested In capital assets, net of

related debt 423,395 340,311 399,310 417,331 822,705 757,642
Restricted 357,872 424,725 70,059 47,235 427,931 471,960
Unrestricted 169,438 128,123 148,495 130,487 317,933 258,610
Total net assets $ 950,705 893,159 617,864 595,053 1,568,569 1,488,212

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. The City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $1.57 billion at the close of the most recent fiscal
year.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets (53 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assetsto
provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’ sinvestment in capital assetsis reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net asset (27 percent) represents resources that are subject to
restrictions as to how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($318 million)
may be used to meet the governments on-going obligations to citizens and creditors. It isimportant to
note that although the total unrestricted net assets is $318 million; the net assets of the City’ s business-
type activities ($148 million) may not be used to fund governmental activities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balancesin all three categories of
net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well asfor its separate governmental and business-
type activities.

There was a decrease of $66.8 million in restricted net assets reported in connection with the City’s
governmental activities. There was an $83.3 million shift from restricted for capital outlay to invested in
capital assets, net of related debt, as 2000 bond proceeds were used to complete certain capital projects
during 2001. The offsetting $16.5 million increase resulted from increased net assets restricted for debt
service.

There was an increase of $22.9 million in restricted net assets reported for the City’ s business-type
activities. Thisincreaseis due primarily to the issuance of new debt in the City’ s enterprise funds.
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City of Columbus
Changes in Net Assets
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental activitites Business-type activities Total
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

"Revenues--

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 113,789 116,534 262,111 255,364 375,900 371,898
Operating grants and contributions 92,006 78,201 - - 92,906 78,201
Capital grants and contributions 40,171 35,225 502 - 40,673 35,225 |
General revenues.

Income taxes 435,341 422,869 - - 435,341 422,869
"Grant and contributions not restricted

to specific programs 61,862 63,043 - - 61,862 63,043
TDroperty taxes 40,881 39,049 - - 40,881 39,049
Investment earnings 29,379 36,240 8,024 7,544 37,403 43,784 |
"Other taxes 12,317 13,503 - - 12,317 13,503 |
"Other 16,288 16,532 2,087 5,668 18,375 22,200
Total revenues $ 842,034 821,196 272,724 268,576 1,115,668 1,089,772 |
Expenses:

General government $ 84,303 76,378 - - 84,303 76,378
Public service 121,465 106,137 - - 121,465 106,137
Public safety 349,526 334,440 - - 349,526 334,440
Development 61,798 52,469 - - 61,798 52,469
Health 37,392 36,887 - - 37,392 36,887
Recreation and parks 73,442 68,846 - - 73,442 68,846
Public utilities 12,965 14,596 - - 12,965 14,596
Interest on long-term debt 42,497 39,161 - - 42,497 39,161
Water - - 91,741 87,285 91,741 87,285
Sewer - - 106,243 102,521 106,243 102,521
Electric - - 53,929 47,978 53,929 47,978
Total expenses $ 783,388 728,914 251,913 237,784 1,035,301 966,698
Increase in net assets before transfers 59,546 92,282 20,811 30,792 80,357 123,074
Transfers (2,000) (5,511) 2,000 5,511 - -
Increase in net assets 57,546 86,771 22,811 36,303 80,357 123,074
Net asset -- January 1st $ 893,159 806,388 595,053 558,750 1,488,212 1,365,138
Net asset -- December 31st $ 950,705 893,159 617,864 595,053 1,568,569 1,488,212

Governmental activities. Governmental activitiesincreased the City’s net assets by $57.5 million,

thereby accounting for 72 percent of total growth in net assets of the City. Key elements of the increase

are asfollows:

>
>
>

intergovernmental revenue and investment earnings.

>

Although net assets increased in 2001, the increase was $29.2 million less than the increase realized in
2000. Income tax revenue, which represents 53% of the City’s governmental revenue, increased only
3.47 percent (on acash basis) in 2001, the smallest increase in 40 years. Current year expenses were

Expense increased $54.5 million or 7.5% in 2001.

93% of current year revenues. This percentage is up from 89% in 2000.
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Operating and capital grants and contributions increased $19.7 million or 17.3 percent.
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Business-type activities. Business-type activitiesincreased the City’ s net assets by $ 22.8 million,
accounting for 28 percent of the total growth in the government’ s net assets. Key elements of this
increase are as follows.

» Chargesfor servicesincreased $6.7 million offset by atotal decrease in investment earnings and
other revenue of approximately $2.6 million.

» Expensesincreased $14.1 million or 6 percent in 2001; however, total revenues, before transfers
in, were $20.8 million greater than total expense.

Although net assets increased in 2001, the increase realized was $13.4 million less than the 2000
increase in net assets. |n addition, the percent of annual expense to annual revenue increased from 89%
in 2000 to 92% in 2001. It isimportant to note that the two largest business-type activities, the water
and sewer enterprises, which contribute 80 percent of the revenue to the business-type activities, have
not had rate increases since 1999 and 1997, respectively.
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Financial Analysis of the Gover nment’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental fundsis to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’ sfinancing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
agovernment’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of December 31, 2001, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$441.2 million, a decrease of $84.1 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $210.4
million of this amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’ s discretion. The remainder of fund balance isreserved to indicate that it is not available
for new spending because it has already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of
the prior period and for non-current loans receivable.

The general fund isthe chief operating fund of the City. At December 31, 2001, unreserved fund
balance of the general fund was $78 million, while total fund balance was $95.4 million. Asameasure
of the general fund’ s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures (including transfers out). Unreserved fund balance represents 14.3
percent of total general fund expenditures (including transfers out), while total fund balance represents
17.5 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City’ s general fund decreased by $16.5 million during 2001. Key factorsin this
decline are asfollows:

» Revenuesincreased only $2 million or .4 percent, while expenditures increased by $31.1 million
or 7 percent.

» Theunusualy small increase in revenues is attributed to the increase in income tax revenues for
2001. Inthe governmental fund statements, income tax revenue in the general fund, reported on
the modified accrual basis of accounting, increased only 3.37 percent. Thisincrease was the
second lowest increase since the City began reporting income tax on thisbasisin 1979. The
lowest increase in income tax revenue was realized in 2000.

» Theincrease in expendituresin 2001 was primarily related to salary increases resulting from the
settlement of union contract negotiations.

The general bond retirement debt service fund has atotal fund balance of $1.6 million. The net decrease
in fund balance during 2001 in this fund was approximately $46 thousand. The general bond retirement
fund is funded with income tax revenue at the level necessary to meet debt service requirements. The
decrease in fund balance is the result of a decrease in investment earningsin 2001.

The special income tax debt service fund has atotal fund balance of $141.2 million. The net increasein
fund balance during 2001 in this fund was approximately $16.6 million. One quarter of the City’s
income tax revenue is set aside to meet debt service requirements for governmental activity type debt.
Those income tax revenues not required in the general bond retirement fund, as noted above, are
recorded in the special income tax fund.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same information found in the
government-wide financia statements, but in more detalil.
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Unrestricted net assets at the end of the year amounted to $54.5 million , $90.2 million and $1.1 million
for the water, sewer and electricity enterprises, respectively. The growth in net assets in the water,

sewer and electricity enterprise funds was $8.9 million, $12.7 million and $993 thousand, respectively.
Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the
City’ s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final amended Genera Fund budget had total appropriation of approximately $2.6 million more
than the original budget. The total original appropriations, including those for transfers out, were $544
million, while the final appropriations were $546.6 million. The mgjority of the $2.6 million difference
was related to the method of accounting for an electricity kilowatt tax (transferred out to the electricity
fund) as proscribed by the state. This change accounted for approximately $1.8 million of the increase.
The remaining increase of approximately $800 thousand was for various items legislated by City
Council throughout the year. The increase in appropriation was budgeted from available fund balance.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’sinvestment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities as
of December 31, 2001, amountsto $2.5 billion (net of accumulated deprecation). Thisinvestment in
capital assetsincludes land, buildings, systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, park
facilities, roads, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems. Thetota increasein the
City’sinvestment in capital assets for 2001 was 4.9 percent (a 7.6 percent increase for governmental
activities and a 2.6 percent increase for business-type activities).

Capital Assets, net of depreciation
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental activitites® Business-type activities Total
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000

Land $ 165,036 152,083 36,536 36,177 201,572 188,260
Buildings 190,475 176,920 79,108 84,138 269,583 261,058
Improvements other

than buildings 81,758 77,772 1,028,955 1,011,964 1,110,713 1,089,736
Machinery and

equipment 87,847 92,824 33,481 41,733 121,328 134,557
Infrastructure 688,546 628,257 - - 688,546 628,257
construction In

progress - - 112,673 84,601 112,673 84,601
Total $ 1,213,662 1,127,856 1,290,753 1,258,613 2,504,415 2,386,469

'Governmental activities capital assets are exclusive of Internal Service Fund capital assets of
$12.532 million (net of accumulated depreciation) as of December 31, 2001. The Internal Service
Fund capital assets are, however, included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Major capital asset events during 2001 included the following:

> Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased $118 million.

» Business-type activity capital assetsincreased by $32.1 million due to: $5.8 million in water plant
improvements; $13.3 million in sewer plant improvements; $7.3 million in sewer line
improvements; and $5.7 million in other improvements.

» Governmental activity capital assetsincreased by $85.8 million due to: $60.3 millionin
infrastructure for streets and roadway improvements (including approximately $20.8 millionin
donated streets); $20 million in land, buildings and improvements related to the Parson Avenue
Health department building and the Carolyn Avenue Development department building; $4.6
million in land, building and improvements related to recreations facilities; and $900 thousand in
other improvements.

Additional information on the City’ s capital assets can be found in Note F on pages 92 — 93 of this
report.

Long-term debt. At December 31, 2001, the City, the primary government, had $1.71 billion of long-

term bonds and loans outstanding. All assessment bonds issued by the City are al'so general obligation

bonds ($351,500 in governmental activities and $1,575,739 in business type activities) and are included
herein. The remainder of the City’ s debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources

(i.e. revenue bonds).

City of Columbus
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds Outstanding
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental activitites Business-type activities Total
2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
General obligation bonds, notes
and capital leases $ 791,299 798,112 522,824 450,000 1,314,123 1,248,112
Revenue bonds 34,138 30,167 368,619 391,283 402,757 421,450
Total $ 825,437 828,279 891,443 841,283 1,716,880 1,669,562

Total long-term bonds and loans outstanding at December 31, 2001 increased by $47.318 million, a
2.8% increase, over December 31, 2000, primarily because of newly issued debt in the business type
activities.

During 2001 and in March 2002 the City refunded several of its outstanding bonds in order to achieve
favorable interest rates.

» InMarch 2001, the City issued general obligation bonds to refund previously outstanding revenue
bonds of the electricity enterprise business type activity resulting in an expected economic gain of
$979 thousand.

» InJuly 2001, the City refunded four of its general obligation bond issues being repaid by its
component unit, CMAA, resulting in an economic gain of $607 thousand.
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» In December 2001, the City refunded certain general obligation bonds outstanding with new
general obligation bonds resulting in economic gains of $3.976 million for governmental activities
and $98 thousand for sewer enterprise business activities.

» InMarch 2002, the City refunded certain sewer system revenue bonds with new bonds resulting in
an economic gain of $8.253 million for sewer enterprise business type activities.

The City’s general obligation bond rating by Standard & Poor’s Corporation and Moody’ s Investor
Services, Inc. are“AAA” and “Aaa’, respectively. The City’ s bond ratings are shown in the following
table.

Type Moody's Standard & Poor's
Genera Obligation Bonds— Fixed Rate Aaa AAA
General Obligation — Variable Rate Demand Bond AaaVMIGL AAA/AL+
1991 Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds Aa2 AA
1999 Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds Aa2 AA
1992 Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds Aa2 AA
1994 Sewer System Adjustable Rate Refunding Revenue Bonds Aa2/VMIG1 AA/A1+
2002 Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds Aa2 AA

The City iswithin al of itslegal debt limitations. The Ohio Revised Code provides that the net debt (as
defined in the Ohio Revised Code) of amunicipal corporation, whether or not approved by the electors,
shall not exceed 10.5% of the total value of al property in the municipa corporation as listed and
assessed for taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of municipal corporations cannot exceed 5.5%
of the total taxation value of property. The statutory limitations on debt are measured by theratio of net
debt to tax valuation and expressed in terms of a percentage. At December 31, 2001, the City's total net
debt amounted to 4.72% of the total assessed value of al property within the City. Unvoted net debt
amounted to 0.33% of the total assessed value of al property within the City. The City had alega debt
margin for total debt of $758,170,000 and alegal debt margin for unvoted debt of $677,915,000. The
aggregate amount of the City's unvoted debt is also subject to overlapping debt restrictions with other
political subdivisions. The actua aggregate amount of the City's unvoted debt, when added to that of
other political subdivisions within the respective counties in which Columbuslies, islimited to ten
mills. Thismillage is measured against the property valuesin each overlapping district. At December
31, 2001 the millage amounts were as follows:

Political subdivision Mills Required
of State of Ohio Franklin Fairfied Delaware
County County County
Direct
City of Columbus 4.2780 4.2780 4.2780
Overlapping
County 0.7494 1.6420 24313
School District 0.8348 - -
Totd 5.8622 5.9200 6.7093
Maximum millage permitted 10.0000 10.0000 10.0000

Additional information regarding the City’ s long-term debt can be found in Note G on pages 93 — 106 of
this report.
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Economic Factorsand Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City’ s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2002
budget. The events of September 11, 2001 and the impact of those events on the economy had a
significant influence on the objectives that the City set for the 2002 budget: jobs, safety and long-term
fiscal stability. With the uncertainty surrounding the economy, the City considered the impact on two
primary revenue sources: income tax revenue and state shared revenue. City Council decided that it was
important to: 1) continue the City’sinvestment in job creation; 2) put the highest premium on safety for
the people of Columbus and City employees; and 3) adopt a budget designed to promote long-term fiscal
stability by creating additional budget reserves. In order to meet the objectives of the 2002 budget, the
City recognized the need to continue its pattern of cost containment while pursuing new revenue
sources. Thetotal 2002 general fund budget is $532.9 million.

Request for Information

Thisfinancia report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show accountability for the money it
receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financia information should be addressed to the City Auditor’s Office, 90 West Broad Street,
Columbus, Ohio, 43215.
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City of Columbus, Ohio
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Exhibit 1

Component Unit

Activities Activities Total CMAA
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents with treasurer $ 516500 $ 111,316 $ 627,816 $ -
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal and escrow agents
and other 395 - 395 23,052
Investments 3,295 - 3,295 -
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 281,801 41,159 322,960 4,695
Due from other governments 50,084 - 50,084 1,926
Internal Balances (1,576) 1,576 - -
Inventory 1,017 13,424 14,441 -
Deferred charges and other - 1,243 1,243 2,280
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents with treasurer and other - 66,902 66,902 100,213
Cash and cash equivalents with trustees - 8,133 8,133 -
Accrued interest receivable - 7 7 -
Capital Assets:
Land and construction in progress 165,049 149,209 314,258 29,204
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,061,145 1,141,544 2,202,689 284,776
Total assets 2,077,710 1,534,513 3,612,223 446,146
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 31,329 6,661 37,990 8,241
Customer deposits - 321 321 198
Accrued wages and benefits 27,284 1,802 29,086 2,536
Accrued interest payable 5,941 4,984 10,925 3,192
Due to:
Other Governments 4,707 1,109 5,816 4,000
Other 7,099 77 7,176 -
Matured bonds and interest payable 1,511 - 1,511 -
Payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payable - 3,827 3,827 2,185
Other - 34 34 -
Accrued interest - 983 983 430
Deferred revenue 171,584 1,091 172,675 -
Accrued vacation and sick leave 52,113 4,317 56,430 -
Current portion of:
Capital Leases 860 - 860 -
Notes payable 257 1,005 1,262 -
Bonds payable 122,009 73,106 195,115 7,004
Long-term portion of:
Capital Leases 2,600 - 2,600 -
Notes payable 3,748 825 4,573 -
Bonds payable 695,963 816,507 1,512,470 139,282
Total liabilities 1,127,005 916,649 2,043,654 167,068
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 423,395 399,310 822,705 163,694
Restricted for:
Capital projects 120,272 62,909 183,181 38,376
Debt service 178,774 7,150 185,924 26,593
Other purposes 58,826 - 58,826 34,358
Unrestricted 169,438 148,495 317,933 16,057
Total net assets $ 950,705 $ 617,864 $ 1,568,569 $ 279,078

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Columbus, Ohio
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants

Charges for Grants and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions ~ Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 84,303 $ 45710 $ 17,006 $ 83
Public service 121,465 18,265 24,037 33,818
Public safety 349,526 5,858 2,159 1
Development 61,798 10,681 6,625 98
Health 37,392 7,562 11,799 -
Recreation and parks 73,442 8,014 31,280 6,012
Public utilitites 12,965 17,699 - 159
Interest in long-term debt 42,497 - - -
Total governmental activities 783,388 113,789 92,906 40,171
Business-type activities:
Water 91,741 95,427 - -
Sewer 106,243 115,007 - 227
Electric 53,929 51,677 - 275
Total business-type activities 251,913 262,111 - 502
Total primary government $ 1,035,301 $ 375,900 $ 92,906 $ 40,673
Component unit - CMAA $ 64,522 $ 55,453 $ - $ 19,083

General revenues:
Income taxes
Shared revenues
Property taxes
Investment earnings
Hotel/Motel taxes
Municipal motor vehicle tax
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total CMAA
$ (21,504) $ - $ (21,504) $ -
(45,345) - (45,345) -
(341,508) - (341,508) -
(44,394) - (44,394) -
(18,031) - (18,031) -
(28,136) - (28,136) -
4,893 - 4,893 -
(42,497) - (42,497) -
(536,522) - (536,522) -
- 3,686 3,686 -
- 8,991 8,991 -
- (1,977) (1,977) -
- 10,700 10,700 -
(536,522) 10,700 (525,822) -
- - - 10,014
435,341 - 435,341 -
61,862 - 61,862 -
40,881 - 40,881 -
29,379 8,024 37,403 3,565
9,287 - 9,287 -
3,030 - 3,030 -
16,288 2,087 18,375 288
(2,000) 2,000 - -
594,068 12,111 606,179 3,853
57,546 22,811 80,357 13,867
893,159 595,053 1,488,212 265,211
$ 950,705 $ 617,864 $ 1,568,569 $ 279,078
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and investments with treasurer
Cash and investments with fiscal and escrow
agents and other
Investments
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Due from other:
Governments
Funds
Interfund receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other:

Governments

Funds

Other
Interfund payables
Deferred revenue and other
Matured bonds and interest payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Bonds and loans payable, net

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Non-current loans receivable

Unreserved, reported in:
General fund - designated for future years'

expenditures

General fund - undesignated
Special revenue funds

Debt service funds

Capital projects funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilitites and fund balances

City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit 3
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)
General Other Total
Bond Special Governmental Governmental
General Retirement Income Tax Funds Funds
$ 95,531 $ 68 $ 181,098 $ 206,897 483,594
- - - 395 395
- 3,265 - 30 3,295
115,580 400 133,698 32,073 281,751
25,395 - - 24,689 50,084
4,140 - 139 343 4,622
- - 4,685 - 4,685
$ 240,646 $ 3,733 $ 319,620 $ 264,427 828,426
4,830 - 817 17,601 23,248
3,207 - - - 3,207
29 321 - 3,168 3,518
5,324 - 1,775 - 7,099
1,306 - - 3,379 4,685
114,033 255 124,626 35,045 273,959
- 1,511 - - 1,511
16,552 - - 2,338 18,890
- - 51,114 - 51,114
145,281 2,087 178,332 61,531 387,231
17,347 - 1,606 190,405 209,358
- - - 21,358 21,358
37,884 - - - 37,884
40,134 - - - 40,134
- - - (45,666) (45,666)
- 1,646 139,682 19,850 161,178
- - - 16,949 16,949
95,365 1,646 141,288 202,896 441,195
$ 240,646 $ 3,733 $ 319,620 264,427 828,426

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit 3.1
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit 3) $ 441,195

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets is
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities (excluding internal service fund capital
assets) are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those
assets consist of:

Land 165,036
Buildings, net of $85,139 accumulated depreciation 190,475
Improvements other than buildings, net of $37,649 accumulated depreciation 81,758
Machinery and equipment, net of $123,465 accumulated depreciation 87,847
Infrastructure, net of $166,664 accumulated depreciation 688,546
Total capital assets (See Note F) 1,213,662

Internal services funds (see Exhibit 5) are used by the City to account for the financing

of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other City departments or

agencies, generally on a cost reimbursement basis. The assets and liabilities of the

internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net

assets. Internal service fund net assets are: 24,381

City income tax revenue related to 2001 (and prior tax years) will be collected beyond

the 60 day period used to record revenue in the fund statements. Revenue and a

corresponding receivable for this amount are included in the government-wide

statements. 63,784

State shared revenue appropriated during the State of Ohio's fiscal year ended June 30,

2002 will be collected by the City in calendar year 2002. Revenue and a corresponding

receivable for the amount appropriated but not received by December 31, 2001 are

included in the government-wide statements. 38,591

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest
on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an
expenditure when due. All liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the
statement of net assets. Also, during the year the City issued some new debt and
refunded some if its existing debt. The amount of the old bonds has been reported as a
fund liability because the proceeds on the new bonds were received prior to year end,
while the old debt was not paid until January 1, 2002. The deferred amount on
refunding and premium received on the refunding were reported in the governmental
fund when the debt was issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized,
over the remaining life of the new debt, as an adjustment to interest expense in the
statement of activities.

Balances at December 31, 2001 are:

Accrued wages and benefits (2,963)

Accrued interest on bonds (5,927)

Due to other governments (1,500)

Compensated absences (51,130)
Capital lease (3,460)
Bonds and notes payable (764,089)
Unamortized deferred amount on refunding 1,010
Unamortized premiums (2,849)

Total long-term liabilities (see Note G) (769,388)

Total net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 1) $ 950,705

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

67


Short
67


REVENUES
Income taxes
Property taxes
Grants and subsidies
Investment income
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Shared revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Development
Health

Recreation and parks

Public utilities
Capital outlay
Debt service:

City of Columbus, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Exhibit 4

Principal retirement and payment of

obligation under capitalized lease -
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess(deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Proceeds from bonds and long-term notes - -

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balances—beginning of year
Fund balances—end of year

General Other Total
Bond Special Governmental Governmental
General Retirement Income Tax Funds Funds

$ 326,259 $ 94,439 $ 14,288 - 9% 434,986
40,881 - - - 40,881

. - - 77,080 77,080
27,060 125 108 2,086 29,379
- 100 - - 100

11,538 - - 8,595 20,133
61,932 - - 23,442 85,374
26,758 - - 46,438 73,196
12,924 - - 3,051 15,975
5,651 - 14,634 24,188 44 473
513,003 94,664 29,030 184,880 821,577
65,781 158 481 15,438 81,858
54,860 - - 41,034 95,894
339,129 - - 3,520 342,649
29,800 - - 22,621 52,421
- - - 37,529 37,529

- - 133 68,529 68,662

- - - 11,100 11,100

3,181 - - 115,552 118,733
63,663 1,109 - 64,772

- 42,061 405 - 42,466
492,751 105,882 2,128 315,323 916,084
20,252 (11,218) 26,902 (130,443) (94,507)
15,701 11,172 3,924 60,432 91,229
(52,501) - (17,101) (23,627) (93,229)
2,864 9,577 12,441

(36,800) 11,172 (10,313) 46,382 10,441
(16,548) (46) 16,589 (84,061) (84,066)
111,913 1,692 124,699 286,957 525,261
$ 95,365 $ 1646 $ 141,288 $ 202,896 $ 441,195

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit 4.1
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

*

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 4) (84,066)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities the cost of those assets, which meet capitalization requirements, is

allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

amount includes the adjustment for capital outlay expenditures capitalized ($116,018 of

total capital outlay of $118,733 met the capitalization requirements) offset by

depreciation expense ($51,309) in the current period. In addition, the City had

donated infrastructure of $21,097 in 2001 which is not reported in the governmental

funds. 85,806

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 283

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental

funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current

financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any

effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums and

deferred amount on refundings when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are

deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The amount is the net effect of

these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 52,335

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. (4,699)

Net losses of certain activities of internal service funds are reported with governmental
activities. 7,887

Changes in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 2) $ 57,546

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents with treasurer
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Due from other funds
Inventory
Deferred charges and other
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents with treasurer and other
Cash and cash equivalents with trustees
Accrued interest receivable
Capital Assets:
Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Due to other:

Governments

Funds

Others
Payable from restricted assets:

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued interest payable
Deferred revenue and other
Accrued interest payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Notes payable
Bonds and loans payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Construction
Debt Service
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Adjustment to consolidate the internal service fund activities.
Total net assets per the government-wide Statement of Net Assets

City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit 5
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Water Sewer Electricity Total Service Funds
40,262 $ 70,712 % 342 $ 111,316 32,906
15,082 20,725 5,352 41,159 50
- - 321 321 64
6,579 5,923 922 13,424 1,017
593 650 - 1,243 -
30,064 29,804 7,034 66,902 -
1,863 6,270 - 8,133 -
1 6 - 7 -
59,539 87,934 1,739 149,212 13
293,055 777,378 71,108 1,141,541 12,519
447,038 999,402 86,818 1,533,258 46,569
2,096 1,813 2,752 6,661 8,081
- - 321 321 -
716 59 334 1,109 -
521 602 227 1,350 -
- 4 73 77 -
249 3,290 288 3,827 -
- 139 - 139 -
- 25 9 34 -
497 486 - 983 -
- 427 664 1,091 -
1,985 2,341 658 4,984 14
816 768 218 1,802 5,431
1,864 1,825 628 4,317 983
- - 1,830 1,830 -
281,393 543,424 64,796 889,613 4,935
290,137 555,203 72,798 918,138 19,444
71,201 321,888 6,221 399,310 7,597
29,816 26,356 6,737 62,909 -
1,366 5,784 - 7,150 -
54,518 90,171 1,062 145,751 19,528
156,901 $ 444,199 $ 14,020 615,120 $ 27,125
2,744
$ 617,864

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Operating revenue:
Charges for service
Other

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Materials and supplies
Contractual services
Purchased power
Depreciation
Other

Total operating expense
Operating income

Nonoperating revenue (expe
Investment income
Interest expense
Other, net

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Income before transfers

Operating transfers in

Change in net assets
Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Adjustment to consolidate the internal service fund activities.

Total change in net assets

CITY OF COLUMBUS, OHIO Exhibit 6

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Water Sewer Electricity Total Service Funds
$ 95,427 $ 115,007 $ 51,677 $ 262,111 % 97,102
1,061 645 883 2,589 72
96,488 115,652 52,560 264,700 97,174
29,752 24,807 7,430 61,989 14,224
10,586 5,582 200 16,368 8,795
20,275 28,600 5,398 54,273 60,546
- - 33,217 33,217 -
16,749 25,760 4,412 46,921 5,639
1,317 579 101 1,997 6
78,679 85,328 50,758 214,765 89,210
17,809 30,324 1,802 49,935 7,964
nses):
4,018 3,585 421 8,024 -
(12,451) (20,757) (3,138) (36,346) (254)
(465) (462) (92) (1,019) 394
(8,898) (17,634) (2,809) (29,341) 140
8,911 12,690 (1,007) 20,594 8,104
- - 2,000 2,000 -
8,911 12,690 993 22,594 8,104
147,990 431,509 13,027 19,021
$ 156,901 $ 444,199 $ 14,020 $ 27,125
27
of business-type activities $ 22,811

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Columbus, Ohio

Exhibit 7
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Water Sewer Electricity Total Funds
Operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 96,580 $ 126,276 $ 52,084 $ 274,940 97,391
Cash paid to employees (30,139) (30,971) (7,563) (68,673) (14,282)
Cash paid to suppliers (30,751) (38,039) (37,813) (106,603) (69,831)
Other receipts 982 1,205 842 3,029 62
Other payments (150) (148) (317) (615) 99
Net cash provided by operating activities 36,522 58,323 7,233 102,078 13,241
Capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of land 49 93 42 184 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (18,480) (53,680) (5,114) (77,274) (592)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, loans and notes 28,340 93,360 36,624 158,324 -
Principal payments on bonds and loans (22,734) (37,992) (52,799) (113,525) (600)
Interest paid on bonds, loans and notes (11,867) (22,127) (1,900) (35,894) (256)
Operating transfers in - - 2,000 2,000 -
Net cash used in capital and related (24,692) (20,346) (21,147) (66,185) (1,448)
financing activities
Investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities - (175) (175) -
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities - 1,646 4,509 6,155 -
Interest received on investments 3,198 3,637 827 7,662 —
Net cash provided by investing activities 3,198 5,108 5,336 13,642 -
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15,028 43,085 (8,578) 49,535 11,793
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
including $47,272 in total restricted accounts) 57,161 63,701 15,954 136,816 21,113
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
including $75,035 in total restricted accounts) $ 72,189 $ 106,786 $ 7,376 $ 186,351 $ 32,906
(Continued)
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City of Columbus, Ohio

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization, net
Decrease (increase) in operating assets and
increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Receivables
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventory
Accounts payable - net of items affecting
property, plant, and equipment
Customer deposits
Due to other funds
Due to other
Deferred revenue
Accrued wages and benefits
Accrued vacation and sick leave

Net cash provided by operating activities

Supplemental information:

Noncash activities:
Change in fair value of investments

OWDA loan increase for capitalized interest

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 7 (Continued)

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Water Sewer Electricity Total Funds
$ 17,809 $ 30,324 $ 1,802 $ 49,935 7,964
16,749 25,760 4,412 46,921 5,639
570 362 (109) 823 —
1,153 3,430 365 4,948 1
518 535 148 1,201 199
— - 3 3 78
211 (86) ) 118 (48)
(271) (1,267) 889 (649) (534)
- - (3) (3) -
170 (170) 51 51 —
— (98) (185) (283) —
(390) (443) (121) (954) (153)
3 (24) (12) 3 95
$ 36,522 $ 58,323 $ 7233 $ 102,078 $ 13,241
$ 324 $ 472 $ 36 $ 832 $ -
$ - $ 1,170 $ - $ 1,170 $ -
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit 8
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and investments with treasurer $ 38,523
Cash and investments with trustee 20
Investments 31
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 20
Total assets 38,594
LIABILITIES
Due to:
Other Governments $ 27,156
Other 11,438
Total liabilities 38,594
NET ASSETS $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Notesto the Financial Statements
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, OHIO
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2001

NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Columbus (the City) was organized on March 3, 1834 and is a home—rule, municipal corporation under the
laws of the State of Ohio. The City operates under the Council-Mayor form of government.

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, in that the financial statements include al the organizations,
activities, functions, and component unit for which the City (the reporting entity) is financialy accountable. Financial
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either (1) the City's
ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial
benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City. On this basis, the reporting entity of the City includes the following
services as authorized by its charter: public service, public safety, development, health, recreation and parks, and public
utilities (storm sewer system). In addition, the City owns and operates three major enterprise activities. a water system, a
sanitary sewer system, and an electricity distribution system.

In August 1990, the City’s Council created the Columbus Municipal Airport Authority (CMAA), a component unit of the
City, as permitted by State law, to manage the City’s two airports. CMAA became operational in November 1991.
Although CMAA is a separate legal entity, the City discretely presents the financia statements of CMAA as a part of the
reporting entity. Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 14, the City is financially accountable for CMAA in that the City
continues to own all of CMAA’s assets at the time of its inception; all CMAA board members are appointed by the Mayor
subject to the approval of the City’s Council; and a potential for financia burden exists to the City in that certain
outstanding bonds of the City issued in years prior to the inception of CMAA, but for the airport’s construction purposes,
amounting to $23,435,000 at December 31, 2001, continue to be general obligations of the City. CMAA pays the
principal and interest due on these bonds in the form of rental payments to the City who in turn pays the bondholders. The
ability of the City to impose its will on CMAA is manifest in that the City’s Council can abolish CMAA via legidation of
the Council. Complete financial statements of CMAA may be obtained from CMAA’s administration offices at 4600
International Gateway, Columbus, Ohio 43219.

The Franklin Park Conservatory Joint Recreation District (the Conservatory District) was created by the City (Resolution
109X-90) and Franklin County (Resolution 79-90) in 1990 pursuant to authority contained in Section 755.14(B) of the
Ohio Revised Code (ORC). The agreement between the City and the County that created the Conservatory District in
1990 was amended by the City (Ordinance 1794-96) and the County (Resolution 800-96) in August 1996. The
amendment increased the number of members of the Board of the Conservatory District from 10 to 17. Eight members of
the Board are appointed by the Mayor of the City subject to confirmation by the City’s Council and six members are
appointed by the County. In addition, the Governor, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the President of the
Senate of the State of Ohio each appoint one member to the Board pursuant to the authority contained in Section
755.14(B)(2) of the ORC. State appointed members are nonvoting members if they also serve as members of the Ohio
General Assembly; no member presently servesin both roles. The Mayor of the City, therefore, does not appoint a voting
majority of the Board.

The City contributed certain fixed assets to the Conservatory District at the time of its inception and has agreed to an
annual operating subsidy, but subject to annua appropriation by the City's Council. Revenues received by the
Conservatory District in 2001 from the City were $1,102,834, including the operating subsidy of $1,091,000; 32.7% of its
total revenue and support. The City has authorized an operating subsidy of $900,894 to the Conservatory District for
2002. In the event of the Conservatory District’ s liquidation, its assets will be transferred to the City.
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Because the City’s Mayor does not appoint a voting mgjority of the Conservatory District’s Board and multiple governments
participate in the board appointment process, the City accounts for and reports the financial activity of the Conservatory District
as ajoint venture pursuant to GASB Statement No. 14. The Conservatory District’s financial activity is reported in the Notes
contained in this report. Complete financial statements may be obtained from the Conservatory District at 1777 East Broad
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43203.

The Columbus/Franklin County Affordable Housing Trust Corporation (AHT) was initially created as the Columbus
Housing Trust Corporation, with Articles of Incorporation (Articles) filed with the Ohio Secretary of State on August 31,
2000. Amended Articles were then filed for AHT in May 2001. No single government or government official appoints a
majority of the Board members. All are jointly appointed. In 2001 the City provided cash assistance to AHT of $3.1
million. The County provided cash assistance of $1.0 million. AHT’stotal support and revenue in 2001 was $4.1 million.
The City is committed through its legislation to provide a portion of its hotel-motel tax collectionsto AHT each year into the
future. This commitment approximates $1.0 million per year.

Since the Mayor does not singularly appoint a voting majority of AHT's board of trustees and multiple governments
participate in both the board appointment process and the financial support of AHT, the City accounts for and reports the
financial activity of AHT as ajoint venture pursuant to GASB Statement No. 14. AHT’sfinancial activity is reported in the
Notes contained in this report. Complete financia statements of AHT may be obtained from Columbus/Franklin County
Affordable Housing Trust Corporation, 1260 East Broad Street, Columbus, OH 43205-1453.

The accounting policies and financia reporting practices of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. With thisfinancial report the City has
changed its financial reporting to comply with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. As part of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the
City has opted for early implementation of infrastructure reporting. In doing so, the historical cost of infrastructure assets
(retroactive to 1979) isincluded as part of the governmental capital assets reported in the government-wide statement.
Thus, the depreciated value of construction costs for road, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems is
reported. In conjunction with the implementation of GASB 34, the City has opted for early implementation of GASB
Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, which rescinds some and modifies other financial
statement disclosure requirements. For fiscal year 2001, the City also implemented GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and GASB Statement No. 36, Receipt Reporting for Certain
Shared Nonexchange Revenues. Implementation of these GASB Statements did not result in a change in beginning fund
bal ance as reported in the fund financial statements on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The following is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies:
(a) Government-wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the City, the primary government; and the Columbus Municipal Airport Authority (CMAA),
the City’ s component unit, is presented in this report as follows.

* Management’s discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical
overview of the City’ sfinancial activities.

e Basicfinancial statements:
*  Government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a statement of activities.

These statements report al of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and gains and losses of the City
and CMAA. Governmenta activities are reported separately from business type activities. Governmental
activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues whereas business type
activities are normally supported by fees and charges for services and are usually intended by
management to be financially self-sustaining. Fiduciary funds of the City and CMAA, its component
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

unit, are not included in these government-wide financial statements, however, separate financia
statements are presented for the Fiduciary funds.

Interfund receivables and payables between governmental and business type activities have been
eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. These eliminations minimize the duplicating
effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental and business type activities total column.

Internal service fund balances, whether positive or negative, have been eliminated against the expenses
and program revenues shown in governmental activities Statement of Activities.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’ s governmental activities.

Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients
of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

* Fund financial statements consist of a series of statements focusing on information about the City’s major
governmental and enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are presented for the governmental, proprietary
and fiduciary funds.

The City’s mgjor governmental funds are the General fund, the Genera Bond Retirement Debt Service
fund, and the Specia Income Tax Debt Service fund. Of the City’s business type activities its Water and
Sewer enterprise funds are considered major funds.

General fund is the accounting entity in which all governmental activity, except that which is required to
be accounted for in other funds, is accounted for. Its revenues consist primarily of taxes, investment
income, licenses and permits, intergovernmental shared revenue, charges for services, fines and others.

General fund expenditures represent costs of general government; public service, including garbage
collection and facilities management; public safety, including fire, police and communications; certain
development costs and other. Resources of the General fund are also transferred annually to support
services such as public recreation and public health, which are accounted for in separate special revenue
funds.

The General Bond Retirement fund and the Specia Income Tax debt service fund are accounting entities
in which the City accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of general obligation
debt; principal, interest and related expenditures. Revenues consist primarily of a portion of the City’s
income tax.

The Water enterprise fund is the accounting entity in which the City accounts for all financia activity
related thereto. The City collects, purifies and sells water to city residents and certain suburban areas.
Water is collected from surface areas (rivers) and wells. The City has three water treatment plants.
Revenues consist primarily of user charges.

The Sewer (sanitary sewer) enterprise fund is the accounting entity in which the City accounts for all
financial activity related thereto. The City collects and treats effluent of City residents and residents of
certain suburban areas. The City has two sewerage treatment plants. Revenues consist primarily of user
charges.
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Electricity enterprise fund, the City’'s only other enterprise fund, is the accounting entity in which the
City accounts for al the financia activity related thereto. The City purchases, but does not generate, and
sells electricity to its 13,277 customers, both residential and commercial. Revenues consist primarily of
user charges.

While not considered major funds the City maintains internal service funds used to account for the
financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to another department or agencies
of the government, generally on a cost reimbursement basis. The largest of these funds account for fleet
management services and electronic information services.

Also maintained by the City are fiduciary funds such as agency funds used to account for assets held by
the government as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

* Notes to the financia statements providing information that is essential to a user’s understanding of the basic
financial statements.

*  Required supplementary information such as budgetary comparison schedules and other types of data required by
GASB.

(b) Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures (expenses). Fund types are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund—The General Fund is the genera operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds—Specia Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived from specific taxes,
grants, or other restricted revenue sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified
by City ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Debt Service Funds—Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds—Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Permanent Funds—Permanent funds are for the purpose of accounting for resources that are legally restricted to
the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s
programs. The City, however, does not utilize Permanent funds.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds—Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprisess—where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges. The City has separate enterprise funds for its water, sanitary sewer, and electricity
services. In addition, airport services are provided by CMAA, adiscretely presented proprietary component unit.

I nternal Service Funds—Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, generally on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Agency Funds—Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Assets held for other funds or governments include payroll
taxes and other employee withholdings (which are combined into one agency fund for ease of payment) and
income taxes and utility charges collected by the City on behalf of other governments. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The City
does not have any trust funds.

Other Fiduciary funds; which, however, the City does not utilize are Pension trust funds used to account for
resources that are required to be held in trust for the respective members or beneficiaries; | nvestment trust funds
used to report the external portion of investment pools reported by the sponsoring government as required by
GASB No. 31 and Private-purpose trust funds used to account for other trust arrangements which benefit
individuals, private organizations or other governments.

(c) Measurement focus and bases of accounting

Except for budgetary purposes, the bases of accounting used by the City conform to accounting principles generaly
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The accounting and financial
reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financia statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the County gives
(or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include income taxes, property
taxes, grants, shared revenue, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from income taxes is recognized in the
period in which the taxpayer’s liability occurs and revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied. On an accrual basis, revenue in the form of shared revenue is recognized when the
provider government recognizes its liability to the City. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers
all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after
year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to
when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds
of general long-term debt are reported as other financing sources.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the City follows GASB guidance as applicable to its
governmental and businesstype activities, and Financial Accounting Standards Boards Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before
November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with or contradict GASB Pronouncements.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financia statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actua results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Budgetary Data
City Council follows the procedures outlined below in establishing expenditure budget data.

(1) Prior to November 15, the Mayor submitsto City Council an estimate of the expenditures necessary to conduct
the affairs of the City for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1.

(2) Budget estimates are distributed throughout the City (including newspapers and libraries) and public hearings
are held to obtain taxpayers comments.

(3) Subsequent to January 1, and after publication of the proposed budget ordinances, the budget is legally enacted
through passage of the ordinances. The budget specifies expenditure amounts by Object Level One for each
division within each fund. The objects are (1) personal services, (2) materials and supplies, (3) contractua
services, (4) debt principal payments, (5) other, (6) capital outlay, (7) interest on debt, and (10) transfers.

(4) Transfers of appropriations of less than $25,000 can be made between budget Object Level One within a
divison and fund without additional City Council action, but with responsible management approval.
Transfers in excess of this amount require the approval of both City Council and the Mayor. Supplemental
appropriations must be approved by City Council. During 2001, all appropriations were approved as required.
Appropriations for budgeted governmental funds, for expenditures and transfers out, were as follows:

(in thousands)

Original budget Revisions Final budget
Genera $ 544,011 2,581 546,592
Specia Revenue 152,821 102,161 254,982
Debt Service 324,301 15,409 339,710

(5) The City maintains budgetary controls by not permitting expenditures to exceed appropriations at the Object
Level One level for each division within each fund.

(6) Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

All General fund, Special Revenue fund and Debt Service fund expenditures, except for expenditures paid
through the county auditor, have annual expenditures budgeted by City Council. Revenues and expenditures
paid through the county auditor are estimated by the City Auditor in conjunction with the annual budgeting process.
However, this estimate is not included or required in the budget ordinance.

Capita Project funds, pursuant to the City’s charter, are not required to be budgeted annually. Capital Project funds
appropriations, after their initial appropriations by Council at the time capital monies are received (bond proceeds,
etc.), remain intact until they are expended or modified by Council. Such monies are appropriated on a project level
with specific identification of each project being budgeted.

Revenues for the General fund are estimated by the City Auditor in conjunction with the annual budgeting process.
However, this estimate is not included or required in the budget ordinance.

Special Revenue fund and Debt Service fund disbursements are made only when cash is received; therefore, their
revenues are not budgeted. Additionally, revenues for Capital Project funds and the proprietary funds are not
budgeted.
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

The City's budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The
major differences are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (modified
accrual).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered or paid in cash (budget), as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (modified accrual).

(3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget), as opposed to a reservation of fund
balances (modified accrual).

CMAA'’s budgetary basis of accounting is maintained on a modified accrual basis. This basis of accounting differs
from GAAP in that certain expenses are reported on a cash basis. Thisincludes an expense classification for the debt
service payable during the year or immediately after year-end and any capital assets expected to be acquired.
Therefore, depreciation is not budgeted. All other revenues and expenses are maintained on the accrual basis. State
statute does not require a specific budgetary basis of accounting under ORC Section 4582. CMAA has adopted this
basis of accounting to comply with certain airline agreements.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in al funds. On the
GAAP basis of accounting, encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities, but are reported as
reservations of fund balances in governmental funds.

(f) Cash Equivalents

(9)

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Proprietary Funds consider all highly liquid investments held by
trustees, with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. In addition, al
cash and investments with treasurer are also considered to be cash equivalents because they are available to the
Proprietary Funds on demand.

I nvestments

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for
External Investment Pools, the City records al of its investments at fair value as defined in the statement.

The City does not engage in any form of derivatives or reverse repurchase agreements in the management of its
investment portfolio. Only eligible investments with final maturities not greater than two years from time of purchase
are permitted. The City’s cash and investments are further explained in Note C.

(h) Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost utilizing the first-in, first-out method for enterprise funds and the average cost method for
internal service funds. Items considered as inventory in the enterprise funds and internal service funds are accounted
for as expenditures when acquired by governmental funds.

(i) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure (e.g. road, curbs and gutters, streets
and sidewalks, and drainage systems) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activity columns
in the government-wide financial statements. The City defines capital assets as assets with an individual cost of more
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost (for certain assets acquired prior to 1960). Pursuant to the implementation of GASB

82



NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Statement No. 34, the historical cost of infrastructure assets (retroactive to January 1, 1979) are included as part of
the governmental capital assets reported in the government-wide statements. Donated assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives
are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during
the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activitiesisincluded as part of the capitalized value of the
assets constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Description Lives (years)

Autos and information processing equipment 5
Trucks 8
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 10
Heavy rescue equipment 25
Buildings, infrastructure, water lines and fire hydrants 40
Sewer mains and certain water assets 75-100

(j) Pensions

Pursuant to the modified accrual basis of accounting, governmental funds record the provision for pension cost when
the obligation is incurred and will be liquidated with available and measurable resources. Pension cost for
proprietary fund typesis recorded when incurred (see Note K).

(k) Insurance

With the exception of CMAA, the City assumes the liability for most property damage and personal injury risks.
Judgments and claims, including those incurred but not reported as of year-end, are recorded when it is probable that
an asset has been impaired or aliability has been incurred and the amount of oss can be reasonably estimated. The
City insures certain of its major buildings. The policy has a $100,000 deductible. No losses occurred in 1999, 2000
or 2001 that exceeded insurance coverages. A fire occurred in January 2002 in which the City will sustain a loss of
approximately $100,000.

The City’ s division of Police operates afleet of seven jet-powered helicopters. Five of these helicopters (models M/D
500E), valued at approximately $1,000,000 each, are insured for both hull insurance ($950,000 per helicopter with
$100,000 deductible) and liability insurance ($10,000,000 per occurrence; $1,000,000 per passenger not including
crew; no deductible). The other two crafts (models Bell OH-58) are insured only for the liability insurance. No
accidents or losses occurred in 1999, 2000 or 2001. One accident occurred in 1998 causing the City to pay the
$100,000 deductible portion of the hull damage claim of one M/D 500E helicopter. No liability claim resulted from
the accident.

Additionally, the City provides medical, dental, and vision coverage for its employees on a self-insurance basis.
Expenses for claims are recorded on a current basis based on an actuarially determined charge per employee. The
City accounts for such activity in an Internal Service Fund in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related I nsurance | ssues.
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A summary of changes in self-insurance claims liability follows:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(in thousands)
Claims liability at January 1 $ 5,000 5,800 7,300 5,000 5,450
Incurred claims, net favorable settlements 48,328 47,101 35,796 40,382 29,378
Claims paid (48,328) (47,901) (37,296) (38,082 (29,828)
Claimsliability at December 31 $ 5,000 5,000 5,800 7,300 5,000

Claims are accrued based upon estimates of the claims liabilities made by management and the third-party
administrator of the City. These estimates are based on past experience and current claims outstanding. Actual
claims experience may differ from the estimate. An actuary was used in the determination of the current liability.
This claims liability is recorded in the Internal Service Fund as accrued wages and benefits.

() Vacation and Sick Leave

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an employeeis
reimbursed for accumulated vacation and sick leave at various rates.

Vacation and sick leave accumulated by governmental fund type and proprietary fund type employees is reported as
an expense when earned in the government-wide financial statements. Vacation and sick leave accumulated by
governmental fund type employees is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental fund financial statements, as
current financial resources are not used.

Payment of vacation and sick leave is dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not
readily determinable. However, management believes that sufficient resources will be made available for the
payment of vacation and sick leave when such payments become due.

(m) Debt Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts, and Accounting L osses (Refundings)

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs and accounting losses on refundings, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds.

(n) Interfund Transactions

The City has the following types of transactions among funds:

1) Reciprocal interfund loans: Amounts provided by one fund to another with a requirement for repayment.

2) Reciprocal interfund services provided and used: Purchased and sales of goods and services between funds for a
price approximating their external exchange value.

3) Nonreciprocal interfund transfers. Fows of assets between funds without equivalent flows of assetsin return and
without a requirement for repayment. Thisincludes paymentsin lieu of taxes that are not payments for, and are
not reasonably equivalent in value to, services provided.

4) Nonreciprocal interfund reimbursements. Repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or
expenses to the funds that initially paid for them.

The City’ sinterfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2001 are presented in Note E. Transfers are presented
in Note P.
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Pursuant to local statute and determined by an internal cost allocation plan certain costs initially borne by the General

(P)

(@)

Fund are then billed as direct charges to other funds of the City. Revenues from these charges are accounted for in
the government-wide Statement of Activities as general government and in the governmental funds Statement of
Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Genera Fund as charges for services. The corresponding
expenses appear as function/program costs in the Statement of Activities.

The City, in its proprietary funds, accounts for al recurring type revenues, including all revenues which the City
controls through statutory pricing or regulatory authority as operating revenues. Non-recurring revenues such as
gains on sales of assets and revenues over which the City has minimal or no control, primarily interest earnings, are
accounted for as nonoperating revenues.

The City complies with al restrictions governing the use of restricted assets. Such restrictions do not offer discretion
regarding use of these resources in an unrestricted manner. Where capital funds, usually bond proceeds, are available
capital assets are acquired from such resources. Capital assets can be, however, and to alesser amount are, acquired
from unrestricted resources.

NOTE B—COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

(@)

Litigation

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits pertaining to matters that are incidental to performing routine
governmental and other functions. As of December 31, 2001, claims approximating $196 million were outstanding
against the City. Based on the current status of all these legal proceedings, it is the opinion of management that
ultimate resolution of such will not have a material effect on the City' sfinancial statements.

The United States Department of Justice (DOJ), in 1999, filed suit against the City of Columbus. The DOJ claims that the
City’s division of Police has engaged in a pattern or practice of civil rights violations. If the DOJ position prevails there
would be certain increased costs to the City, an amount impossible to determine at present.

(b) Federal Grants

(©)

Under the terms of federal grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being
appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Such audits could lead to reimbursements to the grantor
agencies. While questioned costs may occur, ultimate repayments required of the City have been infrequent in prior
years.

Franklin County Convention Facilities Authority (CFA)

The CFA is a separate and distinct entity created under the laws of Ohio. In June 1990, the CFA issued lease revenue
bonds for the purpose of constructing a convention facility in downtown Columbus. Also in June 1990, the City and
the County of Franklin, Ohio (the County) entered into a lease/sublease arrangement with the CFA pursuant to which
the City and the County leased the convention facility as tenants in common from the CFA. The City and the County
subleased the facility back to the CFA. The lease requires that the City and the County each pay rent to the CFA in
an amount equal to one half of the debt service on the revenue bonds. Under the sublease, the CFA isrequired to pay
rent to the County and the City in an amount equal to such debt service. Such subrental payments are expected to be
derived from the hotel/motel excise tax levied by the CFA, and if such tax is insufficient, from earnings on, and the
principal amount of, certain reserve funds created in connection with the issuance of the revenue bonds. If the
foregoing amounts are insufficient, the City agreed in the lease to apply that portion of the hotel/motel tax levied by
the City and currently paid by the City to a convention and visitors bureau to the payment of rentals under the lease.
If, after the application of the foregoing amounts, additional amounts are required to meet the City’ s and the County’s
obligations under the lease, such amounts will be paid by the City and the County, in equal shares, from their general
resources, provided that their respective legidative bodies have appropriated funds for such purpose. No such
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NOTE B—COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

payments were necessary prior to or during 2001. The lease will terminate as to the City and the County if their
respective legidlative bodies fail to appropriate amounts required for rentals thereunder. The total amount of these
revenue bonds outstanding at December 31, 2001, including certain amounts refunded in 1992 and 1997 and
additional bonds issued in 1997, was $163.8 million net of premiums and discounts of $16.0 million, or a gross
amount of $179.8 million.

(d) Other liabilities

The City, at December 31, 2001 has certain other liabilities of Governmental Type Activities that will not be
paid from funds available, as defined, at December 31, 2001. The City wishes to fully disclose these liabilities.
In accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 6; Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and
Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements, however, these liabilities are not accounted for, nor
are they required to be, in the Fund financial statements contained in this report. Those liabilities are;

(1) Accrued pensions in the amount of $2,963,000 represents the employer’s share of certain pension costs.
Thisamount is due and payable in March 2002 and is budgeted in 2002 appropriations. This amount,
therefore, is not payable from 2001 available funds.

(2) Accrued vacation and sick leave are granted to City employees at varying amounts and, at the time of the
employee’ s termination such accruals are paid to the employees at varying rates. Except for the unused
portion of an employee’s prior year's sick leave accrual which is recorded in the fund that ultimately
disburses this accrual to the employee after year end, all other accrued vacation and sick leave
applicable to governmental type activitiesis not reflected in the fund financial statements contained in
thisreport. At December 31, 2001 thisliability, exclusive of proprietary funds, was in the amount of
$51,130,084 ($46,775,602 at December 31, 2000). Such benefits accumulating in proprietary funds are
recorded as expenses when earned by the employeesin the proprietary funds. During 2001, $3,054,296
of the governmental type liability existing at December 31, 2000 was paid to employees, while
$7,408,778 was added to this liability for the current year accumulation.

NOTE C—CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Investment Policies. The City follows GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, and records all its investments at fair value. At December 31, 2001 fair
value was $4,119,281 above the City’s net cost for its investments. At December 31, 2000 fair value was $3,029,350
above net cost. Fair value is determined by quoted market prices and other pricing methodologies.

The City pools its cash, except for that held by revenue bond trustees, fiscal and escrow agents, and certain debt service
and trust and agency fund cash and investments, for maximum investing efficiency. Each fund type’s portion of the pool is
reported on the combined balance sheet as Cash and investments with treasurer. Earnings on the pool are allocated at the
discretion of the City Council after meeting revenue bond indentures and other requirements. All statutory requirements
are met in distributing earnings of the pool to various funds.

The City Codes, Chapters325 and 321, respectively, provide for a Treasury Investment Board and a Depository
Commission. Both consist of the City Treasurer, who serves as chairman and represents the City Council; the City
Auditor, an independently elected official; and the Director of the Department of Finance, representing the Mayor; hence a
check and balance process via the separation of powers.

Pursuant to these code sections, the City does not purchase any form of derivatives. The City does invest in STAROhio,
an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office that allows governments within the State to pool their funds
for investment purposes. STAROhIio is not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission as an investment
company, but does operate in a manner similar to Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in
STAROhio are valued at STAROhi0' s share price that is the price the investment could be sold for on December 31, 2001.
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NOTE C — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Management of STAROhio states that its policy also prohibits investing in derivatives and/or engaging in the use of
reverse repurchase agreements. Average days to maturity of the STAROhio portfolio at December 31, 2001 was 53.3
days. The City is prohibited from using reverse repurchase agreements and does not leverage its investment portfolio in
any manner. The City purchases investments only through member banks of the Federal Reserve System or broker dealers
registered with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. The City requires broker dealersto formally apply
for and be evaluated for eligibility to conduct business with the City.

The City’'s investment code and practices have consistently protected the portfolio from unnecessary credit risk (safety)
and market risks (liquidity) while providing a competitive yield. Only eligible investments with the remaining terms not
greater than two years until final maturity are purchased. Average days to maturity of the City's investments with the
Treasurer at December 31, 2001 was 291.1 days.

Investments as permitted by Chapter 325 of the Columbus City Code are:

(A) Bonds, notes, or other obligations of the United States government or its Agencies for which the faith of the
United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest thereon. They are:

Obligations of the United States government:
. United States Treasury Bills
. United States Treasury Notes
. United States Treasury Bonds
. United States Treasury Strips

Obligations guaranteed by the United States government:
Federal government agencies:
. Department of Housing and Urban Devel opment
. Farmers Home Administration
. Genera Service Administration
. Government National Mortgage Association
. Maritime Administration
¢ Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority

(B) Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations issued by any of the federal government-sponsored enterprises
listed below. They are:
. Federal Farm Credit System
. Federal Home Loan Banks
. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
. Federal National Mortgage Association

(C) The Ohio State Treasurer’s Asset Reserve Funds (STAROhi0) pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 135.45;
(D) Bonds or other obligations of the City of Columbus, Ohio;

(E) Obligations of the State of Ohio or any municipal corporation, village, county, township or other politica
subdivision of the State of Ohio, as to which there is no default of principal or interest and which have been
approved as to their validity by nationally recognized bond counsel.

(F) Certificates of deposits (collateralized as described below) in eligible institutions applying for moneys as
provided in Chapter 321 of Columbus City Codes; and

(G) Repurchase agreements that are collateralized with legally authorized securities as defined in Chapter 321.08 of
Columbus City Code and held in third-party safekeeping designated by the City Treasurer and in the name of the
City of Columbus.
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NOTE C — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Safeguarding activities call for the City's investments with the Treasurer, except for investments with STAROhio,
investments held by revenue bond trustees, fiscal and escrow agents and certain debt service, and agency funds, to be held
in book entry form at federal reserve banks in the accounts of certain member banks-agents of the City who hold the
investmentsin the City’ s name.

The revenue bond agreements of the water and sanitary sewer enterprises (see Subsequent Event section of Note G in this
report) require certain cash and investments to be maintained and managed by trustees. The respective trustees, bank trust
departments, invest these monies at the direction of the City Auditor pursuant to the revenue bond agreements.

All of the City's deposits and investments comply with State statutes, City ordinances and applicable bond indentures.

Deposits:  The City's policy is to place deposits with major local banks (as defined by Chapter 321 of the City Code)
approved by the Depository Commission. All deposits, except for deposits held by fiscal and escrow agents or trustees,
are collateralized with eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value of the deposits. Such
collateral, as permitted by Chapter 135 of the ORC and Chapter 321 of the Columbus City Code, is held in single financial
institution collateral pools at Federal Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the federal reserve system, in the name of the
respective depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all of the public depositsit holds.

At December 31, 2001, the carrying amount of all City deposits, exclusive of money market funds in the amount of
$8,133,164 held by bond trustees, was $169,032,695. Balances per the banks were $169,928,229. Based upon criteria
described in GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits With Financial Ingtitutions, Investments (including Repurchase
Agreements) and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, bank balances are classified in three categories of credit risk: (1)
insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or by its agent in the entity’s name; (2) collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the City’s name; and (3) uncollateralized,
including any bank balance that is collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the City’s name. Accordingly, the balances per the banks were either insured or
uncollateralized as follows:

Risk
Category
3 Collatera held in single financia institution collateral pools with securities being (in thousands)
held by the pledging financial institution’s agentsin the pool’ s name $ 168,982
(0] Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 530
3 Amount considered uncollateralized 416

Total balances per banks $ 169,928

The money market funds, amounting to $8,133,164, while held by bond trustees as the City's agents and in the City’s
name, are also considered uninsured. However, their disposition and availability are governed by bond ordinances and
indentures.
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NOTE C — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

I nvestments. Based upon criteria described in GASB Statement No. 3, the City’s (the primary government) investments
are categorized below to give an indication of the level of custodial risk assumed by the City at year-end. Investments with
STAROhIo are not required to be categorized due to their nature.  (in thousands)

Category 1 Category 2 Category 3
Uninsured and Uninsured and
Insured or unregistered, with unregistered, with
registered, or  securities held by the  securities held by the Cosgt, net of
securitiesheld  counterparty’strust  counterparty or its trust premium,
by the City or  department or agent  department or agent but Fair value/ discount and
Type of its agent in the in the not in the carrying accrued
I nvestment City’s name City’s name City’s name value interest
U.S. government sponsored ~ $ 544,490 - - 544,490 $ 540,471
enterprises
U.S. government 32,847 - - 32,847 32,747
Securities
Bonds and notes—other 2,617 - - 2,617 2,618
$ 579,954 - - 579,954 575,836
STAROhio 20,576 20,576
Total investments 600,530 $ 596,412
Carrying amount of deposits:
High yield savings account $ 134,761
Certificates of deposit 30,000
Other 4,271 169,032
Money market funds held by bond trustees 8,133
Cash and collection items on hand 127
Less: City Auditor warrants payable (32,707)
Total $ 745,115

Per Governmental Funds Balance Sheet-total government funds

Cash and investments with treasurer $ 483,594
Cash and investments with fiscal and escrow agents and other 395
Investments 3,295

Per Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets
Total enterprise funds

Cash and cash equivalents with treasurer 111,316
Restricted cash and cash equival ents with treasurer and other 66,902
Restricted cash and cash equivalents with trustee 8,133

Interna Service Funds
Cash and cash equivalents with treasurer 32,906
Agency Funds, net of accrued interest 38,574
Total $ 745,115

Component Unit: CMAA’s (discretely presented component unit) cash and investment policies are similar in nature to
that of the City’s (the primary government). The carrying amount of CMAA deposits is $1,693,931 and the bank balance
was $1,379,393 of which the FDIC insured $300,000 (Category 1) and the remaining $1,079,393 was collateralized with
eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value of the deposits by the financial institution but not
in CMAA’s name (Category 3). In addition CMAA has $4,890 in cash on hand a December 31, 2001 that was
uncollateralized (Category 3).
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NOTE C— CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

CMAA's investments and custodial risk categorization at December 31, 2001 consisted of: $2,987,468 in a repurchase
agreement included in Category 3, and $118,578,587 of money market and STAROhio funds which are not required to be
categorized due to their nature.

NOTE D—RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31, 2001 consist of the following:

CDA Less
Customer And Special Gross Allowance
and other UDAG assess- Accrued Receiv- for uncol-
Taxes Accounts Lease Loans ments interest Ables Lectibles Net

(in thousands)

Governmental type funds:

General fund $ 108,807 1,471 - - - 5,302 115,580 - 115,580
General bond retirement - - - 376 24 400 - 400
Special income tax 22,419 1,796 109,483 - - - 133,698 - 133,698
Other governmental fund: - 11,031 - 76,895 - 377 88,303 (56,230) 32,073
Total governmental funds 131,226 14,298 109,483 76,895 376 5,703 337,981 (56,230) 281,751
Business type funds:
Water - 16,691 - - - 563 17,254 (2,172) 15,082
Sewer - 20,174 - - 512 825 21,511 (786) 20,725
Electricity - 5,890 - 976 62 6,928 (1,576) 5,352
Total business type funds - 42,755 - - 1,488 1,450 45,693 (4,534) 41,159
Internal service funds - 50 - - - - 50 - 50
Total primary government 131,226 57,103 109,483 76,895 1,864 7,153 383,724 (60,764) 322,960
Component Unit—CMAA - 5,278 - - - - 5,278 (583) 4,695

Taxes receivable in the General Fund include $40.8 million for property taxes levied in 2001 but not due for collection
until 2002, and approximately $750,000 of delinquent property taxes. Genera and Specia Income Tax fund taxes
receivable also include income taxes receivable of $67,257,000 and $22,419,000, respectively, at December 31, 2001. In
the fund financial statements, $47,838,000 of the general fund income tax receivable and $15,946,000 of the Special
Income Tax fund income tax receivable was deferred because it was not received within the available period. Special
Revenue Community Development Act (CDA) and Urban Development Action Grant (UDAG) loans include $74,453,000
of CDA loans and $2,442,000 of UDAG loans.

Substantially al receivables are due in 2002 except:
(@ Deferred special assessment receivables in the General bond retirement fund of $254,610 Sewer Enterprise
specia assessment receivables of $427,310, and Electricity Enterprise specia assessment receivables of

$664,283, which have not yet been recorded as revenues.

(b) $72,160,000 of CDA loans and $2,356,000 of UDAG loans, not including allowance for uncollectible CDA
and UDAG loans of $56,116,000.
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NOTE D—RECEIVABLES (continued)

() The Special income tax fund lease receivable of $109,483,292 represents the gross amounts due under a
capital lease of the City's solid waste resource recovery plant to SWACO (see Note H). $2,500,000 of this
receivable was received in January and February 2002 (60-day rule) and is therefore recognized as revenue
in 2001. Theremaining amount of the receivable is recognized as deferred revenue.

(d)  Special income tax fund customer and other accounts include a $1,796,000 long term note receivable,
$1,698,000 of which is accounted for as deferred revenue.

The City receives funds from HUD to bring substandard housing into compliance with the City housing code under the
CDA program. The UDAG program is used to finance development projects within the City. Funds received under these
programs that are loaned to eligible recipients are recorded as CDA and UDAG loans receivable.

Enterprise customer and other accounts receivable include unbilled charges for services at December 31, 2001 as follows:

(in thousands)

Water $ 8,119
Sewer 9,593
Electricity 2,698

$ 20,410

NOTE E—DUE FROM AND DUE TO /INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Due from Dueto
Governmental funds: (in thousands)
General $ 4,140 29
Genera bond retirement - 321
Specia income tax 139
Other governmental:
Development services 264 16
Health - 21
Storm sewer - 90
Street construction maintenance and repair 79 332
Treasury investment earnings - 2,613
Golf - 7
Recreation and parks - 10
Streets and highways V-95, V-99 - 79
343 3,168
Total 4,622 3,518
Internal Service Funds:
Employee benefits 13 -
City print services 20 -
Land acquisition 31 -
64
Business type funds:
Water - 521
Sewer - 741
Electric 321 227
321 1,489
$ 5,007 5,007
Due to/from Primary Government/Component Unit:
Special income tax $ 4,000 -
Less allowance for doubtful account (see below) (4,000) -
Component unit--CMAA - 4,000
$ 0 - 4,000
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NOTE E—DUE FROM AND DUE TO/INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (continued)

The $4 million due from the component unit—CMAA to the Special Income Tax Fund, a Debt Service Fund, is for past
operating advances, $1.0 million in 1983, $1.3 million in 1986 and $1.7 million in 1990. Although an allowance for this
amount has been provided for in the Debt Service Fund, the amount remains recorded as a liability by CMAA pending an
ultimate determination of the amount to be repaid, if any.

Certain Interfund Receivable/Payables of a longer term repayment schedule also exist. The Special Income Tax debt
service fund has financed, paid for, certain equipment not included in capital assets because of short-life considerations.
This financing is to be repaid by the General Fund. The Special Income Tax fund has also paid debt service on certain
general obligation bonds, proceeds of which were used for golf course improvements. The Recreation (golf course) debt
service fund, not a major fund, will make repayments from a portion of its green fees.

Receivable Payable
Interfund Receivables/Payabl es: (in thousands)
General $ - 1,306
Specia income tax 4,685 -
Other Governmental:
Recreation debt service - 3,379
_$ 4685 4685

NOTE F—CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets; those assets with an estimated useful life of five years or more from the time of acquisition by the City and a
cost of $5,000 or more, are primarily funded through the issuance of long term bonds and loans. A summary of capital
assets and changes occurring in 2001, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34,

follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation.
(in thousands)
Baance, net of

Balance Balance Depreciation,
December 31, December 31, Accumulated December 31,
2000 Additions Deletions 2001 Depreciation 2001
Capital Assetsused in:
Governmental Activities
Land $ 152,083 12,953 - 165,036 - 165,036
Buildings 255,993 20,060 439 275,614 85,139 190,475
Improvements, other than buildings 112,643 6,870 106 119,407 37,649 81,758
Machinery and equipment 202,661 13,663 5,012 211,312 123,465 87,847
Infrastructure 772,086 83,569 445 855,210 166,664 688,546
Total $ 1,495,466 137,115 6,002 1,626,579 412,917 1,213,662
Business Type Activities
Land $ 36,177 359 - 36,536 - 36,536
Buildings 199,790 65 21 199,834 120,726 79,108
Improvements other than buildings 1,413,840 73,886 26,894 1,460,832 431,877 1,028,955
Machinery and equipment 124,727 5,093 6,754 123,066 89,585 33,481
Construction in progress 84,601 28,072 - 112,673 - 112,673
Total $ 1,859,135 107,475 33,669 1,932,941 642,188 1,290,753
Component Unit
Land $ 20,657 203 - 20,860 - 20,860
Buildings 230,418 13,576 2,895 241,099 54,019 187,080
Improvements other than buildings 132,612 21,787 12,929 141,470 52,111 89,359
Machinery and equipment 16,677 1,574 315 17,936 9,599 8,337
Construction in progress 8,620 7.459 7,735 8,344 - 8,344
Total $ 408,984 44,599 23,874 429,709 115,729 313,980
Internal Service Funds
Land $ 13 - - 13 - 13
Buildings 2,198 - - 2,198 999 1,199
Improvements, other than buildings 2,557 435 - 2,992 476 2,516
Machinery and equipment 33,880 684 188 34,376 25,572 8,804
Total $ 38,648 1,119 188 39,579 27,047 12,532
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NOTE F—CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, at December 31, 2001 appear in the Statement of Net Assets and/or the Fund Statements
Balance Sheets as follows. (in thousands).

Governmental activities $1,213,662 Component unit $ 313,980
Business type activities: Internal service funds:
Water enterprise $ 352,594 Fleet management $ 1,983
Sewer enterprise 865,312 Information services 9,466
Electricity enterprise 72,847 Purchasing 7

Telecommunications
Land Acquisition

Depreciation expense in 2001 was charged to the following functions and funds. (in thousands)

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Development
Health
Recreation and parks
Public utilities

Business Type Activities:
Water enterprise
Sewer enterprise
Electricity enterprise

$ 1,950
31,463
9,791

1,266

157

4,983

1,699

$ 51,309

$ 16,749
25,760

4,412

$ 46921

Internal Service Funds:
Fleet management
Information services
Purchasing
Telecommunications
Land Acquisition

Component Unit

$ 160
5,190

4

269

16

$ 5,639

$ 25166

$

1,062
14

Interest incurred during the construction phase ($5.742 million in 2001), net of related interest earnings ($542 thousand in
2001), of business-type activity capital assetsis included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. Interest
was capitalized in 2001 in the following activities/funds.

Water enterprise
Sewer enterprise

(in thousands)
$ 1,095

4,105

$ 5,200

NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE

Bonds, notes, and loans payable in the Statement of Net Assets are comprised of the following.

Amount outstanding
at December 31, 2001
Unamortized bond premium
Unamoritzed bond discount
Unamoritized deferred amounts
on refundings

Amount per Statement of Net Assets

(in thousands)

Business Type
Governmental
Type Water Sewer Electric
$ 823,598 281,777 544,296 65,588
2,849 3,768 3,193 1,038
- (550) (1,417) -
(1,010) (3,602) (2,648) -
$ 825,437 281,393 543,424 66,626
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Type of Obligation

Governmental type
General obligations

OPWC notes

Bonds-fixed rate

Bonds-variable rate

Capitalized lease (Note J)

Information services bonds-
fixed rate

Fleet management bonds-

fixed rate

Revenue obligations

Bonds (TIF s)-fixed rate

Bonds (TIF s)-variable rate

Single family mortgage
revenue note (FNMA)

Total governmental type

Business type-enterprise
Water
General obligations
Bonds-fixed rate
Bonds-variable rate
Revenue obligations
Bonds-fixed rate

Total water

Sewer

Genera obligations
Notes
Bonds-fixed rate

Revenue obligations
Bonds-fixed rate
Bonds-variable rate
OWDA/EPA loans

Total sewer

Electricity
General obligations
Notes
Bonds-fixed rate
Bonds-variable rate
Revenue obligations
Bonds-variable rate

Total electricity

Total business type-

enterprise

Total primary government

NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

The following table shows the activity in bonds, notes and loans payable during 2001.

(in thousands)

Balance Balance Amount

December 31, New December 31, duein

2000 Issues Refundings Maturities Refunded 2001 2002
$ 4134 32 - 249 - $ 3917 $ 257
746,918 5,545 51,114 60,349 - 743,228 118,079
37,205 - - 3,285 - 33,920 3,280
4,320 - - 860 - 3,460 860
4,965 - - 570 - 4,395 620
570 - - 30 - 540 30
30,050 - - - - 30,050 -
- 4,000 - - - 4,000 -
117 - - 29 - 88 n/a
828,279 9,577 51,114 65,372 - 823,598 123,126
168,131 28,340 - 15,574 - 180,897 15,518
50,835 - - 3,140 - 47,695 3,140
57,205 - - 4,020 - 53,185 4,395
276,171 28,340 - 22,734 - 281,777 23,053
299 298 - 597 - - -
196,991 49,364 1,266 20,417 - 227,204 21,744
92,700 - - 9,380 - 83,320 9,900
51,600 - - - - 51,600 -
147,338 42,432 - 7,598 - 182,172 9,858
488,928 92,094 1,266 37,992 - 544,296 41,502
1,243 825 - 238 - 1,830 1,005
27,715 3,124 32,675 7,046 - 56,468 7,636
8,205 - - 915 - 7,290 915
44,600 - - - 44,600 - -
81,763 3,949 32,675 8,199 44,600 65,588 9,556
846,862 124,383 33,941 68,925 44,600 891,661 74,111
1,675,141 133,960 85,055 134,297 44,600 1,715,259 197,237
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NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

(in thousands)

Balance Balance Amount
December 31, New December 31, duein
Type of Obligation 2000 Issues Refundings Maturities Refunded 2001 2002
Component Unit-CMAA
Genera obligations
Bonds of City being repaid
by CMAA 28,430 - 11,190 4,995 11,190 23,435 4,990
Revenue obligations
Bonds 122,165 3,266 - 1,400 - 124,031 2,014
Total component unit 150,595 3,266 11,190 6,395 11,190 147,466 7,004
Total reportingunit  $1,825,736 137,226 96,245 140,692 55,790 $1,862,725 $ 204,241

(1) Includes $51,114,000 called bonds redeemed on January 2, 2002. This amount, since the cash is accounted for in the Special
Income Tax debt service fund, is shown as afund liability in that fund at December 31, 2001.

(2) Includes $1,266,000 called bonds redeemed on January 2, 2002.

The principal retirement and payment of obligations under the capitalized lease in the Debt Service Fund Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance is comprised of the following. (in thousands)

General obligation OPWC notes $ 249
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Note (FNMA) 29
Genera obligation bonds 63,634
Obligation under capitalized lease 860

Total $ 64,772

Proceeds from bonds and long term notes in the Other Governmental Funds (Capital Projects Fund) Statement

of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance consist of the following. (in thousands))

General obligation OPWC notes $ 32
General obligation bonds-original issue 5,545
Revenue bonds-original issue 4,000

Total $ 9577

Premiums received on bonds appear as proceeds from bonds and long-term note in the Special Income Tax fund in the

amount of $2,864,000.

Short-Term Notes

The City issues specia assessment notes for certain projects where the direct citizen-beneficiary of the project sharesin its
costs. Upon final determination of costs, the City then converts the remaining portion of the note (the portion not paid
upon project completion by the citizen-beneficiary) to bonds. All special assessment notes are general obligations of the
City and are held by the Debt Service Fund or the City’s pooled cash and investments with Treasurer. All such notes are

accounted for in Business-Type-Enterprise activities.
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NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

Issuances and maturities of such notes during 2001 are as follows. (in thousands)

Balance Balance
Date Maturity Interest December 31, December 31,
Accounted for in: issued date rate 2000 Additions Deletions 2001
Electricity Enterprise 5/17/2000 7/17/2001 5.90% $ 107 - 107 -
5/17/2000 7/17/2001 5.90% 131 - 131 -
11/22/2000 11/22/2002 5.90% 1,005 - - 1,005
5/1/2001 3/1/2003 4.46% - 825 - 825
Tota Electricity $ 1243 825 238 1,830
Sewer Enterprise 9/13/2000 7/17/2001 6.00% $ 299 - 299 -
7/17/2001 9/27/2001 5.00% - 298 298 -
Total Sewer $ 299 298 597 $ -

The portion of the notes included as deletions in the above table, which were not paid for by property owners ($412,763)
were converted to general obligation bonds on the stated maturity date of the notes.

Long-Term Notes

Except for the FNMA note, all other notes payable are backed by the full faith and credit, i.e. general obligations, of the
City. Notes are generally issued in anticipation of long-term bond financing and are refinanced until such bonds are
issued. There are, however, long-term notes for which the debt service will be paid from current resources. Those notes
are asfollows. The Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) extends both grants and loans to the City. In certain OPWC
commitments, the agreements with OPWC provide for cash received by the City to be first considered as grant receipts.
Monies received by the City after the grant commitment has been fulfilled by OPWC are then considered loans. Only the
loan portion need be repaid by the City. The first two commitments from OPWC included loan monies only.

Notes in the amount of $3,916,975 accounted for as Governmental type represent the amounts due on thirteen loans from
the Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) for infrastructure and storm sewer improvements. These notes are non-
interest-bearing and have serial maturities, with final maturities July 1, 2022. Initial repayments of the loans began in July
1994. OPWC has committed to additional non-interest-bearing loans as shown below. Cash is provided to the City by
OPWC only to the extent of project completion. Only that portion of the loan commitment actually paid to the City is
recognized as a liability by the City. Repayments of these loans are made from the Debt Service Fund. OPWC loans are
considered general obligations of the City and Governmental type obligations. Grant and loan commitments and loans
outstanding at December 31, 2001 were as follows:. (in thousands)

Repaid by City
Totd Prior Outstanding
Project Total grant  Total loan Loaned at To In Loans at
Project Number commitment Commitment 12/31/01 2001 2001 12/31/01
Sawmill Road CC515 $ - $ 200 200 70 10 120
Roberts Road CCbh22 - 902 903 321 45 537
Neil Avenue CC814 2,278 56 56 10 3 43
Cleveland Ave. North CC903 2,503 1,347 1,347 202 67 1,078
Cleveland Ave. South CCo14 2,773 1,053 1,053 132 53 868
Main Street Rehab. CC019 441 88 88 11 4 73
Mound Street Rehab. CCco17 546 98 98 12 5 81
Livingston Ave. Rehab.  CCO015 1,622 352 352 44 18 290
Group 6 CC013 361 58 58 3 3 52
Edgehill Improvements  CC15A 577 162 162 8 8 146
US 23 Culvert CC18A 305 39 39 4 2 33
James Road ccosB 2,867 623 623 - 31 592
Stelzer Road CCo06C 2,082 174 4 — — 4
Total $ 5,152 4,983 817 249 3,917




NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

Future debt service requirements on the OPWC loans and loan commitments are shown as Future Debt Service for
Governmental Type Non-Proprietary — Notes contained in this Note G.

The City participates in various affordable housing efforts. The following long-term note is not a general obligation of the
City but is payable solely from mortgage payments made by the homebuyers and certain grant funds provided solely for
this purpose. The FNMA note is aso considered a governmental type obligation.

Non-enterprise:

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA)

Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Note

Long-Term Summary

Issue
Date

8/11/98

Maturity
Date

9/1/09

Interest
Rate

6.63%

Outstanding
at 12/31/2001
(in thousands)

$ 88

Long-term debt, both general obligation (G.O) and revenue supported (Rev.) is summarized below, exclusive of the

capitalized lease (Note J).

Governmental type

GO Ohio Public Works Commission notes

GO Bonds-fixed rate
GO Bonds-variable rate

GO Information services bonds-fixed rate

GO Heet management bonds-fixed rate
Rev. Bonds (TIF s)-fixed rate
Rev. Bonds (TIF s)-variable rate

Rev. FNMA note

Totd

Business type-enterprise
Water
GO bonds-fixed rate
GO bonds-variable rate

Rev. bonds-fixed rate Series 1999
Sewer

GO bonds-fixed rate

Rev. bonds-fixed rate Series 1992

Rev. bonds-variable rate Series 1994

OWDA-EPA loans
Electricity

GO bonds-fixed rate

GO bonds-variable rate

Totd
Total primary government

Years
of Issue

1993-1999
1967-2001
1995-1996

1994-2001
1998
1999
2001

1998

1961-2001
1995-1996

1999
1976-2001
1992
1994
1977-2001

1980-2001
1996

97

Weighted
Y ears due Average Amount
through Interest rate Interest rate  (in thousands)
2022 0.00% 0.00% $ 3917
2022 3.50% to 12.375% 5.43% 743,228
2017 1.00% to 4.35% 2.50% 33,920
(1.50% at year end)
2011 4.70% to 5.45% 4.94% 4,395
2019 4.58% 4.58% 540
2024 4.15% to 5.30% 5.00% 30,050
2011 1.19% to 2.45% 1.97% 4,000
(1.69% at year end)
2019 6.63% 6.63% 88
820,138
2019 3.50% to 12.375% 5.66% 180,897
2017 1.00to 4.35% 2.50% 47,695
(1.50% at year end)
2010 3.70% to 5.00% 4.76% 53,185
2022 4.10% to 12.375% 5.72% 227,204
2008 6.00% to 6.40% 6.23% 83,320
2011 1.10% to 4.45% 2.60% 51,600
(1.60% at year end)
2024 3.54% 10 6.75% 4.20% 182,172
2013 4.10% t0 9.375% 5.19% 56,468
2009 1.00% to 4.35% 2.50% 7,290
(1.50% at year end)
889,831
1,709,969



NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

Weighted
Years Y ears due Average Amount
of Issue through Interest rate Interest rate  (in thousands)
Component Unit-CMAA
GO bonds of City being
repaid by CMAA-fixed rate 1980-2001 2008 4.05% to 12.25% 5.77% 23,435
Rev. bonds 1994-1998 2028 4.50% to 6.01% 5.28% 120,870
Rev. bonds 2001 2011 3.49% to 5.41% 4.19% 3,161
Total component unit (CMAA) 147,466
Total reporting entity $ 1,857,435
Certain characteristics of the debt of the primary government are shown in the following table.
(in thousands)
Primary
Governmental Business Type Government
Type Water Sewer Electricity Total Totd
¢ Amounts outstanding
General obligations (G.O.) $ 786,000 228,592 227,204 63,758 519,554 1,305,554
Revenue obligations 34,138 53,185 317,092 - 370,277 404,415
Total $820,138 281,777 544,296 63,758 889,831  $1,709,969
e % of outstanding amounts
General obligations (% x total) 95.8% 81.1% 41.7% 100.0% 58.4% 76.3%
Limited-unvoted (% x G.O.) 26.8% 28.4% 14.7% 59.1% 26.2% 26.6%
Unlimited-voted (% x G.O.) 73.2% 71.6% 85.3% 40.9% 73.8% 73.4%
Revenue obligations (% x Total) 4.2% 18.9% 58.3% - 41.6% 23.7%
e %X Principal paid out within 10 years
General obligations 79.6% (1) 72.8% 73.3% 98.6% 76.2% 78.2% (1)
Revenue obligations 26.4% 100.0% 100.0% (2) - 100.0% (2) 88.7% (2)
¢ Weighted average interest rate
General obligations 5.25% 4.96% 5.72% 4.77% 5.27% 5.26%
Revenue obligations 4.81% 4.79% 4.52% - 4.56% 4.55%

(1) Exclusive of Ohio Public Works Commission Notes of $3,916,975.
(2) Exclusive of Ohio Water Devel opment Authority Loans of $182,172,079.

Variableinterest rate bonds

The variable interest rate bonds were issued, pursuant to ordinances adopted by Council, in the Electricity Enterprise in
1996; Sewer Enterprise in 1994; Water Enterprise in 1995 and 1996; and Non-enterprise in 1995 and 1996, respectively.
The 1994 Sewer (weekly interest rate mode) bonds are revenue bonds. The Water Enterprise, the 1996 Electricity
Enterprise, and the Non-enterprise bonds are variable rate, weekly interest rate mode, general obligation bonds. The
proceeds of the bonds were used to provide funds for certain capital improvements, retire certain bonds and notes
previously issued by the City, establish bond reserve funds, where required, in accordance with trust agreements, and pay
costs incurred to issue the bonds.

Interest on the variable interest rate bonds is paid at various times as specified in the trust agreements relating to such
bonds, at rates determined by the remarketing agent and the City after reviewing the rates of similar municipal issues. The
bonds may be put at the discretion of the holders at a price equal to principa plus accrued interest on any interest payment
date or such other dates as specified in the trust agreements. The remarketing agent is authorized to use its best efforts to
sell the put bonds at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount.
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NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

The variable rate genera obligation bonds are accounted for in the Governmental type bonds ($33,920,000) the Water
Enterprise Fund ($47,695,000); and the Electricity Enterprise Fund ($7,290,000). These bonds are enhanced by a
Liquidity Facility provided by Westdeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale—New Y ork Branch (West L-B).

Under the Liquidity Facility for the variable rate general obligation bonds, subject to certain terms and conditions set forth
therein, West L-B agrees to make funds available to purchase bonds that are tendered or required to be tendered for
purchase and not remarketed or for which remarketing proceeds are not delivered. The Liquidity Facility on the 1995
variable rate general obligation bonds and the 1996 variable rate general obligation bonds will expire on June 15, 2004 and
December 15, 2004, respectively, subject to earlier termination in accordance with its terms, but may be extended or
replaced. Extension of the termination date, if the City requests, is at the option of West L-B. The immediate termination
or suspension of West L-B’s obligation to purchase bonds under the Liquidity Facility does not result in acceleration of the
bonds. West L-B is not obligated to pay the principal or redemption price of or interest on the bonds under any
circumstances, but is obligated only to purchase bonds upon the tender thereof, subject to the terms and provisions of the
Liquidity Facility.

If West L-B should be required to purchase these bonds, the City would be required to pay West L-B interest at the higher
of the West L-B’s prime rate or 2% over the Federal Funds rate. Thisincreased interest is reflected in the following table
as Debt Service Fund, Water Enterprise Fund, and Electricity Enterprise Fund general obligation bonds.

The TIF variable rate revenue bonds ($4,000,000) are also enhanced by a letter of credit issued by Fifth Third Bank of
Cincinnati, Ohio.

The Sanitary Sewer variable rate revenue bonds ($51,600,000) carry no letter of credit or liquidity enhancement. If a put
bond proves to be unremarketable by the remarketing agent, the City is required by statute to buy the bonds into its own
portfolio. A specific interest rate is not required of the Sanitary Sewer variable rate revenue bonds if purchased into City’'s
investment portfolio.

The following table reflects the additiona interest the City would have to pay if the variable rate bonds were purchased
into the City’ s own portfolio. The assumed incremental interest rate in the table is 3.50%.

Debt
Service Fund Electricity Funds

Genera Water Electricity
Obligation General Sewer Genera

and Revenue  Obligation Revenue  Obligation
Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds

(in thousands)
Y ear ending December 31

2002 $ 1,368 1,635 1,806 268
2003 1,244 1,525 1,806 236
2004 1,152 1,415 1,806 204
2005 1,059 1,305 1,806 172
2006 960 1,195 1,806 141
2007-2011 3,076 4,328 6,412 231
2012-2016 564 1,584 — -
2017 7 31 — —
$ 9,430 13,018 15,442 1,252

The City may, at its option, convert the variable rate bonds to a fixed rate. Furthermore, the bonds may be called at the
discretion of the City under specified procedures on any interest payment date.
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NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

Future Debt Service

The following tables summarize the City’ s future debt service requirements on its outstanding bonds, long-term notes, and
OWDA/EPA loans and loan commitments as of December 31, 2001 (excluding called Governmental Type Non-
Proprietary Bonds of $51,114,000 and called Sewer Bonds of $1,266,000 both redeemed on January 2, 2002). Future
interest assumes rates on variable rate debt in effect at December 31, 2001. Although the variable rate bonds may be
payable upon demand (as described previoudly), the City intends to repay these issues in accordance with the respective

redemption schedules.

Y ear ending December 31:

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006

2007-2011
2012-2016
2017-2021
2022-2024

Y ear ending December 31:
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007-2011
2012-2016
2017-2021
2022-2024

Y ear ending December 31:

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007-2011
2012-2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2028

Governmental Type
Non-Proprietary

(in thousands)

Governmental Type
Internal Service

Enterprise funds (continued)

Component Unit-CMAA

Electricity
Bonds Interest Bonds Interest

8,551 2,823 7,004 7,790
8,591 2,479 7,654 7,397
8,871 2,095 7,736 6,985
8,902 1,672 7,846 6,566
9,071 1,246 5,026 6,175
18,872 1,736 20,355 27,205
900 38 21,695 21,550
- - 28,165 14,909
- - 30,885 6,436
- - 11,100 562
63,758 12,089 147,466 105,575

100

Bonds Notes Interest Bonds Interest
70,245 124 36,565 650 228
69,563 257 34,205 640 197
67,634 257 30,671 655 166
64,181 257 27,129 645 133
62,336 257 23,746 545 102

241,382 1,286 76,149 1,560 189
144,833 1,149 28,573 150 38
32,325 490 5,168 90 6
7,585 9 731 - -
760,084 4,086 262,937 4,935 1,059
Enterprise funds
Water Sewer
OWDA
Bonds Interest Bonds LOANS Interest

$ 23053 12,353 30,378 9,858 24,732

24,218 11,840 32,888 10,762 25,436

23,347 10,670 33,248 12,516 25,049

23,464 9,468 28,602 12,957 23,048

23,249 8,236 29,197 13,246 20,697

102,364 24,470 145,845 73,295 71,053

50,802 7,411 37,040 81,259 36,632

11,280 624 21,210 68,264 12,731

- - 2,450 12,215 636

$ 281,777 85,072 360,858 294,372 240,014



NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)
Restricted Assets

In conjunction with the issuance of the Water and Sewer revenue bonds, the City entered into various trust agreements
with commercial banks. These trust agreements require that the City establish various funds for the cost of construction
and repayment of debt. The restricted asset balances in the Enterprise Funds segregate funds held by the City from funds
held by trustees in accordance with the trust agreements. Enterprise restricted assets consisted of the following at
December 31, 2001:

Component
Tota Unit—
Water Sewer Electricity Enterprise CMAA
Restricted assets— (in thousands)
Held by the City and CMAA—
Construction funds $ 30,064 29,804 7,034 66,902 72,993
Funds due to City, including interest - - - - 6,171
Debt service funds - - - - 20,851
Customer deposits - - - - 198
Held by trustees—
Construction Funds - - - - -
Debt service funds 1,863 6,270 - 8,133 -
Accrued interest receivable on
Investments 1 6 — 7 —
Total restricted assets $ 31,928 36,080 7,034 75,042 100,213

Except for accrued interest receivable, restricted assets consist of cash, cash equivalents, and investments. In addition,
these trust agreements require the City to pledge net revenues (defined in the trust agreement as revenues less operating
and maintenance expenses) of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds to the payment of the principal and interest on the
respective bonds when due.

In the opinion of management, the city has complied with al bond covenants.

Matured Bonds and I nterest

Matured bonds and interest payable include $915,000 and $595,868 respectively at December 31, 2001; $821,000 and
$592,777 at December 31, 2000.

OWDA

Loans payable to the Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA/EPA), $182,172,079 are revenue obligations incurred
to help finance sewerage treatment facilities and are to be repaid from charges for sewerage services.

CMAA

All general obligation bonds including those bonds ($23,435,000) outstanding at December 31, 2001 being repaid by
CMAA revenues to the City are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. However, it isthe City's policy to pay debt
service on general obligation bonds issued for enterprise purposes from the revenues of the respective enterprise fund.
General obligation bonds being repaid by CMAA revenues to the City, while reported by the City as general obligation
bonds, are reported in the CMAA’s component unit financial statements as long-term debt. Accordingly, such debt is
reported in the respective enterprise funds and CMAA. Deficiencies, if any, will be paid from the City’s Debt Service
Fund. All such CMAA obligationsto the City have been paid when due.

In 1994 CMAA issued $37,160,000 of Airport Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1994A, dated August 1, 1994 with a

final maturity date of January 1, 2024. Of these bonds, $34,170,000 remain outstanding at December 31, 2001 and bear
interest rates of 5.35% to 6.25%.
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NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

In 1998 CMAA issued Airport Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A and 1998B, dated February 1, 1998, in the
total amount of $87,290,000. Of these bonds $86,700,000 remain outstanding at December 31, 2001 and bear interest
rates ranging from 4.50% to 5.25%.

In June 2001 CMAA issued $3,265,000 of Subordinate Taxable Airport Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A.
These bonds have a final maturity date of June 2011. Of these bonds, $3,161,000 remain outstanding at December 31,
2001.

The 1994 bonds, the 1998 bonds and the 2001 bonds are payable solely from CMAA revenues. These bonds are not
senior debt to amounts owed to the City, but are equal in liability status, or on parity, with amounts owed to the City.

Voted Debt Authority
Various amounts of debt for various purposes were authorized by the City’'s voters (voted-unlimited) in May 1991 and

November 1999. The remaining unissued amounts and purposes of these authorizations are shown in the following table.
(inthousands) Thereisno time limit regarding utilization of the authorization.

Date Totd Issuedin Issuedin Unissued as
Authorized Authorized 1991-2000 2001 of 12/31/01
(in thousands)

Sanitary sewer system 1991 $ 325,000 216,315 49,070 59,615
Public safety 1999 28,255 9,645 - 18,610
Recreation and parks 1999 59,375 28,770 - 30,605
Refuse collection 1999 10,675 3,310 - 7,365
Streets and highways 1999 203,720 80,285 - 123,435
Hedth 1999 30,500 26,925 - 3,575
Electricity 1999 28,330 4,195 3,005 21,130
Storm sewers 1999 30,000 22,710 5,545 1,745
Water system 1999 200,000 - 28,340 171,660
$ 915,855 392,155 85,960 437,740

Bonds identified above as Sanitary sewer system, Electricity, and Water system are accounted for in the respective
Business type enterprise funds. Other bonds are accounted for as Governmental type bonds.

Legal Debt Margins

The ORC provides that the total net debt (as defined in the ORC) of a municipal corporation, whether or not approved by
the electors, shall not exceed 10.5% of the total value of all property in the municipal corporation as listed and assessed for
taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of municipal corporations cannot exceed 5.5% of the total taxation value of
property. The statutory limitations on debt are measured by the ratio of net debt to tax valuation and expressed in terms of
a percentage. At December 31, 2001, the City’s total net debt amounted to 4.72% of total assessed value of al property
within the City and unvoted net debt amounted to 0.33% of the total assessed value of all property within the City. The
City had alegal debt margin for total debt of $758,170,000 and alegal debt margin for unvoted debt of $677,915,000. The
aggregate amount of the City’s unvoted debt is also subject to overlapping debt restrictions with other political
subdivisions.

Conduit Type Debt
In 1994, the City issued $2,225,000 in library improvement revenue bonds in conjunction with the Worthington Public
Library, another separate and distinct political subdivision. The site of this Worthington Public Library building, however,

is located within the geographic boundaries of the City of Columbus. The proceeds of the bonds were used to construct
and expand library facilities that were leased to the Board of Trustees of the library. The lessee makes |ease payments
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NOTE G—BONDS, NOTESAND LOANSPAYABLE (continued)

directly to the revenue bond trustee in an amount equal to the revenue bond payments. In the event of default on the lease
payments, the City’ s liability islimited to surrendering possession of the library facilities to the trustees. The revenue

bonds do not constitute a debt or a pledge of the faith and credit of the City and, accordingly, are not reflected in the
accompanying basic financia statements. All payments of principal and interest were made when due. Bonds remaining

outstanding at December 31, 2001 are as follows: (in thousands)
Outstanding at Fina

Issue Interest Origina December 31, Maturity
Title Date Rates Amount 2001 Date
City of Columbus, Ohio Library Improvement 5.00%
Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 (Board of Trustees of August 1, to January 1,
the Worthington Public Library—L essee) 1994 6.15% $2,225 $1,540 2015
Defeased Bonds
A description of the City's advance refunded, defeased, bonds with remaining outstanding amounts follows: (in thousands)
Interest Amount
Date Origind  Redemption Rates (%) Outstanding at

Description of Originally Par Or Date  Maturities Of defeased Amount December 31,
Defeased bonds Issued Amount cal date  Defeased Defeased Bonds defeased 2001
Sewer Improvement

No. 26 (U) - GO 6/15/91  $101,320  9/15/01 11/15/93 2011 6.00 $ 5,070 $ 5,070(1)
Sewer Improvement 2005 - 6.00to

No. 26 (U) - GO 6/15/91 101,320  9/15/01 4/8/94 2010 6.875 30,405 30,405(1)
Sewer Improvement 2003 - 6.00to

No. 27 (E-U) Refunding 12/15/91 22,420  2/15/02 3/15/99 2012 6.30 13,300 13,300(2)

Bonds-GO
Various Purpose 2003- 5.90to

Series 1992-1 (U) — GO 3/1//92 5,110 3/1/02 1/15/98 2013 6.30 2,155 2,155(2)
Streets & Highways 2003 - 6.20 to

Series 1992 (L) — GO 3/1/92 500 3/1/02 1/15/98 2013 6.50 275 275(2)
Various Purpose 2005- 5.80to

Series 1992-2 (U) — GO 7/1/92 11,850 7/1/02 1/15/98 2013 6.00 4,615 4,615(2)
Various Purpose 2005- 5.90to

Series 1992-3 (L) — GO 7/1/92 5,815 7/1/02 1/15/98 2013 6.25 855 855(2)
Various Purpose 2006- 5.70to

Series 1992-4 (U) — GO 11/1/92 5,895 5/1/03 1/15/98 2014 6.00 2.430 2,430(2)
Various Purpose 2006- 5.70to

Series 1992-5 (L) — GO 11/1/92 4,145 5/1/03 1/15/98 2014 6.00 1,080 1,080(2)
Waterworks Enlargement 2005- 5.60to

No. 44 (U) - GO 11/1/92 45,830 5/1/03 1/15/98 2014 6.00 22,930 22,930(2)
Sewer Improvement 2005- 5.60to

No 28 (E-U) - GO 11/1/92 28,30C 5/1/03 1/15/98 2014 6.00 14,150 14,150(2)
Various Purpose 2006- 5.70to

Series 1994-1 (L) — GO 5/15/94 38,110 5/15/04 1/15/98 2015 6.0 9,305 9,305(2)
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(1) These defeasances apply to these maturities only. These bonds are not called. The City has escrowed money for
principal and interest to their final maturities, 9/15/2005, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10 and 11. The City does however reserve
the right to call these bonds.

(2) Monies providing for the payment of these outstanding bonds, both principal and interest are held by escrow agents
who will redeem such bonds on their maturity or call dates. These monies and corresponding liabilities, since the
bonds are defeased and not considered aliability of the City, are not included in the City's financial statements.

Tax Increment Financing Districts (TIF)

The City, pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code and City ordinances, has established 13 TIF's. A TIF represents a
geographic area wherein property values created after the commencement date of the TIF are exempt, in whole or in part,
from property taxes. Owners of such property, however, must pay amounts equal to the property taxes, known as “service
fees’, as though the TIF had not been established. These “service fees’ are then dedicated to the payments for various
public improvements within or adjacent to the TIF area. However, payments from one of the TIF s will assist the City in
paying for certain public improvements in an area remote from the TIF area. Property values existing before the
commencement date of a TIF continue to be subjected to property taxes.

“Service fee” revenue was $3.160 million in 2001 and is accounted for in the Debt Service Funds since these monies are
intended to pay principal and interest on bonds whose proceeds will be used to construct public improvements.
Corresponding fixed assets are accounted for in the City’ s infrastructure accounts.

TIF s have a longevity of the shorter period of 30 years or until the public improvements are paid for. The property tax
exemption then ceases; service fees cease and property taxes then apply to the property values.

Advance Refundings and Defeasances
There were no advance refundings of bondsin 2001 and therefore, no defeasances.
Current Refundings--Electricity Enterprise

The City of Columbus, Ohio Variable Rate Demand Electric System Revenue Bonds Series 1984 (monthly variable
rate mode), issued pursuant to a trust agreement dated as of September 1, 1984 in the amount of $70,000,000, with
$44,600,000 remaining outstanding at March 1, 2001 and callable on any interest payment date, were refunded by
the issuance of limited (unvoted) general obligation bonds in the amount of $32,675,000 dated March 1, 2001 with
final maturities on March 1, 2008. The trustee held the above funds, plus interest, and on April 2, 2001 redeemed
the refunded bonds. The letter of credit issued by the Union Bank of Switzerland, which secured the refunded
bonds, expired April 6, 2001. The refunding resulted in a premium to the City of $975,556 and issuance costs of
$53,230.

Current Refundings-Other

The City issued $138,340,000 of various purpose unlimited tax bonds in 2001 with a date of December 15, 2001. Included
in this amount were monies to refund three existing bond issues. The refunding issues of power plant, storm sewer and
sanitary sewer enterprise resulted in premiums of $2,621,830; $17,522 and $65,339, respectively. Issuance costs incurred
were $62,022; $414 and $1,547, respectively.

Component Unit--CMAA

On July 19, 2001 the City refunded four of its general obligation bond issues being repaid by its component unit—CMAA.
The four issues weret titled: (in thousands)
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Y ear

Issue issued
Airport No. 30 1991
Airport No. 31 1991
Airport No. 32 1991
Airport No. 33 1991

After issuance of a 3 day bond anticipation note to the City’ s treasury investment pool from July 16 to July 19 (in order to
meet all prescribed regulations) two refunding bond issues were sold and dated July 15, 2001 with delivery on July 19,
2001. One refunding issue, Airport No. 34 in the amount of $8,580,000, refunded Airport issues Nos. 30, 31, and 33. A
second refunding issue, Airport No. 35, a separate issue because of its private activity character, in the amount of
$2,610,000, refunded Airport No. 32. The refunding resulted in a premium to CMAA of $311,996 and issuance costs of

$46,604.

Premium and | ssuance Costs

Only those bonds issued in 2001 having premiums and/or issuance costs, none had discounts, are shown in the following
table. Sanitary sewer-enterprise assessment bonds of $293,641 and Electricity-enterprise assessment bonds of $119,122

were sold at par with no issuance costs.

Governmental type
Revenue TIF bonds
GO Storm sewer-new issue
GO Power plant-refunding
GO Storm sewer-refunding

Total
Businesstype
GO Electricity enterprise-new money
Go Electricity enterprise-refunding
GO Water enterprise-new money
GO Sanitary sewer-new money
GO Sanitary sewer-refunding
Component Unit-CMAA
GO Airport

Subsequent Event-Current Refunding

On March 14, 2002 the City sold $71,640,000 Sewerage System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, dated April 2,
2002 with final maturities on June 1, 2008. These bonds refunded $73,420,000 Sewerage System Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 1992 that were called on their call date of June 1, 2002. Final maturities of the 1992 Series had also been

Call
date

10/15/01
10/15/01
7/15/01
7/15/01

Tota

Callable
amount

6,740
1,390
2,610

450

$ 11190

(in thousands)

Par Premium

$ 4,000 -
5,545 225
50,775 2,622
339 17

$ 60,659 2,864
$ 3,005 173
32,675 976
28,340 1,524
49,070 1,987
1,266 65

$ 114,356 4,725
$ 11,190 312

Costs of
Issuance

79
7
62

148

D

53

5

N ©

=
a1
[y

__ 46

(o]

June 1, 2008. The refunding resulted in a premium of $3,402,522 and issuance costs of $154,122.
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Summary of Current Refundings

Governmental Type

(in thousands)

Business Type-Enterprise

Reacquisition price
Old bonds outstanding
Call premium on old bonds
Funds required to refund old bonds

Net carrying amount of old bonds
Old bonds outstanding

Deferred amount on the refunding
Fund used to accomplish the refunding

Principal amount of new bonds issued
Portion of premium received on sale of new bonds

Bond reserve fund held by trustee originated as part
of refunded bonds, and restricted in its final useto

Payment of the revenue bonds

Replacement reserve fund, held by City, originated
as part of refunded bonds, and restricted in its
final use to payment of the revenue bonds

Bond payment fund, held by trustee; an
accumulation of an equivalent of monthly
principal payments on the refunded bonds

Total funds used for accomplishing refunding

Nominal savings, economic gain and present
value savings

Refunded (old) bonds
Principal
Interest
Total refunded

Refunding (new) bonds
Principal
Interest
Total refunding

Unadjusted reduction in aggregated debt service

Interest earned, pending call date
Accrued interest received
Premium received, net of call premium paid
<Less> |ssuance costs
Contribution of funds restricted for refunding
Adjusted reduction in aggregate
Debt service

Economic gain—present value of adjusted reduction
in aggregate
Debt service

Present value rate—true interest
Cost of new bonds

Interest rate borne by old bonds

Storm Power Electricity  Sanitary
Sewers Plant Tota System Sewers Tota
$ 339 50,775 51,114 44,600 1,266 45,866
7 1,015 1,022 - 25 25
346 51,790 52,136 44,600 1,291 45,891
339 50,775 51,114 44,600 1,266 45,866
$ 7 1,015 1,022 - 25 25
$ 339 50,775 51,114 32,675 1,266 33,941
7 1,015 1,022 - 25 25
- - - 7,000 - 7,000
- - - 3,000 - 3,000
- - - 1,925 - 1,925
$ 346 51,790 52,136 _44,600 1,291 45,891
$ 339 50,775 51,114 44,600 1,266 45,866
86 12,886 12,972 6,204 (1) 321 6,525
425 63,661 64,086 50,804 1,587 52,391
339 50,775 51,114 32,675 1,266 33,941
67 10,002 10,069 6,204 250 6,454
406 60,777 61,183 38,879 1,516 40,395
19 2,884 2,903 11,925 71 11,996
1 21 22 56 1 57
11 1,607 1,618 976 40 1,016
@ (62) (63) (53) e (55)
- - - (11,925) - (11,925)
$ 30 4,450 4,480 979 110 1,089
$ 26 3,950 3,976 979 98 1,077
3.61% 3.61% 3.88% 3.61%
6.1-6.5% 6.2-6.6% 3.35-4.05% 6.1- 6.5%

Component Subsequent
Unit Event
Sanitary
CMAA Sewers
11,190 73,420
- 1,468
11,190 74,888
11,190 72,532
- 2,356
11,190 71,640
- 3,248
11,190 74,888
11,190 73,420
1,743 16,928
12,933 90,348
11,190 71,640
1,445 13,374
12,635 85,014
298 5,334
- 249
6 -
312 1,934
47) (154)
569 7,363
607 8,253
3.62% 3.52%
6.0-7.15% 6.13-6.4%

(1) City assumed interest costs for the refunded variable rate debt to be equal to that of refunding debt. Refunding was due to other indenture considerations.
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NOTE H—ELECTRICITY

The City’ s Electricity Enterprise celebrated its 102nd year of operation in 2001. The Enterprise presently serves 3,757
commercial customers and 9,520 residential customers and in 2001 had operating revenues of $52.6 million ($50.6 million
in 2000). During 2001, the Electricity Enterprise Fund received approximately 22.9% (22.7.0% in 2000) of its charges for
services from other funds of the City for electric power. The enterprise purchases and resellsits power. The enterprise
does not generate power.

On November 30, 2000 the Enterprise entered into a mandatory, exclusive contract for the purchase of power at $36.14 per
megawatt hour, adjusted for various transmission and other factors. The contract shall remain in effect until December 31,
2008, subject to the supplier’s option to terminate on December 31 of 2005, 2006 or 2007. In order to assist the enterprise
in meeting its cash requirements, the City, from its Debt Service Fund, transferred $2.0 million in 2001; $5.5 million in
2000 and $10.5 million in 1999 to the enterprise. The City intends to continue to operate its Electricity Enterprise.

Included in receivables (Note D) in the Special Income Tax debt service fund is $109,483,292 representing amounts due
from the Solid Waste Authority of Central Ohio (SWACO). On April 1, 1993, the City leased to SWACO an electricity-
generating, solid waste recovery plant and related transfer stations (the Plant). The annual lease payments to the City were
to be in the amount of the related debt service requirements. SWACO paid these rental payments to the City in atimely
manner in 1993 and in 1994. The lease resulted in the removal of certain real and persona property assets from the
Electricity Enterprise Fund with costs in the amount of $202,000,000. The lease was accounted for as a capital lease in
accordance with Statement No. 13 of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting for Leases, as amended, and
was originally accounted for in the Electricity Enterprise Fund.

Due to a series of federa court decisions and U.S. E.P.A. decisions, the Plant ceased operations in 1994. Because the
asset underlying the lease was no longer a functioning asset the lease was transferred from the Electricity Enterprise Fund
to the Special Income Tax debt service fund in 1994. General obligation bonds outstanding at that time and related to the
construction of the underlying assets were also transferred, in 1994, from the Electricity Enterprise Fund to the then
existing General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

In 1998 and again in 1999, the City and SWACO amended the lease, the third and fourth modifications. Essentidly, the
City agreed to reduce the amount due from SWACO to the City to an amount equal to 65% of debt service and associated
bond costs required for the City’s bonds from January 1, 1995 to the bonds' fina maturity in 2010. SWACO agreed to
impose a hew fee on garbage originating throughout the SWACO boundaries, primarily Franklin County, Ohio. Proceeds
from this new fee should produce approximately $5 million cash annually to be paid in total to the City. The City, rather
than pay cash to SWACO for residential type garbage picked up by City garbage trucks, grants a credit to SWACO against
the amount due by SWACO to the City. This credited amount would approximate an additional $2.3 million annualy.
This new fee applies to al garbage originating within SWACO boundaries regardless of whether the garbage is disposed
of (tipped) at SWACO's landfill or not. This new fee was authorized by SWACO in December 1998 to be effective at
various dates in 1999. SWACO also agreed to remit to the City all profits from the landfill operations, after maintaining
certain reserves, and other miscellaneous revenues.

SWACO operates alandfill and agrees to continue to operate the landfill in a manner that ensures that disposal capacity in
the Franklin County Landfill will be available to the City and to residents through, at a minimum, the year 2025. The City
continues to agree to dispose of al garbage collected by the City at the SWACO landfill. In 2001, the City paid SWACO
$11.1 million for landfill tipping fees.

The lease of the Plant between the City and SWACO extends to March 31, 2010 with automatic renewals of 5-year terms
at annual rentals of $100,000, unless SWACO chooses not to renew.

The City received $2.5 million from SWACO in January, February, 2002 and is recognized as revenue in 2001 (60 day
rule). All lease receivable amounts not received within 60 days after year-end have been accounted for as deferred revenue
in the Special Income Tax debt service fund.
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NOTE H—ELECTRICITY (continued)

A reconciliation of the debt service on the City's bonds related to the SWACO agreement to the City’'s lease receivable
due from SWACO at December 31, 2001 follows:

Debt service: 1995-2000 $ 108,061,100
2001 17,113,339
Projected debt service 2002-2010 106,965,948
Less:
Debt service prorated to Alum
Creek transfer station vacated
By SWACO (2002-2004) (246,713)

Net premium and accrued interest on refunding
bond sale of 12-15-01; applied to debt servicein

January, 2002
Premium (1,544,308)
Accrued interest (20,727)
Total applicable debt service $ 230,328,639
65% of total applicable debt service $ 149,713,615
Less:
Payments made by SWACO
1995-2000 (32,010,724)
2001 (7,115,469)
Credits, in lieu of payments:
Retired facility fee 1999-2000 (4,084,010)
2001 (2,420,415)
Environmental costs and other
1998-2000 (664,781)
2001 (1,892,595)
Interest due on deferred payment
1998-2000 5,990,082
2001 1,967,589
Amount due from SWACO to
City at 12-31-2001 $ 109,483,292

Debt service for 1995 through 2001 includes actual principal and interest on the general obligation bonds and principa and
interest on the revenue bonds paid to the revenue bond trustee until such revenue bonds were refunded by genera
obligation bondsin March 2001. Also included are associated bond costs: letter of credit fees, trustee fees and
remarketing agent fees applicable to the revenue bonds. Total principal, interest and associated bond costs were then
reduced by interest earned and collected by the revenue bond trustee. Estimated amounts for years 2002 to 2010 include
actual principal and interest on the general obligation bonds remaining to be paid. All deficienciesin lease payments from
SWACO will be subsidized by the City from the Electricity Enterprise Fund and from the Special Income Tax debt service
fund. The City isfully capable of meeting the debt service requirements of these bonds.

NOTE |I—PROPERTY LEASED TO OTHERS

The City leased to others in 1985, an office building known as the old, old post office. The City has no net investment in
this lease because the City's purchase price of $3 million for the building was entirely recovered by a lease payment
received at the lease's inception. The initial lease term is for 20 years with a 20-year renewal term at $100 per year. The
lessee may then purchase the property at its then fair market value or continue to lease it for up to 55 additional years.

The City leases certain real property, together with buildings and improvements located thereon, to the Columbus
Zoological Park Association (the Zoo). The lease, with annual rental payments of $1 per year, an extension of earlier
leases that began in 1970, commenced June 23, 1989 and expires June 23, 2004. The Zoo uses and occupies the
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NOTE |—PROPERTY LEASED TO OTHERS (continued)

premises solely for zoological, conservation, educational, research and recreational purposes. Animals at the Zoo are not
owned by the City.

See also Note H regarding assets leased to SWACO by the City.
NOTE J—LEASE COMMITMENTS AND LEASED ASSET

The City leases a significant amount of property and equipment under short term operating leases. Tota rental
expenditures on such leases for the year ended December 31, 2001 were approximately $5.4 million.

The City also leases a building under a capitalized lease. The cost of the building, $19.8 million, is included in the City's
capital assets used in governmental activities. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the
capitalized lease together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2001. This
amount also appearsin Note G.

Y ear ending December 31 (in thousands)

2002 $ 1,178
2003 1,088
2004 1,007
2005 916

Total minimum lease payments 4,189
Less—amount representing interest at 10.5% (729)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 3,460

NOTE K—PENSION PLANS

Police and fire sworn personnel participate in the statewide Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (P&F). Substantialy all
other City employees participate in the statewide Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS). Both P&F and
PERS are cost sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems administered by their respective Retirement
Boards, consisting of 6 members elected by representative groups and 3 statutory members. The total payroll for the City's
employees for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $401.9 million. Of this amount, $188.5 million was covered by
P& F, $206.3 million was covered by PERS and $7.1 million was not subject to pension benefit cal culations.

Employer and employee required contributions to P& F and PERS are established by the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) and
are based on percentages of covered employees gross salaries, as defined. In addition to paying the employer’s share as
required by the ORC, the City pays a portion of the employee’s share.

Required contributions to P& F and PERS are used to fund pension obligations and health care programs. Rates required
attributable to 2001 payroll costs are summarized as follows:

Percentage of covered payroll—January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001

Employee share Employer
Paid by City Paid by employee Total Share Tota
Police 6.5 35 10.0% 19.5% 29.5%
Fire 85 15 10.0% 24.0% 34.0%
PERS:
Full time 85 - 8.5% 13.55% 22.05%
Part time 6.0 25 8.5% 13.55% 22.05%
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NOTE K—PENSION PLANS (continued)

Policeand Fire (P&F)

P& F has provided the following information to the City in order to assist the City in complying with Statement No. 27.
A. P&F isacost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.

B. P&F provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries.

C. Authority to establish and amend benefitsis provided by state statute per Chapter 742 of the ORC.

D. P&F issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written request to
P&F at: 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164 or by calling (614) 228-2975. (www.op-f.org)

E. The ORC provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. The required contributions are;

Employees Employer
Police 10% 19.5%
Fire 10% 24.0%

F. Required employer contributions are equal to 100% of the dollar amount billed to each employer.

City data indicates the required amounts for the past five years have been:

Employee share Employee share Employer share Total paid
Year paid by employee paid by City paid by City by City
(in thousands)
Police:
2001 $ 3,782 7,024 21,072 28,096
2000 3,287 6,104 18,311 24,415
1999 3,218 5,976 17,934 23,910
1998 3,030 5,627 16,880 22,507
1997 2,855 5,342 15,984 21,326
Fire:
2001 $ 1,207 6,842 19,317 26,159
2000 1,223 6,929 19,565 26,494
1999 982 5,565 15,700 21,265
1998 925 5,242 14,801 20,043
1997 882 5,001 14,119 19,120

Participants in P&F may retire at age 48 with at least 25 years of credited service or at age 62 with at least 15 years of
credited service and are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable in monthly installments for life, equal to 2.5% of
annual earnings for each of the first 20 years of credited service, 2.0% for each of the next five years of credited service,
and 1.5% for each year of service thereafter. However, this normal retirement benefit is not to exceed 72% of the
member’ s average annual salary of the three years during which the total earnings were greatest. Members become vested
in certain benefits after 15 years of service and become vested in full normal retirement benefits after 25 years of service.
P& F also provides a $1,000 lump-sum death benefits payment in addition to survivor and disability benefits. Benefits are
established by the ORC.

P&F has provided the following information pertaining to other postemployment benefits for health care costs in order to
assist the City in complying with Statement No. 12.
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NOTE K—PENSION PLANS (continued)

A.

PERS

P& F provides postretirement health care coverage to any person who received or is €ligible to receive a monthly
benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such person. An eligible dependent child is any child
under the age of 18 whether or not the child is attending school or under the age of 22 if attending school full-time
or on a 2/3 basis. The hedth care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. The Ohio Revised Code provides
that the health care cost paid from the fund of P& F shall be included in the employer’s contribution rate. The total
police employer contribution rate is 19.5% of covered payroll and the tota firefighter employer contribution rate
IS 24% of covered payroll.

The ORC provides the statutory authority allowing P&F s Board of Trustees (Board) to provide health care
coverage to al eligibleindividuals.

Health care funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you-go basis. A percentage of covered payroll, as defined by
the Board, is used to pay retiree health care expenses. The Board defined allocation was 7.25% of covered payroll
in 2000 and 7.5% in 2001. The alocation is 7.75% in 2002. In addition, since July 1, 1992 most retirees have
been required to contribute a portion of the cost of their health care coverage through a deduction from their
monthly benefit payment.

The total health care expense paid by the retirement plan was $106,160,054, net of member contributions of
$5,657,431 for the year ended December 31, 2,000. Eligible benefit recipients totaled 12,853 for police and
10,037 for fire. Based on the portion of each employer’s contribution to P&F set aside for funding of
postretirement health care, as described above, the City’s contribution for 2001 allocated to postretirement care
was approximately $8.1 million for police and $6.0 million for fire.

PERS has provided the following information to the City in order to assist the City in complying with GASB Statement
No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers (Statement No. 27).

A.

B.

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.

PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries.

Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 145 of the ORC.

PERS issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written request to
PERS at: 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or caling (614) 466-2085 or 1-800-222-PERS

(7377). (lww.opers.org)

The ORC provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. The City's employee
contribution rate in 2001 was 8.5%. The City’s contribution rate, as an employer, was 13.55% of covered payroll.

Required employer contributions are equal to 100% of the dollar amount billed to each employer and must be
extracted from the employer’ s records.
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NOTE K—PENSION PLANS (continued)
City data indicates the required amounts for the past five years have been:

Employee share Employee share Employer share Total paid
Paid by employee paid by City paid by City by City
(in thousands)
2001 $ 286 17,251 27,957 45,208
2000 314 16,455 21,200 37,655
1999 304 15,758 25,612 41,370
1998 292 14,772 24,015 38,787
1997 282 13,875 22,566 36,441

Participants in PERS may retire, at any age with 30 years of service, at age 60 with a minimum of five years of credited
service, and at age 55 with aminimum of 25 years of service. Those individuals retiring with less than 30 years of service
or less than age 65 receive reduced retirement benefits. Eligible employees are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, equal to 2.2% of their final average salary for each year of credited service up to 30 years. Employees are
entitled to 2.5% of their final average salary for each year of service over 30 years. Fina average salary is the employee's
average salary over the highest three years of earnings. Benefits fully vest upon reaching five years of service. PERS aso
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by the ORC.

PERS has provided the following information pertaining to other postemployment benefits for health care costs in order to
assist the City in complying with GASB Satement No. 12, Disclosure of Information on Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pension Benefits by State and Local Government Employers (Statement No. 12).

A. Public Employee Retirement System of Ohio provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service
retirees with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and
primary survivor recipientsis available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered
an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each
employer’s contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of post retirement health care. The Ohio Revised
Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions. For local government employer units the rate was
13.55% of covered payroll; 4.30% was the portion that was used to fund health care for the year.

B. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health
care through their contributions to PERS.

C. Summary of Assumptions:

Actuaria Review. The assumptions and calculations below were based on the Systems latest Actuarial Review
performed as of December 31, 2000.

Funding Method. An entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in determining the present value
of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and losses) becomes part of
unfunded actuaria accrued liability.

Assets Valuation Method. All investments are carried at market value. For actuarial valuation purposes, a
smoothed market approach is used. Under this approach assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized
market appreciation or depreciation on investment assets.

Investment Return. The investment assumption rate for 2000 was 7.75%.
Active Employee Total Payroll. An annual increase of 4.75% compounded annually, is the base portion of the
individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number of active employees. Additionaly,

annual pay increases, over and above the 4.75% base increase, were assumed to range from .54% to 5.1%.

Health Care. Health care costs were assumed to increase 4.75% annually.
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NOTE K—PENSION PLANS (continued)
D. OPEB are advanced-funded on an actuarially determined basis. The following disclosures are required:
1. Thenumber of active contributing participants was 411,076.
2. The City’s contribution used to fund OPEB was $8.87 million.

3. $11,735.9 million represents the actuarial value of the Retirement System’s net assets available for OPEB
at December 31, 2000.

4. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, based on the actuarial cost
method used, were $14,364.6 million and $2,628.7 million, respectively.

There are no post-employment benefits provided by the City other than those provided through PERS and P& F.

The liability for past service costs at the time PERS was established was assumed by the State of Ohio; therefore, it is not a
liahility of the City. The liability for past service costs at the time P& F was established was paid by the City to P&F in
January 1994. The City is current on al of its required pension fund contributions.

NOTE L—INCOME TAXES

The City levies a tax of 2% on substantially all income earned within the City. In addition, residents of the City are
required to pay City income tax on income they earn outside the City. However, a credit is alowed for income taxes paid
to other municipalities.

Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employees' compensation and remit this tax to the City
semimonthly, monthly, or quarterly, depending upon the amounts withheld. Corporations and other individual taxpayers
are reguired to pay their estimated tax quarterly and file a declaration annually.

For the governmental fund financia statements, as indicated in note A (c) and in accordance with GASB Statement No.
22, Accounting for Tax Payer Assessed Tax Revenues in Governmental Funds, the City recognizes as revenue income tax
received within 60 days after year end applicable to taxpayer liabilities for periods prior to the year end net of an alowance
for income tax refunds. These taxes are considered both measurable and available whereas all other income taxes are
recognized as revenue when received. The City has consistently followed this practice for many years.

Receivables and deferred revenues have been recorded in the General and Special Income Tax fund in the amount of
$47,838,000 and $15,946,000, respectively, for the estimated income tax due to the City for 2001 and prior tax years, but
not collected within the available period.

NOTE M—PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against al real, public utility and tangible personal (used in business) property
located in the City.

Real property taxes and public utility taxes collected during 2001 were levied after October 1, 2000 on the assessed value
listed as of January 1, 2000, the lien date. One half of these taxes were due January 20, 2001 with the remaining balance
due on June 20, 2001. Tangible personal property taxes attach as a lien and were levied on January 1, 2001. One half of
this tax was due on April 30, 2001 and the remaining balance was due on September 20, 2001.

Assessed values on real property are established by state law at 35% of appraised market value. A revaluation of all
property is required to be completed every sixth year. The last revaluation was completed in 1999. Tangible personal
property assessments are 25% of true value (true values are based on cost and established by the State of Ohio). The
assessed value upon which the 2001 levy was based was approximately $12.939 billion. The assessed value for 2001,
upon which the 2002 levy will be based, is approximately $13.108 billion.
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NOTE M—PROPERTY TAXES (continued)

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities within a county in excess of 1% of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Under current procedures, the City's share is .314% (3.14 mills) of assessed value. Increases
in the property tax rate are restricted only by voter willingness to approve such increases.

The County Treasurers collect property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in the counties, including the City of
Columbus. The County Auditors periodically remit to the City its portion of the taxes collected. Property taxes may be
paid on either an annual or semiannual basis. Current tax collections for the year ended December 31, 2001 were 96.61%
(96.7% in 2000) of the tax levy.

Property taxes levied in 2001 but not due for collection until 2002 are recorded in the General Fund as taxes receivable and
deferred revenues at December 31, 2001 in the amount of $40.8 million.

NOTE N—DEFICIT FUND EQUITIES

At December 31, 2001 the Recreation Debt Service Fund had a deficit of $2,336,466. This deficit will be eliminated by
future charges for services.

Fund balance deficits may be budgeted for and exist on the City's budgetary basis of accounting for certain Specia

Revenue and Debt Service Funds. These fund balance deficits exist because encumbrances are allowed to be recorded
against certain accounts receivable that are not recognized as revenue on the budget basis of accounting.

NOTE O—MISCELLANEOUSREVENUES

For the year ended December 31, 2001, miscellaneous revenues in the fund financial statement consisted of the following:

(in thousands)

Special

Income Other
Generd Tax Governmental

Hotel/motel taxes $ 2,735 - 8,404
Refunds and rei mbursements 2,266 105 2,749
Rent 92 14,060 162
Capital contribution - - 823
Paymentsin lieu of property taxes - - 3,160
Donations - - 1,112
CDA and UDAG loan interest - - 908
City auto license tax - - 3,030
Commissions 46 - 37
Sale of assets - - 798
Other 512 469 3,005
$ 5651 14,634 24,188
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NOTE P—TRANSFERS

For the year ended December 31, 2001, operating transfers presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) consisted of the following: (in thousands)

Transfersin
Generd
Total Bond Special Other Business Type
Transfers Genera Retirement  Income Tax Governmental Activities-
Out Fund Fund Fund Funds Enterprise Funds
General Fund
Recreation Operating $ 29,760 - - - 29,760
Health Operating 19,499 - - - 19,499
Other 3,242 - 2,002 - 1,240 -
Total General Fund 52,501 - 2,002 - 50,499 -
Specia Income Tax Fund
Electricity Subsidy 2,000 - - - - 2,000
Tipping Fees 15,101 15,101 - - - -
Total Specia Income Tax Fund 17,101 15,101 - - - 2,000
Other Governmental Funds
Specia Revenue Funds 12,539 600 5,912 - 6,027
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 7,043 - 3,258 3,785 -
Capital Projects Funds 4,045 - - 139 3,906 -
Total Other Governmental Funds 23,627 600 9,170 3,924 9,933
Total $ 93,229 15,701 11,172 3,924 60,432 2,000

NOTE Q—JOINT VENTURES
* FRANKLIN PARK CONSERVATORY JOINT RECREATION DISTRICT
Asnoted in Note A, the Franklin Park Conservatory Joint Recreation District (the Conservatory District) is considered a

joint venture of the City and Franklin County (the County). The arrangement with the Conservatory District possesses all
of the following characteristics to be classified as ajoint venture. The Conservatory District:

« resulted from a contractual arrangement (City Resolution 109X-90 and Franklin County Resolution 79-90
pursuant to authority contained in Section 755.14(B) of the Ohio Revised Code);

« functions as a separate and specific activity from the City and the County;

e is governed by the City and the County, with neither entity in a position to unilaterally control the
Conservatory District’ s financial or operating policies; and

* involves an ongoing financial responsibility on the part of the City and the County.

The Conservatory District receives an annual operating subsidy from the City, subject to annual appropriation by the City’s
Council. Financial statements of the Conservatory District may be obtained from the Conservatory District’'s
administration offices at 1777 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43203. Summary financial data for the year ended
December 31, 2001 are asfollows:
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NOTE Q—JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Cash and investments $ 346,523
Other current assets 66,277
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5,563,688
Other noncurrent assets 159,868
Tota assets 6,138,356
Current liabilities $ 351,258
Noncurrent liabilities _ 101,725
Total liabilities 452,983
Investment in capital assets net of related debt 5,555,662
Restricted net assets 328,896
Unrestricted net assets (201,185)
Total net asset $ 5,683,373
Total operating revenues (including City payments of $1,102,834) $ 3372793
Tota operating expense (3,428,765)
Operating income before depreciation (55,972)
Depreciation expense (321,199)
Investment income 15,843
Capital contributions 60,012
Decrease in net assets $ (301,316)

The Conservatory District’s restricted net assets at December 31, 2001 are comprised of an expendable endowment of
$179,468 and an investment of $149,428 at the Columbus Foundation, an Ohio not-for-profit corporation, for the purpose
of furthering the Conservatory District’'s mission. The Conservatory District has the right to suggest to the Columbus
Foundation how these monies are to be expended.

* COLUMBUSFRANKLIN COUNTY AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST CORPORATION

Also, as noted in Note A, the Columbus/Franklin County Affordable Housing Trust Corporation (AHT) is considered a
joint venture of the City and County. In its Audits of State and Local Governmental Units, with Conforming Changes as of
May 1, 2001, both the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) recognizes an organization to be governmenta if it has one or more of the following characteristics:

e “Popular election of officers or appointment (or approval) of a controlling majority of the members of the
organization’s governing body by officials of one or more state or local governments.”

All members of AHT's board of trustees are jointly appointed by the City's Mayor and the County’s
Commissioners.

e “The potential for unilateral dissolution by a government with the net assets reverting to the government.”

The contract between the City and AHT, in the event of its termination, calls for assets of AHT received from the
City and assets of AHT acquired through the use of City funds to revert to the City.

e “The power to enact and enforce atax levy.”

AHT does not have taxing authority.
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NOTE Q—JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Having two of the above characteristics AHT, therefore, is considered a joint venture of the City. AHT will continue to
receive annua funding from the City as long as the current agreement continues. Summary financia data for the year
ended December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Cash and cash equivaents, unrestricted $ 300,325
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 3,768,642
Other current assets, restricted 128,101
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 3,208

Tota assets 4,200,276
Current liabilities $ 10,329

Total liabilities 10,329
Investment in capital assets net of related debt 3,208
Restricted net assets 3,886,414
Unrestricted net assets 300,325

Total net asset $ 4,189,947
Total operating revenues (including City payments of $3,100,000) $ 4,187,614
Total operating expense (39,800)
Operating income before depreciation 4,147,814
Investment income 42,133
Increase in net assets $ 4,189,947
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit 9
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

General Fund

Variance—
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (negative)
Revenues:
Income taxes $ 335,900 $ 327,460 $ 329,210 $ 1,750
Property taxes 38,500 40,782 40,865 83
Investment income 23,500 30,600 30,760 160
Licenses and permits 10,580 11,275 11,464 189
Shared revenues 63,186 61,536 61,932 396
Charges for services 25,780 25,725 26,440 715
Fines and forfeits 12,800 12,925 12,924 (D)
Miscellaneous 3,870 12,255 12,452 197
Total revenues 514,116 522,558 526,047 3,489
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 65,108 67,786 67,039 747
Public service 40,319 40,072 39,419 653
Public safety 318,933 342,753 341,307 1,446
Development 29,218 30,081 29,429 652
Expenditures paid through county auditor 1,000 1,000 856 144
Total expenditures 454,578 481,692 478,050 3,642
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 59,538 40,866 47,997 7,131
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in — 100 3,147 3,047
Operating transfers out (89,433) (64,900) (55,941) 8,959
Total other financing sources (uses) (89,433) (64,800) (562,794) 12,006
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other uses (29,895) (23,934) (4,797) 19,137
Fund balances at beginning of year 65,838 65,838 65,838 —
Lapsed encumbrances 884 6,175 6,175 —
Fund balances (deficit) at end of year $ 36,827 $ 48,079 $ 67,216 $ 19,137

Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations at end of year
on the budget basis to the modified accrual basis (GAAP) are as follows:

Deficiency of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other uses

per the Budgetary Comparison Schedule (4,797)
(Increases) decreases from revenues:

Received in cash during vear but already accrued as receivables (GAAP) at December 31, 2000 (81,141)

Accrued as receivables at December 31, 2001 but not recoanized in budget 71,882
Deferred at December 31, 2000 but not recoanized in budget 39,614
Deferred at December 31, 2001 but recoanized in budget (40,800)
(Increases) decreases from encumbrances:

Expenditures of amounts encumbered during the year ended December 31, 2000 (31,162)

Recoanized as expenditures in the budget 31,477
(Increases) decreases from expenditures:

Accrued as liabilities at December 31, 2000 recoanized as expenditures (GAAP) but not in budget 32,885

Accrued as liabilities at December 31, 2001 (34,506)

Net change in fund balance per the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance $ (16,548)
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City of Columbus, Ohio

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - the general operating fund of the City and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

General Bond Retirement Fund - required by State statutes and accounts for all
general obligation debt, except proprietary funds’ general obligation debt, of the City.

Special Income Tax Fund — used to account for 25% of income tax collections set
aside for debt service and related expenditures.
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit A-1 (continued)
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
General Fund
Budget Basis
Year Ended December 31, 2001

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Expenditures
Current

General Government

City council

Personal services $ 2,360,537 $ 2,220,537 $ 2,216,660 $ 3,877

Materials and supplies 20,699 45,699 35,372 10,327

Contractual services 2,375,968 2,522,809 2,474,514 48,295
Total city council 4,757,204 4,789,045 4,726,546 62,499
City auditor

Personal services 2,318,478 1,933,156 1,933,156 -

Materials and supplies 75,011 51,404 51,404 -

Contractual services 2,040,951 2,758,935 2,757,157 1,778
Total city auditor 4,434,440 4,743,495 4,741,717 1,778
Income tax

Personal services 4,142,978 3,952,978 3,915,493 37,485

Materials and supplies 145,224 145,224 138,305 6,919

Contractual services 1,420,477 1,420,477 1,324,346 96,131

Capital outlay 50,000 20,000 20,000 -
Total income tax 5,758,679 5,538,679 5,398,144 140,535
City treasurer

Personal services 2,545,800 2,416,800 2,408,160 8,640

Materials and supplies 34,415 41,215 41,128 87
Contractual services 915,163 1,105,763 1,092,922 12,841
Other 12,000 12,000 10,524 1,476
Capital outlay - 11,600 10,005 1,595
Total city treasurer 3,507,378 3,587,378 3,562,739 24,639
City attorney

Personal services 8,344,899 8,369,236 8,335,193 34,043

Materials and supplies 202,470 96,696 89,524 7,172

Contractual services 1,118,218 2,192,149 2,119,396 72,753

Capital outlay - - - -
Total city attorney 9,665,587 10,658,081 10,544,113 113,968
Real estate

Personal services 486,944 486,944 477,332 9,612

Materials and supplies 10,730 10,730 10,305 425

Contractual services 24,823 24,823 16,014 8,809
Total real estate 522,497 522,497 503,651 18,846
Municipal court judges

Personal services 10,083,811 10,094,811 10,094,811 -

Materials and supplies 64,708 133,698 133,698 -

Contractual services 1,331,010 1,330,241 1,330,241 -

Capital outlay 69,783 - - -
Total municipal court judges 11,549,312 11,558,750 11,558,750 -

(Continued)
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit A-1 (continued)

Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
General Fund
Budget Basis
Year Ended December 31, 2001

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Municipal court clerk
Personal services $ 8,131,711 $ 7,941,711 $ 7,930,358 $ 11,353
Materials and supplies 137,029 109,029 108,036 993
Contractual services 617,040 935,040 925,220 9,820
Capital outlay - 12,000 9,162 2,838
Total municipal court clerk 8,885,780 8,997,780 8,972,776 25,004
Civil service commission
Personal services 2,674,275 2,684,498 2,667,975 16,523
Materials and supplies 27,350 27,350 27,324 26
Contractual services 598,233 416,062 369,223 46,839
Capital outlay 3,241 175,412 175,390 22
Total civil service commission 3,303,099 3,303,322 3,239,912 63,410
Human resources
Personal services 1,760,663 1,495,663 1,493,203 2,460
Materials and supplies 34,315 34,315 33,504 811
Contractual services 436,300 496,828 491,795 5,033
Other 200 200 - 200
Capital outlay 20,000 5,000 964 4,036
Total human resources 2,251,478 2,032,006 2,019,466 12,540
Technology director
Personal services 2,310,667 1,944,327 1,921,345 22,982
Materials and supplies 120,914 353,880 350,367 3,513
Contractual services 942,406 2,026,370 2,026,349 21
Capital outlay 25,500 59,858 29,417 30,441
Total technology director 3,399,487 4,384,435 4,327,478 56,957
Telecommunications
Personal services 386,181 386,181 382,481 3,700
Materials and supplies 9,973 9,973 1,107 8,866
Contractual services 28,364 28,364 11,118 17,246
Total telecommunications 424,518 424,518 394,706 29,812
Mayor
Personal services 1,844,311 1,911,672 1,904,648 7,024
Materials and supplies 20,300 20,249 20,249 -
Contractual services 179,035 178,910 166,981 11,929
Other 100 100 - 100
Total mayor 2,043,746 2,110,931 2,091,878 19,053
Community relations commission
Personal services 584,702 539,702 533,767 5,935
Materials and supplies 6,011 7,511 7,428 83
Contractual services 27,661 103,365 95,669 7,696
Capital outlay 2,500 2,500 180 2,320
Total community relations comm. 620,874 653,078 637,044 16,034
(Continued)
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit A-1 (continued)

Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
General Fund
Budget Basis
Year Ended December 31, 2001

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Equal business opportunity office
Personal services 825,547 $ 825,547 $ 806,718 $ 18,829
Materials and supplies 8,357 8,357 6,763 1,594
Contractual services 295,007 295,007 271,686 23,321
Total equal business opportunity 1,128,911 1,128,911 1,085,167 43,744
Finance
Personal services 2,294,806 2,131,806 2,113,503 18,303
Materials and supplies 43,000 43,000 13,733 29,267
Contractual services 516,750 1,177,977 1,108,008 69,969
Total finance 2,854,556 3,352,783 3,235,244 117,539
Total general government 65,107,546 67,785,689 67,039,331 746,358
Public service
Service director
Personal services 895,657 854,657 852,039 2,618
Materials and supplies 4,302 4,302 2,487 1,815
Contractual services 158,460 158,460 147,794 10,666
Capital outlay 2,000 2,000 325 1,675
Total service director 1,060,419 1,019,419 1,002,645 16,774
Refuse collection
Personal services 14,750,144 14,412,237 14,412,237 -
Materials and supplies 258,202 260,072 201,235 58,837
Contractual services 8,471,991 9,270,159 9,192,053 78,106
Other 106,090 210,970 161,817 49,153
Capital outlay - 18,200 18,200 -
Total refuse collection 23,586,427 24,171,638 23,985,542 186,096
Engineering and construction
Contractual services 137,100 137,100 137,100 -
Other 203,274 82,476 56,011 26,465
Total engineering and construction 340,374 219,576 193,111 26,465
Traffic engineering
Personal services 767,296 637,296 612,307 24,989
Materials and supplies 110,439 110,439 110,425 14
Contractual services 119,837 119,431 115,630 3,801
Other 68,000 28,000 24,453 3,547
Total traffic engineering 1,065,572 895,166 862,815 32,351
Facilities management
Personal services 5,648,153 5,670,270 5,588,677 81,593
Materials and supplies 633,298 658,298 657,939 359
Contractual services 7,982,223 7,418,283 7,109,235 309,048
Other 2,060 6,000 6,000 -
Capital outlay - 13,622 12,770 852
Total facilities management 14,265,734 13,766,473 13,374,621 391,852
Total public service 40,318,526 40,072,272 39,418,734 653,538
(Continued)
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit A-1 (continued)
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
General Fund
Budget Basis
Year Ended December 31, 2001

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Public safety
Safety director
Personal services $ 2,083,804 $ 1,992,304 $ 1,985,826 $ 6,478
Materials and supplies 23,432 19,932 15,622 4,310
Contractual services 9,434,734 9,997,686 9,981,263 16,423
Other 500 2,500 2,327 173
Capital outlay 31,344 610 171 439
Total safety director 11,573,814 12,013,032 11,985,209 27,823
Communications
Personal services 2,181,103 2,109,504 2,101,574 7,930
Materials and supplies 563,009 516,638 509,360 7,278
Contractual services 1,508,514 437,487 396,615 40,872
Other 500 500 - 500
Capital outlay 3,624 61,690 61,527 163
Total communications 4,256,750 3,125,819 3,069,076 56,743
Police
Personal services 158,659,566 176,030,295 176,030,295 -
Materials and supplies 3,782,259 4,266,340 4,152,058 114,282
Contractual services 12,683,592 11,955,004 11,730,747 224,257
Other 543,181 1,430,181 1,340,027 90,154
Capital outlay 108,000 944,450 924,875 19,575
Total police 175,776,598 194,626,270 194,178,002 448,268
Fire
Personal services 120,765,583 124,789,050 124,406,551 382,499
Materials and supplies 2,321,091 3,591,302 3,590,443 859
Contractual services 4,150,962 4,123,854 3,607,250 516,604
Other 35,010 455,010 447,937 7,073
Capital outlay 53,585 28,585 22,354 6,231
Total fire 127,326,231 132,987,801 132,074,535 913,266
Total public safety 318,933,393 342,752,922 341,306,822 1,446,100
Development
Development administration
Personal services 1,414,843 1,825,027 1,798,953 26,074
Materials and supplies 63,000 63,249 49,704 13,545
Contractual services 249,038 537,926 502,333 35,593
Other - 1,350 750 600
Capital Outlay - 126,183 105,000 21,183
Total development administration 1,726,881 2,553,735 2,456,740 96,995
Economic Development
Personal services - 176,757 158,354 18,403
Materials and supplies - 15,000 2,728 12,272
Contractual services - 165,000 142,467 22,533
Total economic development - 356,757 303,549 53,208
(Continued)
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit A-1 (continued)

Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
General Fund
Budget Basis
Year Ended December 31, 2001

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

Building services

Personal services $ 12,993,356 $ 11,140,801 $ 11,012,845 $ 127,956

Materials and supplies 211,742 99,773 94,743 5,030

Contractual services 863,549 1,389,275 1,379,035 10,240

Other 25,820 38,910 31,069 7,841

Capital outlay 247,000 2 2 -
Total building services 14,341,467 12,668,761 12,517,694 151,067
Neighborhood Services

Personal services - 2,434,013 2,384,397 49,616

Materials and supplies - 56,041 49,393 6,648

Contractual services - 566,006 433,412 132,594

Other - 3,910 1,500 2,410
Total neighborhood services - 3,059,970 2,868,702 191,268
Economic development and planning

Personal services 2,279,351 1,530,001 1,517,925 12,076

Materials and supplies 53,724 38,724 20,871 17,853

Contractual services 1,416,564 1,099,455 1,029,635 69,820

Other 1,173,000 1,340,108 1,340,108 -

Capital outlay 46,600 28,817 28,817 -
Total economic dev. and planning 4,969,239 4,037,105 3,937,356 99,749
Housing and community services

Personal services 1,118,572 570,482 570,410 72

Materials and supplies 7,502 2,428 1,698 730

Contractual services 7,017,752 6,552,600 6,521,020 31,580

Capital outlay 37,080 - - -
Total housing and community serv. 8,180,906 7,125,510 7,093,128 32,382
Housing

Personal services - 268,558 243,766 24,792

Materials and supplies - 3,825 1,500 2,325

Contractual services - 7,218 6,893 325
Total housing - 279,601 252,159 27,442
Total Development 29,218,493 30,081,439 29,429,328 652,111

Expenditures paid through
county auditor 1,000,000 1,000,000 855,846 144,154
Total expenditures $ 454,577,958 $ 481,692,322 $ 478,050,061 $ 3,642,261
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City of Columbus, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
General Bond Retirement
Budget Basis
Year ended December 31, 2001

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Neqgative)
Revenues
Investment earnings $ 169,274 $ 169,274 169,274 $ -
Special assessments 99,514 99,514 99,514 -
Miscellaneous 90,848,296 90,848,296 90,848,296 -
Total revenues 91,117,084 91,117,084 91,117,084 -
Expenditures
Current
General government
Sinking fund trustees
Personal services 164,500 164,500 152,879 11,621
Materials and supplies 1,000 1,000 252 748
Contractual services 10,040 10,040 6,512 3,528
Capital outlay 4,460 4,460 700 3,760
Total sinking fund trustees 180,000 180,000 160,343 19,657
Total general government 180,000 180,000 160,343 19,657
Debt service
Principal retirement and payment of
obligation under capitalized lease 113,096,333 128,291,918 128,281,148 10,770
Interest and fiscal charges 67,942,397 68,155,358 68,155,358 -
Total debt service 181,038,730 196,447,276 196,436,506 10,770
Total expenditures 181,218,730 196,627,276 196,596,849 30,427
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (90,101,646) (105,510,192) (105,479,765) 30,427
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in 105,574,352 105,574,352 105,574,352 -
Excess of revenues
and other financing sources over
expenditures and other uses 15,472,706 64,160 94,587 30,427
Fund balance at beginning of year 3,230,125 3,230,125 3,230,125 -
Lapsed encumbrances - - - -
Fund balance at end of year $ 18,702,831 $ 3,294,285 3,324,712 $ 30,427
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City of Columbus, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Income Tax
Budget Basis
Year ended December 31, 2001

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Income taxes $ 109,736,651 $ 109,736,651 $ 109,736,651 $ -
Miscellaneous 10,797,854 10,797,854 10,797,854 -
Total revenues 120,534,505 120,534,505 120,534,505 -
Expenditures
Current
General government
City auditor
Capital outlay 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Total city auditor 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
City attorney
Contractual services 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
Total city attorney 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
Finance
Contractual services 326,187 326,187 155,059 171,128
Other 200,000 200,000 200,000 -
Total finance 526,187 526,187 355,059 171,128
Total general government 1,626,187 1,626,187 1,355,059 271,128
Public service
Refuse collection
Contractual services 10,680,000 10,680,000 10,680,000 -
Total refuse collection 10,680,000 10,680,000 10,680,000 -
Total public service 10,680,000 10,680,000 10,680,000 -
Debt service
Principal retirement and payment of
obligation under capitalized lease 1,077,363 1,077,363 1,075,362 2,001
Interest and fiscal charges 409,725 409,725 405,325 4,400
Total debt service 1,487,088 1,487,088 1,480,687 6,401
Total expenditures 13,793,275 13,793,275 13,515,746 277,529
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 106,741,230 106,741,230 107,018,759 277,529
Other financing sources (uses)
Debt proceeds 51,114,000 51,114,000 51,114,000 -
Operating transfers in 3,496,445 3,496,445 3,496,445 -
Operating transfers out (119,363,766) (119,363,766) (116,469,208) 2,894,558
Total other financing sources (uses) (64,753,321) (64,753,321) (61,858,763) 2,894,558
Excess of revenues
and other financing sources over
expenditures and other uses 41,987,909 41,987,909 45,159,996 3,172,087
Fund balance at beginning of year 90,632,755 90,632,755 90,632,755 -
Lapsed encumbrances 165,143 165,143 165,143 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 132,785,807 $ 132,785,807 $ 135,957,894 $ 3,172,087
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City of Columbus, Ohio

Other Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds - used to account for revenues derived from specific taxes,
grants, or other restricted revenue sources. City ordinances or Federal and/or State statutes
specify the uses and limitations of each Special Revenue Fund. The title of the funds is
descriptive of the activities involved. The Special Revenue Funds are:

City Ordinances
e Cable Communications » Tree Replacement
e Fannie Mae Loans » Gatrell Arts Vocational Rehabilitation
e Land Management e Columbus Housing
* Area Commissions e Health
 Special Purpose e Storm Sewer Maintenance
e Mayor’s Education Charitable Trust * Municipal Motor Vehicle Tax
e Columbus Community Relations e Treasury Investment Earnings
» Housing/Business Tax Incentives e Golf Course Operations
e Hester Dysart Paramedic Education e Recreation & Parks Operations
e Hotel-Motel Tax e Private Grants
e Emergency Human Services e Urban Site Acquisition Loan Fund
* Private Leisure Assistance for Youth e Development Services

State Statutes

To Account for Shared Revenues, Fines, and Other Special Revenues

* Drivers Alcohol Treatment  Street Const. Maintenance & Repair
e Municipal Court Clerk e Convention Facility Authority
e County Auto License

Federal and/or State Statutes
To Account for Grants and Subsidies

e HOME Program e Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
» HOPE Program e Urban Development Action Grants
e HUD Section 108 Loans e Community Development Act

e Law Enforcement e Health Department Grants

e General Government Grants e Recreation & Parks Grants
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City of Columbus, Ohio

Other Governmental Funds (continued)

Debt Service Funds — used to account for the accumulation of resources for and payment
of general obligation principal, interest, and related expenditures.

e Tax Increment Financing (TIF) funds
» Recreation Debt Service Fund
 Capitol South Debt Service Fund

Capital Project Funds - used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds. The titles of the funds are descriptive of the activities involved. The Capital
Projects Funds classified by the primary sources of funding are:

Debt Proceeds
e Public Safety V—95 e Fire Bonds 11-91
e Parks & Recreation V-95, V-99 e Streets & Traffic V-88
» Refuse Collection V-95 e Development Bonds
e Streets & Highways V-95, V-99 * Police V-88
e Storm Sewer V-95, V-99 * Fire V-88
e Health e Parks & Recreation V-88
e Engineering & Construction Bond e Geographic Information System Bond
e Streets & Traffic Bond e Computer System Bond
» Nationwide Development Bond e Information Services Bonds
 Flood Control Scioto River e Ohio Pen Site Remediation Bond
e Parks & Recreation Bond 6—89 e Easton Infrastructure Bonds
» Facilities Management e Storm Sewer Limited Bond
» Northwood Rd. Special Assessment e Storm Sewers V-91
* Police Bonds 6-91 e COSI Bonds

Grant Revenue and Other Funding Sources

e State Issue 2—Storm Sewers  Capital Grants

e Short North SID e Transportation Improvement Program
e Neil Ave-Vine St Improvements e State Issue 2—Streets

e Parks & Rec. Permanent Improvement » Federal State Highway Engineering

e General Permanent Improvement e Street & Highway Improvement
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and investments with treasurer
Cash and investments with fiscal and escrow

agents
Investments

Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles)

Due from other:
Governments
Funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

City of Columbus, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2001

Nonmajor
Special Revenue

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Nonmajor
Debt Service

Nonmajor Governmental Funds (by fund type)

Nonmajor

Exhibit B-1

Total

Nonmajor

Capital Projects Governmental

Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Interfund payables

Deferred revenue and other
Accrued wages and benefits

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for non-current loans receivable
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilitites and fund balances

Funds Funds Funds Funds

$ 52,289 $ 23,171  $ 131,437 $ 206,897
395 - - 395

30 - - 30

30,857 191 1,025 32,073

24,480 - 209 24,689

343 - - 343

$ 108,394 $ 23,362 $ 132,671 $ 264,427
7,497 - 10,104 17,601

3,089 - 79 3,168

- 3,379 - 3,379

32,829 - 2,216 35,045

2,338 - - 2,338

45,753 3,379 12,399 61,531

86,949 133 103,323 190,405

21,358 - - 21,358
(45,666) 19,850 16,949 (8,867)

62,641 19,983 120,272 202,896

$ 108,394 $ 23,362 $ 132,671 $ 264,427
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City of Columbus, Ohio Exhibit B-2

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds (by fund type)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Revenue Debt Service Nonmajor Capital Governmental

Funds Funds Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES
Grants and subsidies $ 69,923 $ - % 7,157 $ 77,080
Investment income 1,185 901 - 2,086
Licenses and permits 8,595 - - 8,595
Shared revenues 23,442 - - 23,442
Charges for services 45,850 585 3 46,438
Fines and forfeits 3,051 - - 3,051
Miscellaneous 16,678 4,836 2,674 24,188
Total revenues 168,724 6,322 9,834 184,880
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 15,438 - - 15,438
Public service 40,843 105 86 41,034
Public safety 3,520 - - 3,520
Development 20,619 2,000 2 22,621
Health 37,529 - - 37,529
Recreation and parks 68,229 300 - 68,529
Public utilities 11,100 - - 11,100
Capital outlay 8,589 606 106,357 115,552
Total expenditures 205,867 3,011 106,445 315,323
Excess(deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (37,143) 3,311 (96,611) (130,443)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 51,296 1,329 7,807 60,432
Operating transfers out (12,539) (7,043) (4,045) (23,627)
Proceeds from bonds and long-term notes - 100 9,477 9,577
Total other financing sources (uses) 38,757 (5,614) 13,239 46,382
Net change in fund balance 1,614 (2,303) (83,372) (84,061)
Fund balances—beginning of year 61,027 22,286 203,644 286,957
Fund balances—end of year $ 62,641 $ 19,983 $ 120,272  $ 202,896
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